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What sort of hospital do we want to be?
Our vision is be a first-class district general hospital (DGH) – the model for what a DGH can be in the
service of its community – delivering sustainable high quality clinical care, offering an exceptional
experience for our patients and creating a great place for our staff to work.
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Our Journey – Proud to Care
What sort of hospital do we want to be?
Our vision is be a first-class district general hospital (DGH) – the model for what a DGH can be in the service of its
community – delivering sustainable high quality clinical care, offering an exceptional experience for our patients
and creating a great place for our staff to work.
How will we become first-class?
We have six important actions we want to take to help us to achieve our vision.
For our patients and our community, we will:
1. Provide high-quality, safe and person-centred care;
2. Deliver sustainable, appropriate and high performing services; and
3. Build on existing partnerships and create new ones to deliver better care.

For our hospital and our staff, we will:
4. Support and develop our staff;
5. Manage our money wisely, foster innovation and become more efficient to improve quality of care; and
6. Provide an infrastructure to support delivery
How do we show that we are Proud to CARE?
At Chesterfield Royal our Proud to CARE ethos is at the heart of how we run the hospital – looking after our
patients and taking care of our staff:
Compassion
Compassionate care delivered with professionalism and a positive, friendly attitude;
Care that preserves dignity and respects the person; putting patients at the heart of all we do;
Respecting the unique and individual contribution that each of our staff members make – fair, positive and
inclusive, recognising diversity and using it to enrich our organisation.
Achievement
Excellent care, safe services and a positive experience every time;
Exceeding expectations by delivering first-class performance, bettering national standards through
innovation and ingenuity.
Relationships
An open and honest relationship with our patients, staff, partners and our communities;
Working in partnership in the interests of our patients;
Acting in a socially responsible way and meeting our commitments to the local community.
Environment
Providing a hospital environment that is modern, clean and safe – conducive to care and recovery; and a
good place to work.
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We’re supporting student nurses by making prospective offers of employment to those due to qualify. We
know that good patient care is given by staff that know they are valued and recognised – and that’s what
we are aiming to do.
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Chairman & Chief Executive’s statement
We’ve come further on our journey in the last
twelve months - a step closer to creating the
hospital we want to be for our patients and the
great workplace we want to be for our staff.
We’ve continued to build on past success and to
make sure that our focus is the experience our
patients have when they come to us for care and
treatment. Improving quality, achieving best
standards and enhancing services delivery have
been the driving forces we’ve used to make sure
we’re on the right track - and our six objectives
remain the most important actions that will help us
to become the first-class hospital we want to be.
In reviewing the year, we’ve taken these six actions
and looked at the progress we’ve made against
each of them. You can read about the changes the
hospital has made to improve care for patients, the
new ideas we’ve introduced to help our staff – and
the partnerships we’ve developed to make the
health and social care community work more
effectively for local people across North
Derbyshire.
The annual report isn’t just about the ‘good news
stories’ – it also looks at issues and concerns. We
know we don’t always get it right, but when things
don’t go to plan you need to know that we’ll take
immediate action to resolve the problems. In our
Care Quality Commission assessments this year for
example, we weren’t compliant with all the
standards, but by the time we were assessed again

Chief Executive, Gavin Boyle (L) and Chairman, Richard
Gregory (R): “Our focus is the experience patients have when
they come to us for care and treatment.”

You can also see how we’re supporting staff – to
help to address the concerns they’ve raised in the
annual national NHS staff survey. We know that
good patient care is given by staff who know they
are valued and recognised – and that’s what we are
aiming to do. We want our staff to feel that they
could recommend our hospital to their own friends
and family – because they are confident that it
provides high-quality care, compassion and
kindness.
This year’s annual report, the quality accounts within
it, and the financial statements it includes,
demonstrate a whole picture of the hospital. You can
see how we perform against some of the national
standards – like waiting times for cancer treatment
or how long it takes to be treated in the Emergency
Department. You can see what we’re spending on
the systems and facilities our staff need to do a good
job – like new information technology, new buildings
and better facilities.

we had turned the biggest concerns around.
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This is a challenging time for the NHS. We would

Many of the successes of the past year have not just

like to take this opportunity to thank our staff for

been our achievements, however - they have been

the commitment and dedication they have shown

down to closer partnerships with many other health,

over the past twelve months, which is helping us to

social care and voluntary sector organisations. We will

address and respond to these challenges in a

continue to make these relationships prosper in the

positive way. We have also had incredible support

coming year – so that we can all reap the benefits.

from our council of governors, who play a fantastic
role in the hospital, holding us to account and
questioning our decisions, proposals and plans.
They really do represent the patients, staff,
organisations and communities they serve.

Michael Hall
Deputy Chairman¹

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive

27 May 2014

27 May 2014

¹: As authorised by the
Chairman, Richard Gregory OBE
and the Board of Directors
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Review of the year
In this section of our annual report we review some of the improvements, achievements, developments and
changes that our hospital has seen over the past twelve months - and how they fit with the six strategic
objectives in Our Journey.
You will find more examples throughout this report and in the Quality Accounts for 2013/14.
For our patients and our community, we will:
1. Provide high-quality, safe and people-centred care
Cancer patient shares his story
This year’s annual general meeting put the spotlight on the Trust’s cancer service. The evening included the
premiere of the Royal’s new video that serves as an introduction to cancer services, around 17 stalls and
exhibitions from each of the different cancer sites as well as presentations on the proposed new cancer
development, and a patient’s perspective from a gentleman undergoing chemotherapy.
Visiting hours support better communications
All adult wards in the hospital took the step to extend their visiting hours – in a move designed to improve
communication and engagement with patients, staff and relatives. The longer day not only allows visitors more
flexibility about when they come to see their friends and loved-ones, it also allows them to support patient care if
they want to be involved - for example, helping to feed a loved-one who is reluctant to eat. The new hours also
make it easier for relatives to catch-up with doctors and nurses to discuss care and treatment, or any concerns.

Extending visiting hours has improved communication with patients and their visitors – and we welcome relatives who want
to come on to the ward at protected mealtimes to help their loved one eat and drink.
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Dad’s allowed too!
New mums no longer have to cope on Trinity ward on their own with the delivery of new reclining chairs that
allow dads to stay overnight. The chairs ease the pressure on mums who previously had to cope with night time
feeding without dad’s support and also allow dads to bond with their child in the first few days.
You’re Welcome
The Women’s Health Unit (WHU) was presented with a ‘You’re Welcome’ certificate by the Young Inspectors in
connection with Derbyshire Community Health Service. ‘You’re Welcome’ is a government initiative intended to
make health settings more accessible to young people and the group worked with WHU staff for a year to
challenge the misconception that a women’s health unit is for adults only.
Local people help to choose new meals
On 25 June 2013 a membership evening was held on the subject of nutrition, giving our members the chance to
sample the food that was being served on the wards that night. The event was highly successful and the feedback
given on the taste, texture and appearance of the food was valuable.
Supporting patients through Easy Read
The first of many ‘Easy Read’ patient information leaflets were launched on the Royal’s main webpage. The
documents, designed and created by one of the Trust’s breast care healthcare assistants as part of a secondment
project, are aimed at patients with learning disabilities and their carers to help them understand more about their
visit to hospital.

Chairman Richard Gregory presents Healthcare Assistant Ami Pashley with her 2013 STARS award – for the work she’s done to
create Easy Read leaflets and her Proud to Care attitude in the breast clinic.
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2. Deliver sustainable, appropriate and high performing services
Gold standard service delivered locally
The Royal’s endoscopy team was fully accredited by the Joint Advisory Group on Gastrointestinal Endoscopy, the
gold standard by which patients can be certain that the care they receive will be of the highest standard in terms
of safety, quality and the training of its staff. It was a culmination of two years’ work and allows the service to
maintain its bowel cancer screening status as well as the medical and surgical training endoscopy programmes.
Patients put cancer service in top ten
The Royal’s cancer service was placed in the country’s top ten for the second year running following the results of
the latest patient experience survey. More than half of the 306 eligible patients responded to the survey that
covered twelve different cancer sites with particular praise given to the different types of treatments, the way
clinical nurse specialists listen to patients, the confidence patients have in all healthcare professionals treating
them, and the level of dignity and respect.
Rapid improvement in action
The Trust responded to a critical Care Quality Commission report that highlighted concerns around mealtime
organisation, the level of support given to patients and record keeping. A large number of changes were
implemented including the introduction of nutrition champions on each ward, nursing care plans including
nutritional needs, a redesigned menu and increased choice. When another assessment took place in November
2013 the Trust was fully compliant with this standard.

Our Endoscopy Unit is nationally recognised for the gold standard service it provides – assuring patients that the service gives
high-quality care, where safety and an excellent patient experience is top priority.
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Cancer cell therapy in spotlight
The Trust’s dermatology team received some local publicity for introducing ‘Photodynamic Therapy’ to their
treatment of pre-cancerous skin conditions. The treatment is non-invasive and uses a red LED in combination
with photosensitising cream to destroy cancer cells without using surgical instruments. PDT can be used as a
preventative measure, reducing the risk of cancer developing on treated skin and limits trauma to the patient.
Nutrition study shares good practice
The facilities team conducted a study into the delivery of nutrition on Eastwood ward stroke unit with a view to
sharing good practice. The ward developed high scores in terms of delivering food, despite a wide range of
complex patient needs and challenges relating to nutrition. The detailed study took five weeks and looked at
overcoming barriers, working together as a multi-disciplinary team and the perceptions of ‘assistance’.
Research rise backs up importance
The Chesterfield Royal Hospital’s research team was mentioned in a regional press release highlighting the
number of trusts nationally that have increased the number of studies. The Royal increased the number of studies
it is conducting from 37 in 2011/12 to 46 the following year. The importance was backed by a national survey
which suggested that 79% of people responding believed research is important to the NHS.
Royal’s safety out in front
The Royal’s maternity services were singled out as the only one in the Midlands to achieve top marks in a national
safety check. Assessors from the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) looked at a range of factors
including general clinical care, how high-risk pregnancies conditions are looked after and communication, and
accredited the Trust at CNST level two. CNST is designed to provide assurance that hospitals have robust
processes and procedures in place to keep people safe.

th

Our advice to men reaching their 65 birthday is to accept our invitation for screening – checking for an Abdominal Aortic
Aneurysm could prove to be life saving. Our programme works in partnership with Derby Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and
supports a national initiative.
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3. Build on existing partnerships and create new ones to deliver better care.
65th birthday screening saving lives
Our Triple A Screening service was launched - with two of the Royal’s general assistants in Imaging spearheading
the Trust’s involvement in the National Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm Screening Programme. Developed in
partnership with the Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, the programme aims to detect potentially fatal
abdominal aortic aneurysms in men by inviting them to be screened when they reach their 65th birthday.
Great support from governors
Nine new governors (five public, two staff and two partner) began their first terms following the latest round of
governor elections. Outgoing public governors included Sheila Smith, Christopher Day, Pauline Fisher and Pam
Wildgoose, all of whom had been public governors for the full three terms since the Royal became a Foundation
Trust on 1 January 2005. Our governors work in close partnership with the Trust to advise, support and represent.
Royal chosen as national pilot for 7-day services
Sir Bruce Keogh (picture below) was a special guest as the Trust unveiled its plans to adopt and become a pilot
site for the NHS 7-day service programme. Sir Bruce spent the day watching presentations and speaking to key
members of staff and then gave his very complimentary thoughts to the Trust during a 10-minute interview that
was broadcast on the Royal’s YouTube channel.

The Trust was delighted to be chosen as one of 13 national pilot sites for the 7-day NHS Services Project. There were 70 applicants for the
pilot programme, which looks at ensuring patients receive the same high-standard of care across all seven days of the week.
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Celeb chef chooses Chesterfield: Celebrity Chef James Martin came to the Royal to begin work on a project for his
BBC1 programme ‘Operation Hospital Food’. The project, involving patients who need help at home getting a basic food
pack upon discharge, featured as part of the new series that aired in early 2014. The food packs also support a partnership
initiative with Derbyshire County Council Social Care and the British Red Cross, who support people in their own homes after
a hospital stay.

Macmillan partnership helps cancer patients
Our new role of information and support assistant for cancer services was supported by national charity
Macmillan. It’s non-clinical and the postholder provides patients with a range of information from where to go for
emotional or financial support, to how to find insurance and how to apply for benefits. The intention is to relieve
the stress that cancer can put on a patient’s personal life to help them focus on their care.
Local partnership starts a new chapter
Fundraising body NEDSCAN ended its activities and merged with the Trust’s own charitable funds after 34 years
and more than £1million in donations. Launched by Jack Westlake in memory of his wife Mavis, who died in 1979,
the group helped raise money for the Trust’s very first CT Scanner, the breast screening mammography unit and
a number of other important items of imaging, eye centre and cardiology equipment.
Test site partnership
The Royal became a test site for a new system of introducing student nurses to the profession. The government
asked Health Education England to work across the NHS and higher education to look at the validity of allowing
aspiring nurses to spend a year as a healthcare assistant prior to receiving NHS funding for their degree. It was
one of the responses to the Francis Inquiry and the Royal worked in partnership with the University of Derby to
recruit eight students to the pilot scheme.
Children’s partnership pays dividends
Youngsters from Brookfield Community School came to sample the food being served on Nightingale ward. The
aim of the partnership was to give the youngsters a real project to engage with whilst the Trust gained a valuable
insight into the type of food and tastes that patients in this particular age range are looking for.
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For our hospital and our staff, we will:
4. Support and develop our staff
Nurse leader country’s first
Night Matron Sam Wain became one of the first in the country to complete a new leadership programme for
nurses and midwives. The course was developed and run by the NHS Leadership Academy with the intention of
changing NHS culture with an across the board approach to leadership development.
National role for Royal consultant
Dr David Brooks, the Trust’s Macmillan Consultant in Palliative Care, was unveiled as the President of the
Association for Palliative Medicine (APM) of Great Britain and Ireland. The APM is an advisory body for the
Department of Health, government ministers and the Royal College and is the first port of call for media
enquiries. It’s a high-profile position and well-deserved.

Nurses Emma Ellis and Lydia Whiteman travelled to the United States, while Jenni Treasure and Claire Roberts visited to Sweden. They
were awarded the Trust’s Florence Nightingale Travel Bursary , which offers the opportunity to seek out good practice to bring back to
Chesterfield Royal.

Recognising our STARS
The fifth annual staff recognition (STARS) awards took place at the Winding Wheel in Chesterfield on 15
November 2013. The event was another big success with more than 350 nominations for staff across a very broad
spectrum of staff groups.
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Staff set the trend
Social media sites Facebook and Twitter were made available to staff at work which revolutionised the way
different departments and professionals were able to communicate with each other. A number of individuals,
wards and departments became high profile ‘tweeters’ and spread examples of good practice, complementing
the Trust’s main social media sites.
Nurses overseas in bursary win
Four neonatal nurses were chosen as the recipients of the national nurses’ day bursary. The two projects included
a trip to Sweden to learn more about Kangaroo Care, a form of skin to skin care over a long period of time to
improve breastfeeding rates amongst neonatal babies, and a trip to San Francisco to learn more about Newborn
Individualised Developmental Care and Assessment Care (NIDCAP), centred around how nurses care for babies in
terms of the facial and verbal cues they give.
Celebrating nursing in style
The Trust celebrated national nurses’ day in style ! There was nursing memorabilia, cakes were taken to all wards,
suites and departments with a nursing presence, along with games and balloons to give it a ‘party’ theme, and a
number of special awards nominated by colleagues. Comment cards were also produced to invite comments from
visitors, staff and patients about what nursing means to them and these were shared across our social media.

What did you change?: The Royal hosted an event organised by the NHS East Midlands leads for NHS Change Day.
The event is in its second year and the day featured a live video link to the main event in Manchester, stalls from other trusts
and NHS bodies, a series of talks and lectures on the subject of change, and a large number of pledges from staff across the
hospital.
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5. Manage our money wisely, foster innovation and become more efficient to improve quality of care
Scanner number two to save lives
A second, brand new CT Scanner was installed to run alongside the one that was brought in during 2008. Its
introduction will allow the scanning team to provide a more robust, efficient and resilient service, particularly if
one scanner is down, to provide urgent and potentially life-saving emergency scans to diagnose stroke and
trauma.
Efficient solution protects patients
The Bags to Bed system was rolled out across all wards following a successful pilot on Elizabeth Ward. Led by the
environmental compliance team working with infection control, the scheme segregates on wards non-infectious
offensive waste from infectious waste, creating a patient environment that is free from the storage of clinical
waste bins. This results in a reduced risk of cross-contamination, a reduction in unpleasant smells and ensures
general waste does not get mixed with clinical waste.
Celebrating staff innovation
Representatives from across the Trust joined together to showcase some of the work done surrounding quality
and change. ‘Celebrate Our Success’ took place in ‘Relax@theRoyal ‘and the innovation centre, and featured a
number of initiatives that highlighted more efficient ways of working, money saved, partnership working and
innovation. The event was a huge success with more than 700 people attending throughout the course of the day.

Hundreds of staff came together to celebrate their innovations and achievements at a special event in November 2013. The aim of the
day was to share success and good practice; and inspire others to look to change their own areas for the better.
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6. Provide an infrastructure to support delivery

Public Governor, Brian Parsons (right) talks through the plans for the operating theatre project with contractors and Estates.
Governors play an active role in capital schemes – representing their constituents and the local community.

Fostering clinical leadership
Developing effective clinical leadership is vital to delivering high quality services. As far as possible, the day to day
management of services needs to be led by clinical staff – doctors, nurses and others – to ensure decisions about
priorities and the use of resources are taken by those who look after patients. To help this, we replaced nine small
clinical directorates with four larger clinical divisions, creating greater scope for clinical leadership of services and
removing internal barriers to different teams working together to provide better care for patients.
‘Flufighters’ unite to protect patients
The Trust launched its flu vaccination programme which aimed to get 75% of the workforce vaccinated against
Influenza. The campaign including photographs of chief executive Gavin Boyle being vaccinated along with key
clinical staff, alongside a mixture of roving and planned vaccination clinics running up to December.
Everything in the garden is blooming
The stroke unit unveiled its new patient garden that was converted from an unused courtyard at a cost of
£15,000. Paving and Astroturf was laid out as well as a small garden where patients can plant flowers. The area is
used as therapy for social activities, including bowls and basketball that can be enjoyed away from a clinical
environment.
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Multi-million pound IT project gets underway
We made a start to create a new IT system that will replace our existing ‘patient administration system’ which no
longer meets modern standards. The project included a thorough and robust procurement process involving a
number of different divisional and service users. The new system is expected to go live in early summer 2014.
Million pound makeover opens
Trinity ward and the Women’s Health Unit (WHU) were officially opened by Peak FM breakfast presenter Becky
Measures. Becky, due to give birth to her first child in July, had used the unit and was very complimentary of the
treatment she had received. Trinity and WHU were the subject of a £2million refurbishment completed in
November 2012. (Becky gave birth to a healthy baby girl at the Chesterfield Birth Centre on 17 July 2013.)
Green lights gives the go-ahead to a £12million upgrade
The board gave the green light to go ahead with the proposed first phase development of a decant theatre
operating room. Construction began on the £12million, three-year project to completely redevelop the theatre
complex, its first significant upgrade since the site was built in 1984. The first phase of the project involved
building a brand new operating room which would act as a decant room whilst the others will be done one at a
time, allowing the service to run at full capacity throughout the duration of the project.

Making sure that staff have ‘the right tools for the job’ is vital to support services and ensure great patient experience. The replacement
of our patient administration system is one of a number of IT projects designed to make life easier for staff.
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Strategic Report
Overview
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (‘the Trust’) is the district general hospital for Chesterfield and
North Derbyshire, serving a population of approximately 400,000. The Trust also provides child and adolescent
mental health services, community midwifery and children’s nursing services.
The Trust was established as an NHS Trust in April 1993 and authorised as an NHS foundation trust in January
2005. The principal purpose of the Trust is the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health
service in England.
Services are delivered within a strong support infrastructure of high quality staff who are appropriately trained
and rewarded, and in a modern estate where the quality of the patient environment is continually improved to
ensure it is fit for purpose and meets all legislative requirements, using the most appropriate and up to date
technology.
The Trust’s activities are governed by the regulatory framework for NHS Foundation Trusts and by legislation.
During the year the Trust has continued to develop the services that it offers. The Trust aims to provide high
quality timely healthcare, delivered in a way that promotes positive experiences for patients, relatives and their
carers.

View from high above: Chesterfield Royal Hospital serves over 400,000 people in North Derbyshire and beyond.
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Trust’s strategy and business model
The Trust’s six strategic aims and the supporting strategies to deliver these are summarised below:

Strategic Aim

Supporting Strategies

1

Provide high-quality,
safe and
person-centred care

Quality strategy – with a quality improvement plan to make sure services are well-led,
caring, safe, effective, and responsive. Contributing factors:
• Patient Stories
• Safety Thermometer measurement tool.
• 6 C’s – Chief Nursing Officer’s national quality measures.
• Friends & Family Test.
• Learning Organisation.

2

Deliver sustainable,
appropriate and high
performing services

Clinical services strategy (to be completed September 2014). Contributing factors::
• Emergency Care, Critical Care and Dementia Care.
• Response to the Francis Enquiry.
• Implementation of 7-day services.

3

Build on existing
partnerships and
create new ones to
deliver better care

Partnerships that will deliver agreed outcomes. These include:
• East Midlands Pathology Alliance.
• South Yorkshire, Mid Yorkshire, and North Derbyshire ‘Working Together’
programme.
st
• Derbyshire 21 Century Care programme- to support the implementation of
integrated care investment of the Better Care Fund
• East Midlands PACS systems procurement.

4

Support and develop
our staff

Organisational development strategy - a systematic approach to improving staff
engagement (to support a better patient experience). Supported by:
• Six-monthly nurse staffing reviews that are reported to the board, to make sure that
we have sufficient, appropriately skilled staff to deliver a safe and high- quality service.
• Leadership development training
• New appraisal programme with training for all leaders
• Values based training programme for all staff called Let’s Talk Care.

5

Manage our money
wisely, foster
innovation and
become more
efficient to improve
quality of care; and

Transformation programme - each major transformation project is assessed using
Monitor’s Quality Impact Assessment Tool and a process for monitoring any post
implementation impact has been put in place. However, improving quality is the primary
principle that underpins this programme, that is – that through improving quality, greater
efficiency will follow.

6

Provide an
infrastructure to
support delivery

IM&T strategy - specifically intended to deliver clinical benefits and improved ways of
working for staff – and includes a new patient administration system (PAS), a maternity IT
system and E-rostering. Priorities for 2015/16 will be developing a clinical portal and PACS
replacement.
Site development plan - includes a range of capital projects specifically aimed at
improving service delivery and the patient environment – for example: ward upgrades,
theatre refurbishment, Urgent Care Village, new Cancer Centre.
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The Trust’s business model is set out in its operational plan for the period 2014 to 2016, which was submitted to
Monitor at the end of March 2014. This describes the Trust’s plan to achieve its vision to be a first class district
general hospital (DGH), setting out the work being undertaken to further improve the clinical quality of our
services to improve the care and experience for our patients.
The plan describes the arrangements in place to deliver £15m in efficiency schemes during 2014-16 and how the
Trust will use its overarching clinical services strategy to ensure medium term clinical, operational and financial
sustainability in collaboration with its local health partners. The plan confirms how the Trust’s transformation
programme and associated governance structures have been developed to support the delivery of our forecast
requirement of savings and provides detailed confirmation of its financial strategy in the environment of
implementing 7-day services. The plan also shows how the new quality strategy will ensure that all decisions the
Trust makes based on improving the patient experience and delivering sustainable, appropriate and high
performing services.

Fair view of the Trust’s business
2013/14 saw a continued growth in income, cash and major capital investment in the Trust’s estate, medical
equipment and IT. The summary headline financial information for 2013/14 and 2012/13 for the Trust is shown
below:
2013/14
£m
210.6

2012/13
£m
197.3

Surplus

2.04

2.55

EBITDA *

13.8

14.7

166.2

160.4

42.6

44.2

9.6

7.5

n/a
n/a

31.0
11.0

4.1
1.2
4

5.3
1.2
n/a

n/a

4

4.1%

4.0%

Operating income

Total assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital Investment
Borrowing limit **
i) long term
ii) short term
Actual borrowing
i) long term
ii) short term
Continuity of service risk rating
(CoSRR)***
Financial risk rating
Efficiencies achieved

*Earnings before Interest Taxation Depreciation and Amortisation and Impairments.
**Monitor’s prudential borrowing limit requirement ceased on 31 March 2013.
***The CoSRR replaced the financial risk rating on 1 October 2013. For further details of both, see ‘regulatory ratings’ on pages AR45 to
AR47 of the annual report
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Operating Income
Operating income of £210.6m (2012/13: £197.3m) consists of patient care income and non-patient care income.
These are analysed below:
i) Income from patient care activities
Total income from patient care activities for the year 2013/14 increased by 6.29% to £189.6m (2012/13: £178.3m).
This represents 90.0% (2012/13: 90.4%) of total income for the year. A breakdown of patient care income is
shown graphically below for both 2013/14 and 2012/13:
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Further details of patient care activities are shown in Note 4.1 to the annual accounts and financial statements
in the last section of the annual report.
ii) Income generated from non-patient care activities
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 states that any foundation trust that wishes to increase the share of its
income from non-NHS sources (including private work) by more than 5% in any one year, must obtain prior
approval from its governors. The Trust did not increase its income from non-NHS sources by more than 5% in
2013/14.
Included below are details of £21.0m (2012/13: £19.0m) of non-patient care income received, which has been
generated from the provision of non-patient care services such as education and training.
Section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012) requires that the
income generated from the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England must
be greater than its income from the provision of goods and services for any other purposes.
Non patient care income represented 10.0% of the total income in the year (2012/13:9.6%). A breakdown is
shown below:
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Further details are shown in Note 5 to the annual accounts and financial statements in the last section of the
annual report.
Surplus
The net surplus of £2.04m was £0.38m above plan.
EBITDA
EBITDA decreased by £0.9m from £14.7m in 2012/13 to £13.8m for 2013/14. This reflects an increase in expenses
(excluding depreciation, amortisation and impairments) of £14.2m (7.8%) and a corresponding increase in income
of £13.3m (6.7%).
Total assets
Total assets decreased from 2012/13 to 2013/14 by £5.8m, which can be largely attributable to an increase in the
value of intangible assets of £1.4m and in the value of property, plant and equipment of £1.9m. This was mainly
due to an upward revaluation of property values.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash decreased by £1.6m from £44.2m to £42.6m at the end of the financial year. The Trust’s approved working
capital facility of £11.0m ended on 30 September 2013 and has not been renewed given the strong cash position
of the Trust. This no longer forms part of Monitor’s continuity of service risk rating.
Capital investment
The Trust’s investment (in terms of capital expenditure) for 2013/14 is shown below. A total of £9.6m (2012/13:
£7.5m) was spent during the year.
£124k (2012/13: £100k) of charitable capital assets were donated to the Trust during the year from its charitable
funds, including £65k for an ultrasound machine and £28k for a maternity training simulator, and £30k (2012/13:
nil) was donated from other bodies.
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Capital investment by major scheme during 2013/14 is shown below:
Capital investment for the 2013/14 financial year

Total 2013/14
£000

Development Schemes
Theatre modernisation project
Emergency department improvement
Cancer centre
Second CT scanner
Discharge lounge
Medical records extension
EMU/CDU development
Maintenance Schemes
Clay Cross clinic refurbishment
Buxton Health Centre refurbishment
Hartington Wing windows
Estates and minor works
Trauma room improvement
Other expenditure
Divisional equipment and IT
Central IT equipment and applications
Other*
NHS funded capital expenditure
Donated assets
Finance leases
Total capital expenditure

3,053
41
89
697
3
3
73
181
90
493
286
28
2,166
2,106
268
9,577
154
57
9,788

*Includes release of retentions and outstanding costs and underspends on 2012/13 capital schemes.

Sale of land and buildings
On 31 March 2014, the Trust sold the Saltergate Health Centre and Marsden Street site for £1.41m to the Homes
and Communities Agency. The net book value of the land was £1.34m (the net book value of the buildings was
nil). A gain of £39k, net of sale costs, has been recognised in the 2013/14 accounts.
Borrowings
During 2013/14, the Trust reduced the balance of its borrowing with the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
(FTFF) from £6.0m to £5.0m. The loan is for ten years (from March 2009), fixed at an interest rate of 2.84%.
During 2013/14, the Trust also repaid £196k (2012/13: £310k) relating to the capital element of finance leases,
leaving a further £368k repayable as at 31 March 2014.
The prudential borrowing code requirements in section 41 of the National Health Service Act 2006 were repealed
with effect from 1 April 2013 by the Health and Social care Act 2012. The financial statements disclosures that
were previously provided are therefore no longer required.
For further details please see Notes 23 and 24 to the annual accounts and financial statements in the last
section of the annual report.
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Quality, productivity and efficiency
The Trust has a good record of implementing programmes designed to improve efficiency. In 2013/14 the Trust
was required to deliver a 4.3% efficiency (2012/13 4.0%) through primary efficiency schemes (savings delivered
within a clinical division), secondary schemes (savings delivered internally across the Trust through collaboration
between divisions) and tertiary schemes (savings delivered through external collaboration with other
organisations in the wider health economy). The amount achieved was in line with a plan of £6.1m (2012/13
£6.5m).
The delivery of efficiency plans are monitored monthly via the finance and activity report to the board of
directors. Internal systems are in place through the transformation support team to ensure quality impact
assessment, under the stewardship of the innovation board led by the medical director and director of finance
and contracting.

Whilst looking to make efficiency savings
across the whole of the hospital we will not
compromise the quality or standard of
service we provide – to all our patients.
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Activity and performance
Activity achievement during 2013/14 compared to plan is detailed below:

Clinical activity cases
Elective
Non elective
Outpatients
A&E

Plan 2013/14

Actual 2013/14

30,881
35,545
233,539
69,813

31,201
36,344
236,383
67,649

Performance on key standards during 2013/14 is shown below:
•

Continued delivery of the maximum 4 hour wait in the emergency department (ED) across the year with 96.2% of patients seen within the time limit (standard: 95%)

•

93.5% of admitted patients (standard: 90%) and 99.4% of non-admitted patients (standard: 95%)
were treated within 18 weeks of referral. The median waiting time for referral to treatment for
admitted patients was 9.1 weeks (standard: < 11.1 weeks) and for non-admitted patients were
treated within 5.0 weeks (standard: < 6.6 weeks).

•

95.2% of patients (standard: 93%) were seen by a specialist in out-patients within two weeks of
urgent GP referral for suspected cancer; and 96.8% of patients (standard: 93%) referred by their GP
with any breast symptom were also seen by a specialist within two weeks of referral.

•

99.7% of patients (standard: 96%) were treated within one month of a decision to start first cancer
treatment; 100% of patients (standard: 94%) received subsequent surgical treatment within one
month of a decision to treat; and 100% of patients (standard: 98%) received subsequent anti-cancer
drug treatment within one month of a decision to treat.

•

In addition, 93.8% of patients (standard: 85%) received their first definitive treatment for cancer
within two months of GP or dentist urgent referral for suspected cancer, and 97.6% of patients
(standard: 90%) received their first definitive treatment for cancer within two months of urgent
referral from the national screening programme.

•

The Trust recorded 36 cases of Clostridium difficile (three cases fewer than last year) against a target
of 23, and the Trust’s lowest number of cases to date. The rate of Clostridium difficile per thousand
bed days fell from 0.218 in 2012/13 to 0.197 in 2013/14.
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Trends and factors likely to affect the Trust’s future development
The key challenges facing the Trust in 2014/15 and beyond are:
1.

Develop sustainable clinical services which deliver improved care in terms of clinical effectiveness, patient
safety and patient experience.

2.

Ensuring appropriate staffing levels, and being able to recruit and retain key clinical staff to reduce the use
of agency and locum staff

3.

Support the design, development and integration of primary, acute, community based health services and
the Trust’s social services partners.

4.

Deliver the level of access/clinical activity that meets the expectations of patients and commissioners.

5.

Deliver the range of services within agreed financial boundaries, whilst supporting the development of the
Better Care Fund.

6.

Deliver major site infrastructure and IM&T transformational change.

7.

Consolidate the organisational leadership changes that have recently been introduced and embed a culture
of true staff engagement and involvement in clinical decision making.

8.

Embed 7-day services into the culture of the organisation and in the service models being developed as part
of our clinical services strategy.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust
The following principal risks were identified in 2013/14:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Potential loss of income because of commissioner affordability, reduced activity and service reconfiguration,
and contract penalties.
Challenging nature of tight targets for Clostridium difficile and MRSA, and potential inability to achieve
these.
Continuing high levels of emergency and urgent care activity and potential detrimental impact on patient
flow, bed availability and quality of patient experience.
Detrimental impact on quality of efficiency savings not being delivered and cost pressures not being
managed.
Under performance on activity plans, leading to reduced funding which if not contained would have a
negative impact on quality.
Over performance on activity plans, with the inability to increase capacity sufficiently to match increased
demand which if not contained would have a negative impact on quality.
Excessive reliance on locums and agency staff, creating significant cost pressure and having a potentially
detrimental impact on quality.
Quality targets not being achieved leading to financial penalties which if not contained would have a
negative impact on quality.

These risks have been mitigated during the year through close monitoring and performance, but some will
continue to be principal risks in the year ahead, and action to address them is set out in the Trust’s operational
plan for 2014 to 2016.
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Our People
During 2013/14, the average number of people (excluding bank employees) working at the Trust was 3,538.
Medical and dental
Nursing and midwifery

Our People: Staff employed 2013/14

Administrative services
347

423

Allied health
Health sciences

283

Support services

268

Sickness absence
1487
The sickness absence rate for 2013/14 was 4.33%.
730

Sickness absence
The sickness absence rate for 2013/14 was 4.33% (2012/13: 4.41%). The average number of working days lost to
sickness absence was 9.9 (2012/13: 10.2).
Gender analysis
Number of staff at 31 March 2014
Male

Female

Directors

10

6

Senior managers**

140

105

Other staff

486

3,062

**Includes consultant medical staff and clinical managers

Staff survey
Summary of performance
2013/14
Response
rate

AR Page 34

2012/13

CRH

National average

CRH

45%

49%

46%

Assessment
National
average
50%
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2013/14

2012/13

Assessment

Top 5 ranking scores

CRH

National average

CRH

National average

Percentage of staff saying hand
washing materials are always
available

67%

60%

68%

60%

No change**

Percentage of staff believing
the Trust provides equal
opportunities for career
progression or promotion

91%

88%

91%

88%

No change**

Percentage of staff
experiencing physical violence
from staff in last 12 months

2%

2%

3%

3%

No change**

Percentage of staff
experiencing discrimination at
work in last 12 months

9%

11%

10%

11%

No change**

Work pressure felt by staff

3.04

3.06

3.09

3.08

No change**

Bottom 5 ranking scores

CRH

National average

CRH

National average

Percentage of staff reporting
errors, near misses or incidents
witnessed in the last month

82%

90%

90%

90%

No change**

Percentage of staff feeling
satisfied with the quality of
work and patient care they are
able to deliver

68%

79%

68%

78%

No change**

Percentage of staff having
equality and diversity training in
last 12 months

32%

60%

30%

55%

No change**

Percentage of staff
experiencing physical violence
from patients, relatives or the
public in last 12 months

18%

15%

16%

15%

No change**

Effective team working

3.67

3.74

3.68

3.72

No change**

** National assessment of statistical difference between Trust scores in the two years
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Key areas of improvement between 2012/13 and 2013/14:
•
•
•

•

Staff feeling less pressure to come to work when ill (dropped from 35% to 28%).
Staff having well-structured appraisals (rose from 27% to 36%).
Staff having confidence in our reporting procedures in relation to incidents (increase score from 3.45 to
3.53).
Staff recommending the hospital as a place to work or receive care (from 3.51 to to 3.68).

Actions supporting the staff survey:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

‘Let’s Talk Care’ programme - to help staff understand the importance of raising concerns and reporting
incidents and errors, particularly given staff confidence in the Trust’s approach when concerns are raised.
SkillsLab - leadership development programme to make sure leaders are fully equipped to support their
staff effectively.
Workforce plan – the Trust’s first comprehensive plan to look at future workforce needs.
Appraisal programme – a new scheme designed to ensure staff fully understand what is expected of them
in their role and how this fits with the Trust’s overall ambitions.
Develop training in equality and diversity, and also training in diffusing violence and aggression targeted
at areas where this is likely to occur.
Stress awareness programme – to recognise the signs and focus on health and well-being.
Sports and social activities – to foster involvement and participation.
Nurse recruitment – to strengthen recruitment through early contract offers to students, overseas
recruitment and return to nursing courses.
Health promotion events – to support our people with healthy lifestyle choices.
Divisional structure – supported by Human Resource Partners.
Preceptorship support – a programme to support new nurses joining the organisation.
New referral pathway - for colleagues with musculoskeletal problems to get early access.
E-rostering system – so staff can book annual leave, shifts on-line from home or work.
Healthcare staff benefits scheme.
Employee Assistance Programme – confidential service to support colleagues.
Working with partners on Leading Across Boundaries programme.
Talent management group – in a regional partnership.
Leadership forums to engage on key topics.
Modernised clinical skills development to reduce classroom based time with more point of care education.
Dementia training – to offer staff more skills in caring for this group of patients.

Some of these actions will be progressed over the next twelve months while others will be implemented to later
timescales. In addition, each division will be encouraged to review the results locally and devise local action plans
in response to the to the staff survey to sit alongside the Trust wide actions.
The overall position is one of improvement between the 2008 and 2013 NHS staff surveys. The Trust’s aim is to
continue to achieve gradual but sustained progress, recognising that this is a journey and will take several years.
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Environmental, social, community and human rights matters
Carbon management
The Trust has maintained its registration as part of the carbon reduction commitment scheme (CRC). This is in
recognition that the site consumes over six thousand mega watts of electricity per year.
The intent to introduce ‘carbon trading’ which is part of the original carbon management has still not been
implemented nationally and we continue to await final details on this element of the regulations.
In line with requirements put forward from the NHS Sustainable Development Unit, the Trust met its
requirements to produce a sustainable development management plan for the year 2013/14.
In addition to looking at energy and carbon management the Trust’s plan also takes into account issues such as
low carbon travel, procurement and food management.
The Trust has started to install LED lighting, presently in the Hospital’s corridors, and continues to develop its
building management system, which controls the Hospital’s heating and ventilation, in order to maintain the
internal environmental conditions at the optimum setting for the particular activity and patient care.
The Trust has reduced its carbon (CO 2 ) emissions by 6,243 tonnes since 2007/2008.
Waste management
The Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 require that the waste hierarchy is implemented throughout
the waste stream when disposing of any waste products:

The Trust complies with this system and is continuing to review initiatives to reduce the volume of waste on site.
Key changes relate to the segregation of offensive waste at ward and department level together with improved
monitoring and auditing of waste disposal compliance:
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Tonnes
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Domestic

Infectious

Clinical
incinerated

Clinical
Sharpsmart

Offensive

Year 2012

45.67

43.7

0.94

2.49

2.22

Year 2013

55.23

43.68

0.76

2.46

3.87

The graph above identifies waste categories disposed of by the Trust. It indicates a reduction in clinically treated
waste against an increase in the level of domestic waste. It is expected that during 2014 the clinical waste stream
will reduce further and the offensive waste stream will increase as a direct result of effective waste management.
The aim over the last eighteen months has been to reduce the expensive clinically treated waste stream and to
ensure that as much waste as possible goes through the cheaper offensive waste stream, whilst ensuring that all
legislation is met. Information on the correct disposal of waste is provided to staff and work on further
segregation of waste streams is being undertaken.
The cost of offensive waste disposal is approximately £100 per tonne cheaper than clinical waste treatment,
which shows the link between good environmental management and cost reduction. Further work is being
undertaken in relation to the EU directive on the safe use and disposal of ‘sharps’ so that the risk of needlestick
injuries is reduced and the projected costs of sharps disposal is reduced as far as possible.
Travel plan
The Trust has a travel plan in place to encourage staff to use sustainable methods of travel for travelling to and
from work. New staff are provided with information about the travel plan at corporate induction.
The Trust has several measures in place to encourage staff to use more sustainable methods of travel including
car share, cycling, walking, using buses and motorcycling. Events are held in the main concourse in conjunction
with the Stagecoach bus company and Connected Benefits staff cycle scheme.
The take up of the Trust cycle hire scheme and usage of our cycle locker facilities is continuing, as is the number
of staff taking part in our car share arrangement.
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Where possible the success of these measures is monitored on a regular basis. The monitoring of these measures
over the past 2 years is detailed in the table below:
Initiative
Number of staff holding a car
share pass
Number of staff taking up the
bike to work scheme
Number of discounted weekly
bus tickets sold

2012

2013

152

156

13

16

3927

3984

Corporate citizenship committee
The committee, a joint committee of the board of directors and council of governors, monitors the Trust’s
performance in respect of carbon management, and supports the Trust’s citizenship agenda, in particular the
Trust’s partnership with the Prince’s Trust to introduce apprentices to various departments throughout the
Hospital.
Health and safety
The health and safety management framework within which the Trust operates reflects the HSE guidance
‘Successful Health and Safety Management (HSG65)’ (which was last updated in 2003).
The management of health and safety on the site is organised through the health and safety management
committee which meets on a bi-monthly basis and is chaired by the director of facilities, who is also the lead
board director for health and safety.
Joint consultation machinery on health and safety is undertaken through the Trust’s health and safety
representatives committee which also meets on a bi-monthly basis; and again is chaired by the director of
facilities.
In 2012/2013 there were 26 needle stick injuries, six reported slips and trips and 16 manual handling incidents. In
2013/14 there were 16 needle stick injuries, 12 reported slips and trips and 23 manual handling incidents
Total number of health and safety incidents for 2013/14 was 108 compared with 132 for 2012/2013.
The reduction in needle stick injuries is a welcome trend and further work is being carried out in relation to the EU
sharps directive to reduce these even more. A change to the way needle stick injuries are reported and followed
up has also been instigated in 2014 and this has improved confidence in all injuries of this type being reported.
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Security
NHS Protect sets the security management strategy under four key areas:
•
•
•
•

Pro-security culture;
Deterrence and prevention;
Detection and investigation;
Sanctions.
2011
2012
2013

822 incidents
677 incidents
575 incidents

The number of reported security incidents is continuing to decrease,
which is encouraging. The figures represent a reduction of overall
incidents by 15% when compared with 2012.

The reduction in incidents has been achieved through security initiatives and staff education/public awareness
information. The Trust actively seeks sanctions where there is a realistic prospect of success.
The number of assaults during the year is shown in the table and it is significant to note that the number of
sanctions achieved for assaults not related to medical conditions is now at 70%. This is as a direct result of close
co-operation between the Trust’s security team and Derbyshire Police. There is now a regular presence at the
hospital from a Police Community Support Officer.
Total number of assaults during 2013/14
Total number of assaults due to medical condition
Total number of assaults not due to medical condition
Total number of sanctions

93
83
10
7

Fire safety
Fire safety is monitored through inspections and audits by the Fire Authority as part of the Regulatory Reform
(Fire safety) Order. A close working relationship between the fire safety advisor and Derbyshire Fire & Rescue
Service has been cultivated. The key aims of fire safety at the Trust are:
•
•
•
•

Life safety;
Property protection;
Environmental protection;
Business continuity.
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Extensive work is done on all new build projects and refurbishments in relation to fire safety. Part of the day to
day work involves investigating fires that occur at the hospital as well as fire alarm activations so that future
occurrences can be eradicated. The matrix below shows the work result of work on reducing ‘Unwanted Fire
Signals’ over the last four years:
Sector UwFS 2013
2013 Grade UwFS 2012 2012 grade UwFs2011
2011 grade UwFs 2010 2010 grade
UwFS 2009 2009 grade
4
A
0
A
3
A
4
A
9
B
1
2
A
3
A
3
A
1
2
A
9
B
3
7
A
6
A
10
A
13
B
12
B
A
0
A
0
A
1
4
0
A
4
B
1
A
6
A
4
A
7
5
A
19
D
A
7
A
3
A
6
7
0
A
6
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
9
A
0
A
10
0
A
0
A
0
A
1
A
0
A
11
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
12
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
A
0
13
A
2
A
Total
19
Overall grade A
22
Overall grade A
23
Overall grade A
33
Overall grade B
61
Overall grade C
Cost £16.55k
£18.7k
£19.5k
£51k
£78.2k
6
3
A
2
A
4
A
11
D
9
D
8
2
A
2
A
8
C
16
D
22
D
Total
5
4
12
27
31
Grand total
24
26
35
60
92

The reduction in the number of ‘Unwanted Fire Signals’ over the past four years has resulted in 147 fewer calls
from the Trust to Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service, saving an estimated £206,000 and protecting the capacity of
the Fire & Rescue Service to deal with other emergencies.
Occupational health
The Trust has an on-site occupational health service provided under contract by an external NHS provider. This is
nursing-led, but with access to a consultant occupational health physician. The service includes recruitment
health screening, in-service screening and review, and access to counselling and psychological support.
Equality, diversity and human rights
Control measures are in place to ensure that the Trust meets its obligations under legislation governing equality,
diversity and human rights.
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Financial disclosures
Going concern
The directors are mindful of the challenges facing the Trust in the current economic climate, and particularly the
more challenging financial environment.
The directors believe that careful management of the Trust’s finances over the past nine years as a Foundation
Trust has left the Trust in a good financial position, with a recurrent income and expenditure position, and strong
cash and liquidity, to meet the financial challenges for 2014/15 and beyond.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS Foundation Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
Accounting policies
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM) agreed with HM Treasury.
Consequently the Trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2013/14 NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual
follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.
Insurance cover
The Trust has insurance cover through the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) to cover the risk of legal action
against its directors and officers; and an additional liability insurance totalling £5 million has been entered into
with a separate private insurance provider.
Directors’ statement
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware, and
the directors have taken all of the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
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Directors’ Report
Directors of the Trust
These directors were appointed to membership of the board of directors, and were in post during the year 1 April
2013 to 31 March 2014:
Designation

Dates

Name

Chairman

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Richard Gregory OBE

Chief Executive

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Gavin Boyle

Non-Executive Director;
Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent
Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Michael Hall, DL

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 5 May 2013

Janet Birkin MBE, JP, DL

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

David Whitney

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Linda Challis

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Alison McKinna

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Beverley Webster OBE

Non-Executive Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Dr David Pickworth

Non-Executive Director

20 November 2013 – 31 March 2014

Philip Severs

Director of Corporate Administration

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Terry Alty

Director of Finance and Contracting (and)
Deputy Chief Executive

1 April 2013 – 31 January 2014

Paul Briddock

Interim Director of Finance and
Contracting

1 February 2014 – 16 February 2014

John Williams

Director of Finance and Contracting

17 February 2014 – 31 March 2014

Steve Hackett

Interim Chief Nurse

1 April 2013 – 19 February 2014

Dr Barbara Stuttle CBE

Director of Nursing and Patient Care

3 February 2014 – 31 March 2014

Lynn Andrews

Medical Director

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Dr Ian Gell

Director of Performance and Operations

3 August 2013 – 31 March 2014

Nikki Tucker

Director of Strategy and Performance

3 February 2014 – 31 March 2014

Tony Campbell

Director of Facilities

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Andrew Jones

Director of Workforce and Organisational
Development

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014

Nicky Hill
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The Trust considers each of the listed non-executive directors to be independent.
Further details about the board of directors and the directors of the Trust can be found on pages AR56 to AR72 of
the annual report.

Directors’ responsibility for the annual report and accounts
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and accounts. The directors consider that the annual
report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the Trust’s performance, business model and
strategy.

Regulatory ratings
Monitor
Compliance framework: applicable from 1 April to 30 September 2013
Under this framework, Monitor assigned risk ratings for finance and governance.
The finance risk rating was based on the Trust’s financial performance in the quarter against its financial plan in
terms of:
•
Delivery of plan;
•
Operating margin;
•
Return on assets; and
•
Delivery;
-and was on a scale of 1 to 5, with 5 being the lowest risk.
The governance rating was based on the Trust’s self-declaration against the following areas:
•
Performance against national targets and indicators;
•
Care Quality Commission registration and ongoing performance against registration requirements; and
•
Provision of mandatory goods and services;
-and was on a graduated system of green, amber/green, amber-red and red, with green being the lowest risk.
Risk assessment framework: applicable from 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014
Under this framework, Monitor applies a continuity of service rating (relating to the risk of a provider of
commissioner requested services failing to carry on as a going concern) and a governance rating (setting out
Monitor’s degree of concern about the governance of the Trust).
The continuity of service rating is based on two common measures of financial robustness:
•
Liquidity; and
•
Capital servicing capacity;
-and is on a scale of 1 to 4, with 4 being the lowest risk.
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The governance rating is based on information about the Trust’s performance in the following areas:
•
Performance against national outcomes and access requirements;
•
CQC judgments;
•
Third party reports (e.g. external regulators, such as HSE);
•
Quality governance indicators; and
•
Continuity of service rating;
-and is on a scale of red to ‘narrative rating’ to green, with green being the lowest risk.
Table one below shows analysis of the quarterly reporting to Monitor for 2012/13 under the compliance
framework. Table two shows analysis of the quarterly reporting to Monitor for 2013/14, reflecting the transition
from the compliance framework to the risk assessment framework.
Table one - 2012/13
Annual Plan

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

4

5

4

4

4

Green

Green

Green

Amber/Green

Amber/Red

Annual plan

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

4

4

4

Green

Amber/Green

Amber/Green

Continuity
of service
rating *

4

4

Governance
rating

Green

Green

Financial
risk rating
Governance
risk rating

Table two - 2013/14
Under the compliance framework:

Financial
risk rating
Governance
risk rating

Under the risk assessment framework:

* The quarterly continuity of service rating is the cumulative year-to-date position
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The governance risk rating was affected by the incidence of Clostridium difficile breaching the target for 2013/14
of no more than 23 cases. The outturn performance was 36 cases, which although above the target level, was
three cases fewer than in 2012/13 and the Trust’s best ever performance.
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
At 31 March 2014, the Trust had been placed by the CQC’s intelligent monitoring report in band 6, the lowest
category of risk. Further information about the Trust’s compliance with CQC requirements is set out in the next
section.

Disclosures
Better payment practice code
The national ‘better payment practice code’ requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid invoices within 30 days of
receipt (or the due date - whichever is the later). Details of performance are set out in Note 12 to the annual
accounts and financial statements in the last section of the annual report. Disclosure of any interest paid under
the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 is set out in Note 13 to the annual accounts and
financial statements in the last section of the annual report.
Cost allocation and charging requirements
The Trust has complied with the cost allocation and charging requirements set out in HM Treasury and Office of
Public Sector Information guidance.
Investments
The Trust made no investments through joint ventures or subsidiary companies and no other financial
investments were made. No financial assistance was given by the Trust.
Charitable funds
All charitable fund expenditure is classed as granted to the hospital from its charities. Items over £5,000 are
capitalised and included in the Trust’s closing non-current assets on its Statement of Financial Position. The
Charitable Funds Annual Report and Accounts for 2013/14 is published separately and is available from the Trust
on request.
Political donations
The Trust has made no political donations during the financial year.
Important events since balance sheet date
There are no important events since the balance sheet date that are likely to have a material impact on both the
Trust and financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2014.
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Likely future developments
The Trust’s annual report for 2013/14 has been prepared during a time of significant transformation for the NHS.
The Trust has a history of effective working with its commissioners which has strengthened with the
establishment of clinical commissioning groups.
The economic challenges facing the health and social community will require new ways of working and greater
levels of collaboration to ensure the long term clinical, operational and financial sustainability of the Trust.
The development of the Trust’s five year clinical services strategy will set out the Trust’s approach to the
sustainability of each of its clinical services, and detail the transformational programme required to improve the
quality of our services whilst delivering improvements in productivity and efficiency.
Significant activities in the field of research and development
In 2013/14, research activity remained at high levels across a range of clinical specialties. Further information
about the Trust’s research activities can be found on page QA20 of the quality accounts section of the annual
report.
Branches outside the UK
The Trust has no branches outside the UK.
Policies applied during the financial year for giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment
made by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities; for continuing the
employment of, and for arranging appropriate training for, employees who have become disabled persons
during the period; and for the training, career development and promotion of disabled employees
The Trust’s diversity and equality strategy and its supporting policies are the cornerstone of its approach to
equality of employment opportunity. We recognise our responsibility to provide (as far as is reasonably
practicable) job security of all employees.
Our policies aim to ensure that no job applicant or employee receives less favourable treatment where it cannot
be shown to be justifiable on the grounds of:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Age;
Disability;
Gender reassignment;
Marriage and civil partnership;
Pregnancy and maternity;
Race;
Religion or belief;
Sex;
Sexual orientation.

- in relation to recruitment and selection, promotion, transfer, training, discipline and grievance and all terms
and conditions of employment.
As a Trust, we recognise the important role we must play as an active and socially responsible member of the
local community and that our patients, clients and staff represent the community we serve.
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We know that having a committed and motivated workforce depends on staff feeling that they are treated with
fairness, respect and dignity and that they have equal opportunities for self-development. We want to ensure
that our staff are not discriminated against, or harassed, on the grounds of their ethnic origin, physical or
mental ability, gender, age, religious beliefs or sexual orientation. Equally, if this happens, we want staff to feel
confident about using our policies to raise concerns and to have them addressed.
Actions taken in the financial year to provide employees systematically with information on matters of concern
to them as employees; consult employees or their representatives on a regular basis so that the views of
employees can be taken into account in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests; encourage the
involvement of employees in the Trust’s performance; and achieve a common awareness on the part of all
employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Trust.
The Trust has formal consultation arrangements through the joint staff consultative committee to provide
information to staff, consult them through their designated local representatives and take their views into
account. The Trust also uses a variety of regular forms of communication to secure engagement with staff:
•

Pay-slip bulletin - information pertinent to everyone (corporate development, employment issues etc)
circulated to every member of staff with their monthly pay-slip;

•

Intranet - the staff only section of the Trust’s website facility. Staff can access policies and procedures,
patient information, an on-line telephone directory and up-to-date news about the Trust - including finance
reports, performance reports and minutes from key meetings such as the council of governors and board of
directors;

•

Chat Forum – an anonymous chat forum on the intranet where staff can post discussion threads and topics;

•

Email briefings - regular briefings to all staff via their personal email accounts, on a variety of subjects
affecting the Trust - from departmental moves to briefings on clinical issues;

•

‘Ask the Executive’ - staff can use the intranet chat forum to ask the Chief Executive questions, or put
forward concerns, ideas and suggestions. All staff using the scheme are guaranteed a response usually within
ten working days or less;

•

Staff magazine – ‘Life@theRoyal’ – an informal newsletter focusing on staff and the roles they play in the
organisation;

•

Posters, leaflets, reports - produced specifically for staff; and

•

Membership magazine – Membership Matters is distributed to all community and staff members of the Trust
every quarter and updates the Trust’s membership on service developments, proposals and plans.

•

The Choices programme to support and empower staff to put forward and implement ideas for innovation
and service improvement.

•

Publication of ‘Our Journey’, the Trust’s vision for the sort of hospital it wants to be, setting out six strategic
objectives, including three that focus on developing and supporting our staff and improving the hospital,
underpinned by the Trust’s ‘Proud to Care’ values.
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During 2014/15, the Trust will launch ‘Let’s Talk Care’, an ambitious programme to hold informal conversations
with all staff about the part they play in the Trust’s success and the fact that every member of staff has a
responsibility to make sure that patients have a positive experience of the Trust’s services in line with the ‘Proud
to Care’ values. An anonymous reporting hotline is also being set up to allow staff to raise any concerns about
patient care or their workplace.
Financial risk management
Financial risk management is disclosed in Note 33 to the annual accounts and financial statements in the last
section of the annual report.

Quality governance
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
From April 2010, all health and adult social care providers who provide regulated activities were required by law
to be registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
To register, NHS organisations were required to show that they were meeting the new essential standards of
quality and safety across all of the regulated activities they provide. There are 28 outcomes which relate to the
Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2009 and these are grouped into six main
headings:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Involvement and information;
Personalised care, treatment and support;
Safeguarding and safety;
Suitability of staffing;
Quality and management;
Suitability of management.

The system has been designed to ensure that people can expect services to meet essential standards of quality
and safety that respect their dignity and protect their rights. The new system focuses on outcomes, rather than
systems and processes, and places the views and experiences of people who use services at the centre.
The Trust was registered without conditions by the CQC on 1 April 2010.
Ongoing compliance
The Care Quality Commission has taken enforcement action against Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust during 2013/14. The CQC, following a routine inspection, issued a warning notice in June 2013
about compliance with CQC Outcome 5 on meeting nutritional needs. This was lifted in August 2013 when, on reinspection by the CQC, compliance with Outcome 5 was confirmed.
The Trust has not participated in any special reviews or investigations by the CQC during 2013/14.
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The Trust received a routine inspection by the CQC in June 2013, during which it was assessed against three of
the CQC Outcomes as follows:
•

Outcome 1: Respecting and involving people who use services
The CQC identified moderate non-compliance;

•

Outcome 5: Meeting nutritional needs
The CQC identified moderate non-compliance and issued a warning notice (see above for details);

•

Outcome 21: Records
The CQC identified moderate non-compliance.

An action plan was developed to address all three areas of non-compliance. The action taken on meeting
nutritional needs enabled the Trust to become compliant with Outcome 5 and to have the warning notice lifted
in August 2013.
The Trust received in November 2013 a routine follow-up inspection by the CQC on Outcomes 1 and 21. This
confirmed that the Trust was now compliant with Outcome 21 but that minor concerns about non-compliance
remained on Outcome 1. The CQC also found moderate non-compliance on Outcome 16: Assessing and
monitoring the quality of service provision. The Trust submitted an action plan to address these concerns and
implementation of the action plan will be completed in 2014/15.
Quality governance review
In light of the outcomes (above) of the CQC’s inspection visits, the Trust in August 2013 commissioned from
Deloitte LLP a review of its quality governance arrangements against Monitor’s quality governance assurance
framework. The outcome of the review in October 2013 was the identification of weaknesses in systems and
processes and a number of recommendations for improvement. The Trust is now implementing an action plan to
address the findings and recommendations of the review, and this will be completed in 2014/15.
Further information on service quality can be found in the quality accounts section of the annual report. Further
information on the quality governance review and the actions being taken to secure improvements is set out
within the annual governance statement on pages AR111 to AR112 of the annual report.
The board is satisfied that there are no material inconsistencies between the annual governance statement, the
quarterly and annual board statements required by Monitor’s compliance framework and risk assessment
framework, and the outcome of Care Quality Commission inspections and the action plans arising from these.
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Other disclosures in the public interest
Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits
The accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits are set out in Note 1.4 to the annual
accounts and financial statements in the last section of the annual report. The arrangements for senior
employees’ remuneration can be found in the remuneration report on pages AR94 to AR97 of the annual
report.
Related party transactions
Under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the Trust is required to disclose, in
the annual accounts, any material transactions between the NHS Foundation Trust and other NHS and
Government bodies, members of the Board and key management personnel and parties related to them. Any
such disclosures are set out in Note 32 to the annual accounts and financial statements in the last section of the
annual report.
External auditors
The Trust’s auditors for 2013/14 were:
KPMG
One Snowhill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham B4 6GH
Details of the auditors’ remuneration are set out in Note 11 to the annual accounts and financial statements in
the last section of the annual report.
The Trust purchased £256,475 of non-audit services from the external auditors that are outside Monitor’s Audit
Code. This related to the development of its clinical services strategy and KPMG was appointed to undertake the
work following a competitive tendering process. The Trust expects its external audit provider to act
independently. Under the terms of engagement they are required to have control processes in place to ensure
that this status is preserved and to notify the audit committee of any matter that could compromise the
independence or objectivity of the audit team. The audit committee monitors this position and the auditor is
required under ISA 260 to confirm this position in the annual governance report.
Disclosure of information to auditors
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware, and
the directors have taken all of the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
Countering fraud and corruption
NHS Protect has the central co-ordinating and directing role, revising policy and processes to prevent fraud
arising, providing information to target counter fraud action, continuously identifying the nature and scale of the
problem of fraud and corruption, and setting and monitoring the standards of counter fraud work. Under the
standard NHS commissioning contract, the Trust has agreed to take all necessary steps to counter fraud
affecting NHS funded services and will maintain appropriate and adequate arrangements to detect and prevent
fraud.
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The Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) service supports the Trust in countering fraud and corruption. The
LCFS at the Trust has been provided in 2013/14 by Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP. During 2013/14 the
Trust was provided with 70 days of counter fraud services from Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP. The work
carried out by the LCFS is within four generic areas of countering fraud and corruption:
Inform and involve
• Undertaking fraud and corruption awareness training with Trust staff
• Fraud training included in induction programmes
• General publicity using posters, leaflets, e-mails and intranet
• Fraud awareness month held during the year
Prevent and deter
• Liaison with the communication manager
• Formal communication strategy
• Production of four newsletters per year
• Introduction of preventative systems
• Liaison with internal audit
• Undertaking regular review of all policy documents
• Protocols maintained between HR and NHS Protect
• Identifying fraud and corruption risk
Hold to account (proactive)
• National proactive exercises as directed by NHS Protect
• Local proactive exercises on known risk areas
• The Audit Commission has undertaken a national fraud initiative
The final area relates to investigation, sanction and redress under the title ‘Hold to account (reactive).
During 2013/14, a total of six referrals were received leading to two investigations. Referrals and requests for
advice have been received by the LCFS from varying departments within the Trust, including procurement and
human resources.
The LCFS has also been instrumental in providing advice and guidance to the Trust in relation to the continuing
banking scams affecting the public sector.
Information risks and data losses in 2013/14
The Trust recognises the extreme sensitivity of much of the data that it holds, in particular the clinical records of
individual patients. Patient records contain personal details of the most intimate nature and it is the
responsibility of the Trust to ensure that the security and confidentiality of this information is protected.
Information governance (IG) is the umbrella term covering all aspects of the management of personal records
and data. This ranges from technical measures such as those to prevent computer hacking, through the training
and development of staff, to the format and content of individual records. In total, there are 45 different subject
areas covering both electronic and paper-based systems.
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There are strict rules governing the management of data, which includes the requirement to report any
significant breach of confidentiality. During 2013/14, the Trust reported one serious untoward incident (SUI)
relating to information governance. This related to the loss of seven separate clinical records, presumed stolen
from a community children's nurse during the course of her duties.
In addition, one complaint was made to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) about the Trust relating to
a delay in processing a subject access request. The complaint was upheld, but was not deemed to require
regulatory action.
Management of information security
In order to ensure that high standards are maintained, the board of directors receives periodic updates of current
IG issues, as well as an annual report of performance against national monitoring processes.
The medical director acts as the Caldicott Guardian, a role which provides guidance on all aspects of the security
and confidentiality of clinical record keeping, as well as approving the purposes for which clinical data can be
used.
The director of nursing and patient care acts as Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO), a role which comes with
overall operational responsibility for all information risk issues.
Annual monitoring
Each year, the Trust completes an organisational self-assessment of its performance against a range of 45
individual standards related to information governance. This is known as the Information Governance Toolkit
(IGT). The IGT standards are assessed on a scale of 0-3, with the goal of all NHS organisations reaching level 2 in
all 45 standards. The assessment is independently audited, to ensure accuracy of reporting.
By 31 March 2014, the Trust had achieved compliance at level 2 with all 45 IGT standards, with the evidence
supporting this having been subject to internal audit review.
Consultations completed in 2013/14, or in progress at the date of the report, or planned for the coming year;
consultation with local groups and organisations, including the overview and scrutiny committees of local
authorities covering the membership areas
There have been no consultations to report on during 2013/14.
Any other public and patient involvement activities
Details of patient and public involvement activities are given on pages AR77 to AR78 of the annual report.
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
27 May 2014
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Governance of the Trust
Board of Directors
Introduction
The board of directors manages the business of the Trust and is the legally responsible body for the delivery of
high quality, effective services and for making decisions relating to the strategic direction, financial control and
performance of the Trust.
The board of directors has a business focus, providing active leadership of the Trust within the framework of
prudent and effective controls to ensure regulatory compliance.
All members of the board of directors have joint responsibility for every decision of the board of directors
regardless of their individual skills or status.
Role of the board of directors
The role of the board of directors includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Setting targets, monitoring performance and ensuring the resources are used in the most appropriate way;
Providing active leadership of the Trust within a framework of prudent and effective controls, which enables
risk to be assessed and managed;
Making sure the Trust performs in the best interests of the public, within legal and statutory requirements;
Responsibility for ensuring the quality and safety of healthcare services, education, training and research
delivered by the Trust and applying the principles and standards of quality governance set out by the
Department of Health, the Care Quality Commission and other relevant NHS bodies;
Being accountable for the services provided and how public funds are used, and exercising those functions
effectively, efficiently and economically;
Making sure the Trust complies the terms of its provider licence issued by Monitor;
Having specific duties relating to audit, remuneration, clinical governance, charitable funds and risk
assurance;
Deciding the Trust’s strategic direction in consultation with the council of governors;
Setting the Trust’s values and standards of conduct and ensure that its obligations to its members, patients
and other stakeholders are understood and met; and
Working in partnership with the council of governors.

Board focus
The board of directors has reviewed its values and standards to ensure that they meet the obligations that the
Trust has to its patients, members of staff and other stakeholders. Periodically the board of directors reviews the
strategic aims after consultation with the council of governors and takes responsibility for the quality and safety
of the healthcare services, education, training and research.
The board now devotes most of its time and agenda to clinical quality and the key elements of the patient
experience, including infection control, hygiene, feeding and nutrition and privacy and dignity. In recent years,
the board’s priority for development has been to have an engaged collective understanding of measures of
clinical quality and how these are used to produce meaningful information which properly reflects patients’
everyday experience of the Trust’s services.
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The board develops its understanding of the views of governors and members through the directors’ regular
attendance at meetings of the council of governors, joint informal meetings between the directors and the
governors, meetings between the governors and the non-executive directors, and directors’ participation in
meetings involving members, such as the annual members’ meeting.
Composition of the board of directors
The board is a unitary board consisting of a non-executive chairman, seven non-executive directors and eight
executive directors. The composition of the board of directors is in accordance with the Trust’s constitution and is
appropriate to fulfil its statutory and constitutional function and comply with the terms of Monitor’s provider
licence.
Chairman
The chairman is responsible for ensuring that the board of directors focuses on the strategic development of the
Trust and for ensuring robust governance and accountability arrangements are in place, as well as evaluating the
performance of the board of directors, its committees and individual non-executive directors.
Non-executive directors
Whilst the executive directors are responsible for the day-to-day operational management of the Trust, the nonexecutive directors share the corporate responsibility for ensuring that the Trust is run efficiently, economically
and effectively. Non-executive directors use their expertise, interest and experience to scrutinise the
performance of management, monitor the reporting of performance, and satisfy themselves as to the integrity of
financial, clinical and other information. The non-executive directors also fulfill their responsibility for
determining appropriate levels of remuneration for executive directors.
The board’s small number of standing committees has allowed all the non-executive directors scope to develop
their skills and experience as members of committees and, in most cases, as committee chairs. Internal induction
and development for the non-executive directors has been supplemented by their involvement in external
networks and paid training identified through appraisal.
Directors’ summary biographies can be seen on pages AR61 to AR69 of the annual report. These describe the
skills, experience and expertise of each current director. The board considers that the balance and completeness
of these are appropriate to the requirements of the Trust’s stewardship.
Meetings of the board of directors and its committees
Directors’ membership of board committees and attendance at meetings of the board and its committees in
2013/14 are set out on pages AR70 to AR73 of the annual report.
Board development
The individual performance of the chairman and non-executive directors is evaluated annually by the council of
governors. The individual performance of the executive directors is evaluated annually by the chairman and nonexecutive directors.
Each committee of the board undertakes an annual self-assessment and reports the outcome to the board.
The board undertakes an annual development review of its performance and its effectiveness as a unitary board.
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Board committees
The board of directors has the following committees:
•
•
•
•
•

Audit committee;
Charitable funds committee;
Quality and clinical governance committee;
Remuneration committee;
Risk committee.

The board of directors has delegated responsibilities to these committees to undertake specified activities and
provide assurance to the board. The committees provide the board with written minutes of their proceedings.
A summary of each committee’s role and activities during 2013/14 is set out below:
Audit committee
The audit committee is chaired by Michael Hall, non-executive director and senior independent director. Its
purpose is to coordinate the provision of objective assurance to the board of directors that the processes are in
place across the Trust to ensure high quality governance and internal control systems are maintained. In this role
the committee directly reviews the risks linked to strategic objective five.
Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference and it receives reports from internal and external auditors as
well as executive directors undertaking detailed examination of financial, governance and value for money
reports received by the board of directors.
The audit committee has overseen the following areas of action:
•
•
•
•
•

Considered internal audit reports and reviewed the recommendations associated with the internal audit
report;
Tendered and appointed new internal auditors and counter fraud specialists
Considered the annual accounts and associated documents and provided assurance to the board of directors;
Provided continuing monitoring of the financial status of the Trust; and
Considered revised standing orders, standing financial instructions and scheme of delegation.

The Trust’s internal audit function has in 2013/14 been provided by Baker Tilly. The internal audit programme is
based on improving the effectiveness of risk management and the system of internal control, and is linked to the
principal risks to the achievement of the Trust’s strategic objectives, per the board assurance framework.
Through the audit committee programme, the board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of its system of
internal controls.
The audit committee has assessed the effectiveness of the internal and external audit processes in terms of a
range of factors, including:
•
•
•
•
•

Actual cost compared with plan;
Actual areas covered compared with the plan;
Conformity with audit code requirements;
Effectiveness of recommendations;
Continuity of staffing;
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•
•
•

Timeliness of preparation;
Factual accuracy;
Use of staff with specialist skills.

Charitable funds committee
The charitable funds committee is chaired by Beverley Webster, non-executive director, and is responsible for
making sure money donated to the hospital is spent wisely. Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference.
During 2013/14, the committee agreed the use of the Trust’s charitable funds to support a number of projects,
including:
•
•
•

Grant to support Sight Support Derbyshire for three years from 2013/14 (£99,662);
Purchase of an ultrasound machine for breast imaging (£65,220);
Purchase of a clinical skills training simulator for the maternity unit (£27,600).

Quality and clinical governance committee
The committee is chaired by David Whitney, non-executive director. It provides objective assurance to the board
of directors that the Trust is delivering sustainable high quality clinical care to patients. In this role the committee
directly reviews the risks linked to strategic objectives one and two.
Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference. The range of issues considered by the committee includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mortality;
Pressure ulcers;
Falls;
Nutrition;
Safeguarding of adults and children;
Dementia;
Clostridium difficile and infection control;
Information governance;
Response to the Francis Inquiry;
The draft quality accounts for 2013/14.

The committee has also taken on board the recommendations of the review undertaken by Deloitte against
Monitor’s quality governance framework (see pages AR111 to AR112 of the annual report), and has reviewed its
role, terms of reference and functioning as an assurance committee, and overseen a similar review of the quality
delivery group.
Remuneration committee
See page AR94 of the annual report.
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Risk committee
The committee is chaired by Richard Gregory, chairman of the Trust. It provides objective assurance to the board
of directors that the processes are in place across the Trust to ensure high quality risk management. In this role
the committee directly reviews the risks linked to strategic objectives three, four and six; it also considers the
risks that are on the high level risk report.
Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference and during the year it has followed a detailed workplan to
ensure all areas have been addressed. It has also received presentations on risk management from key divisions
including:
•
•
•
•
•

women and children’s;
surgical services;
specialist clinical services;
emergency care and medicine;
facilities services

Nominations committee
The board does not have a nominations committee per se but convenes, ad hoc, an appointment committee as
and when required to undertake the process of recruiting to vacancies for executive directors. In 2013/14, an
appointment committee comprising the Trust chairman, the chief executive and other non-executive directors
undertook recruitment to three vacancies for executive directors. Separately, an appointment committee of the
council of governors chaired by the Trust chairman undertook recruitment to one vacancy for a non-executive
director. Both recruitment processes entailed open advertising and the use of a search consultancy.
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Directors’ summary biographies
Chairman: Richard Gregory OBE
Appointed 12 April 2006 to 11 April
2009
Re-appointed 12 April 2009 to 11
April 2012
Re-appointed 12 April 2012 to 11
April 2015

Richard's board experience covers banking, media,
regional development, higher education, innovation and
the arts. As well as chairman of the Trust, he also
represents the FTN on the NHS Leadership Academy
Programme Board. Richard was also a member of the
Foundation Trust Network Board from 2010 to 2013.
Currently he is also senior independent non-executive
director of Clydesdale Bank plc, chair of the risk
committee and a member of the audit committee,
Yorkshire Bank Chair, and a non-executive director of
the parent board for both banks, National Australia
Group Europe Ltd. His executive career was in ITV, with
Granada and Yorkshire Tyne Tees. He was awarded the
OBE in 2004.

Non-Executive Director: Janet
Birkin MBE, JP, DL
Appointed 2 November 2006 to 1
November 2009
Re-appointed 2 November 2009 to 1
November 2012
Re-appointed 2 November 2012 to 1
November 2015

Janet worked for more than thirty years at Marks and
Spencer plc, ending her career as the company's regional
head of human resources for the East Midlands. She was
a member of Derbyshire Police Authority from 2001 to
2010, holding the position of chairman from 2005 to
2010. She served as a county councillor from 1988 to
1992 and a member of the Derbyshire Probation Service
Management Board from 1993 to 1995. Sadly, Janet died
of cancer in May 2013.

Non-Executive Director: Michael
Hall DL, Hon D Univ, FCA, FCMA,
CGMA, FCT
Deputy Chairman and Senior
Independent Director (from 29
November 2006)
Appointed 5 July 2005 to 4 July 2008
Re-appointed 5 July 2008 to 4 July
2011
Re-appointed 5 July 2011 to 4 July
2014

Originally from Manchester, Michael qualified as a
chartered accountant in 1963 and has worked in most
aspects of commercial financial management
culminating in the position as Financial Director of an
international group with a turnover of £200m and 3000
employees. He was deputy vice chancellor of the
University of Derby from 1991 to 2002. His role
encompassed the implementation of a commercial
approach and attitude. Specific responsibilities included
the various facilities provided in the institution to
accommodate the learning process, for example:
catering, facilities, including conferences, estates,
finance, residences, reprographics and rooming.
Following his retirement in 2002, he served as acting
chief executive of Derby Cityscape and chair of Business
Service East Midlands. He subsequently became the first
president of the Derbyshire Chamber of Commerce. He
has served on the national committee of the British
Chamber of Commerce for five years, and chaired their
national audit committee.
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Non-Executive Director: David
Whitney
Appointed 1 August 2006 to 31 July
2009
Re-appointed 1 August 2009 to 31
July 2012
Re-appointed 1 August 2012 to 31
July 2015

David was formerly a director of clinical management at
Keele University, where he was engaged in directing the
clinical leadership programme. He is a non-executive
director of Westfield Contributory Health Scheme and of
One Health Group (Governance).

Non-Executive Director - Linda
Challis
Appointed 1 September 2012 to 31
August 2015

Linda has a successful background in senior human
resources leadership roles in the retail,
telecommunications and utilities sectors, accumulating a
breadth of experience in the strategic development of
people and organisations. Most recently she was group
HR director for United Utilities PLC, a FTSE100 company
where Linda led substantial organisation and cultural
change.

An NHS manager by background, David was a director of
Trent Regional Health Authority from 1985 to 1990 and
chief executive of Central Sheffield University Hospitals
NHS Trust from 1990 to 2001. He is a lay member and
chair of the East Midlands region sub-committee of the
Advisory Committee on Clinical Excellence Awards. He
is currently project director for the Olympic Health
Legacy Programme in Sheffield.

Linda has brought her expertise and influencing skills in a
non-executive capacity to public and not-for-profit
environments. She delivered organisation development
consultancy assignments with non-acute NHS
organisations. She was also for six years until 2011 a nonexecutive director for the University for Industry (UFI)
and Learndirect.
Non-Executive Director: Alison
McKinna,
BSc MCIPS MBA
Appointed 1 September 2012 to 31
August 2015

Alison is currently associate director at Irwin Mitchell
LLP. She was formerly operations director at Tribal a
leading international provider of technology products
and services to the education, learning and training
markets.
Alison has worked in four different industry sectors
including utilities, financial services, insurance and
technology (British Gas 1988-1999, Capital One 19992005, Crawford 2006-2009). Alison served as a nonexecutive director for the Derbyshire County PCT Board
from 2009 and following PCT clustering became a
member of the PCT Cluster Board.
Alison completed her BSc at Durham University and her
MBA at Nottingham University Business School.
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Non-Executive Director: Beverley
Webster OBE
Appointed 1 September 2012 to 31
August 2015

Beverley is director and shareholder of Twins United Ltd
and Malaczynski Burn. She has run her own businesses
throughout her career initially in the manufacture of
mining and construction equipment. She has been
involved in the mining at industry level and was
President of the Association of British Mining Equipment
Companies for six years (1994-2000). Through this work
she was awarded an OBE.
Beverley has held a number of board roles nationally and
locally connecting business and education and with
charitable organisations including Neurocare who
provide technology and research funding to Sheffield
Teaching Hospitals. She is Chairman of UK Careers
Academy Foundation Advisory Board, Charlie’s Trust
Charity and Neurocare; and is a Founder Member of
Inspiring Women.

Non-Executive Director: Dr David
Pickworth
Appointed 1 October 2012 to 30
September 2015

David retired from his practice as a GP in 2012 after 35
years. Alongside his clinical practice he has significant
board experience which includes being a member of the
Local Medical Committee (1978-2001), member and later
non-executive director of North Derbyshire Health
Authority (1988-2001) and board member of The High
Peak and Dales Primary Care Trust (2002-08) where he
was also clinical governance lead for two years. David is
also a mental health assessor for Deprivation of Liberty.

Non-Executive Director: Philip
Severs
Appointed 20 November 2013 to 19
November 2016

Philip Severs has been the Director of Finance at
Sheffield Hallam University since February 2001. He is
responsible for the development and implementation of
financial strategy and leads the Finance team in
providing a full set of financial business support
functions. As a member of the University’s Executive
Philip takes collective responsibility for the University’s
overall strategic direction.
Prior to joining the University, Philip gained substantial
public and private sector experience building a major
part of his career in transport organisations responding
to the privatisation and deregulation agenda. He has
played a central role in driving major corporate change
and, as well as being responsible for finance, has also
held commercial and operational management
responsibilities. Within his previous role, he was Project
Director for the £145m Midland Metro light rail project.
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Philip has held a number of non-executive roles in the
past; these organisations included the Sheffield
Industrial Museum Trust, Futures Homescape Limited
(he was also a member of the Group's Audit Committee),
Derbyshire Community Health Service NHS Trust and,
up until recently, the Northern Consortium UK Limited
(NCUK)
Philip holds a BSc in Mathematics and Economics from
the University of Nottingham, is a fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and a
member of the Chartered Management Institute. He is
married with two daughters and two grandchildren and
lives in Chesterfield.

Chief Executive: Gavin Boyle

Gavin joined the NHS 25 years ago as a general
management trainee in Liverpool. This followed
University and a degree in Biological Sciences, then a
short period working in private industry. He spent the
first part of his NHS life in and around Liverpool in both
primary care and organisations and hospitals, then went
onto Exeter and Winchester where he was responsible for
a broad range of hospital and community services.
More recently he has held Board level posts as director of
operations at the Oxford Radcliffe Trust, the Queens
Medical Centre in Nottingham and at Leeds Teaching
Hospitals. Before moving to Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust Gavin was Chief Executive of
Yeovil District NHS Foundation Trust, a successful
hospital, serving its rural community in Somerset. Gavin
is also the chair of the East Midlands Leadership
Academy.

Interim Chief Nurse: Dr Barbara
Stuttle, CBE
In post until 19 February 2014
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Barbara has a wealth of experience within the NHS that
dating back to 1974. She has gained a local, national and
international reputation for raising standards, delivering
change and driving innovations in patient services.
Barbara led the implementation of nurse and nonmedical prescribing from 1996 across the UK. Barbara
now works out of her own consultancy firm which was set
up in 2011 and has undertaken other chief nurse/director
of nursing positions at NHS Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough and the Local Area Team Nottingham and
Derbyshire. She has also acted as clinical advisor to
Cambridgshire Community Services and reviewed the
District Nurses Services across the North West SHA.
Barbara left the Trust on 19 February 2014 after
completing a handover to the newly appointed director of
nursing and patient care, Lynn Andrews.
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Director of Finance and
Contracting and Deputy Chief
Executive: Paul Briddock BA
(Hons), ACA
In post until 31 January 2014

Paul Briddock joined the Trust in March 2003. He is a
chartered accountant, having trained with Coopers and
Lybrand, where he worked between 1990 and 1994,
qualifying as an accountant in 1993. Paul began his career
in the NHS in 1994, joining Sheffield Children's Hospital
and covering a number of posts, most latterly as their
Director of Finance from 1999 to 2003.
Paul is also a visiting teaching fellow in the Faculty of
Health and Wellbeing at Sheffield Hallam University. He
also sits on a number of national finance groups including
being chair of the HFMA foundation trust payment by
results committee. He left the Trust on 31 January 2014.

Medical Director: Dr Ian Gell MB,
ChB, FRCA

Dr Ian Gell is an anaesthetist appointed to a consultant
post at Chesterfield in 1987. He has a long standing
interest in management and the development of the
Health Service having served on both local and regional
committees prior to assuming the role of clinical director
of critical care in 1995.
Appointed as medical director in summer 2009 Ian,
together with the Director of Nursing and Patient Care, is
also the co-director of the clinical standards and
governance directorate. The directorate is responsible for
research, education, workforce planning and clinical
governance agendas across the organisation. As medical
director he is professionally accountable for the whole
medical workforce and will be the responsible officer for
the organisation with the advent of revalidation for
doctors. Ian is also a governing body member of the
South Derbyshire Commissioning Group.
Born in Nottingham and raised and educated in
Lincolnshire before entering Leeds University Medical
School in 1972, Ian held training posts in various hospitals
in the UK, including Harrogate, Bristol, Bath and Sheffield
and had six months experience of working in a foreign
health service in Vesteras, Sweden, prior to be appointed
consultant anaesthetist in Chesterfield.
He retired from his post on 31 March 2014.
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Director of Facilities: Andrew
Jones

Andrew has been at the Royal since 1 April 1991 initially
as hotel services manager. He is currently the director of
facilities, responsible for the estates and facilities
management functions in the Trust.
As a board member Andrew carries lead responsibility for
areas including food, cleanliness, health and safety, the
estate and procurement. He has led a number of Trust
wide redevelopments including the creation of the new
wards in 2010, the rebuild of the main entrance, the
development of Chesterfield Eye Centre and the
Women’s Health Unit.
Outside of the Royal Andrew contributes to the national
facilities management agenda and was national chair of
Health Estates and Facilities Management Association
(HEFMA) from 2004 – 2006 and has been committee
member, signatory, secretary, vice chair and chair of the
Trent HEFMA branch. In addition he has also been part of
the steering group at Sheffield Hallam University
Facilities Management Graduate Centre.
He is currently president of the Association of Healthcare
Cleaning Professionals having previously been executive
director patron for the Association.

Director of Performance and
Operations:
Nikki Tucker

Nikki's early career was as a Medical Secretary working at
the Royal Free Hospital in London, Chesterfield's 'old'
Royal Hospital and Nottingham City Hospital.
She returned to Chesterfield when the ‘new’ Royal
Hospital opened on the Calow site 1984 and held a variety
of appointments in theatres, surgery and corporate
planning. In 2002 she became corporate director of
planning and performance, a member of the Trust's
Executive Team and an adviser to the board of directors.
She was made executive director of performance and
operations in August 2012. Her role also carried
responsibilities for patient access, major incident
planning, information and IT. With her extensive
knowledge of acute hospital services in Chesterfield,
Nikki also played a major role in contracting,
commissioning, and liaison with external partners.
She retired from the Trust on 31 March 2014.
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Director of Workforce and
Organisational Development:
Nicky Hill

Nicky Hill has spent most of her career in HR at Boots UK,
where she worked for 20 years. Since leaving Boots she
undertook interim assignments at Gala Coral and Rolls
Royce in Derby and joined the Trust in the role of director
of workforce and organisational development at the end
of January 2013.
Nicky has a generalist HR background and has worked in
manufacturing, healthcare and retail. She has worked on
several change programmes at Boots and Rolls Royce and
worked closely with the executive team supporting them
on the overall shape and design of the organisation, the
organisational culture and employee engagement.
Nicky graduated in French and German from the
University of Nottingham in 1986 and then joined
Cadbury Limited in HR, working for them for three and a
half years in various roles covering training, employee
relations and recruitment in their factories in Bournville
and Keynsham. In 1990 she moved to join Boots and has
worked in Boots The Chemists, Boots Opticians, Boots
Manufacturing and the Group HR function covering a
wide variety of HR disciplines.

Director of Nursing and Patient
Care:
Lynn Andrews
Appointed to the board on 3
February 2014

After her training Lynn’s nursing experience was mainly
within critical care. She then had a brief period outside
the NHS as a critical adviser for Boehringer Ingelheim,
before returning to nursing. In 2007 she became nurse
manager at Nottingham City Hospital NHS Trust, and
was also seconded to George Eliot Hospital NHS Trust as
divisional general manager, gaining experience in A&E.
She then moved to North Staffordshire NHS Trust (2002
– 2005) as professional head of nursing, progressing to
assistant director of nursing within a year.
Her next post was at Northampton General Hospital
(2005– 2007), where she held the post of deputy nursing
director. At this time she broadened her career as
assistant director of nursing and patient care for the East
Midland Strategic Health Authority (2007–2012).
Following her secondment to Circle in July 2011, she was
appointed by Circle as lead nurse in April 2012.
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Director of Strategy and
Performance:
Tony Campbell
Appointed to the board on 3
February 2014

Tony trained as a chemist and joined Rolls Royce early in
his career (1983-04), where he developed his leadership
experience, initially as head of airline operations test
support services, then process improvement manager,
before taking up a position as advanced services
manager.
In these roles he led major change programmes for Rolls
Royce, increasing in scale, value and impact. Following
changes in the senior leadership team, Tony looked to
the NHS and was successful in securing a role as general
manager, obstetrics and gynaecology, with Derby
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (2004-06).
He took a promotion with the same Trust becoming
associate director, women and children’s (2006-08),
before accepting a role as director of improvement (200811) at a time when the Trust had no chief operating
officer. The Trust subsequently introduced a different
structure and Tony was successful in being appointed as
divisional director for clinical support services & cancer.

Director of Finance and
Contracting:
Steve Hackett
Appointed to the board on 17
February 2014

Steve began his career at the Doncaster and Montagu
Hospital NHS Trust, one of the first wave trusts, before
moving to the Doncaster Health Authority as finance
director/deputy chief executive of Doncaster West PCG in
1999. He joined Doncaster West PCT in 2001 as director
of finance, IM&T and commissioning/deputy chief
executive and stayed for 5 years. He then moved to NHS
Barnsley as director of finance/director of finance
contracting and performance, which included managing
the internal provider services.
Steve then moved to NHS South Yorkshire and
Bassetlaw, taking on the role of finance director for five
PCTs and, with the creation of NHS England, he moved
into the NHS England, South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw
Area Team as director of finance/director of
commissioning, setting up systems and processes
managing a team of c 75, influencing services in primary,
secondary and tertiary settings.
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Director of Corporate
Administration: Terry Alty

Terry Alty, previously the Trust's executive director of
personnel and hospital services and latterly the Trust’s
corporate secretary, took on the post of director of
corporate administration in February 2013 following a
restructuring of the board of directors. As director of
corporate administration, he is responsible for corporate
governance. He joined the NHS in 1984, after working in
local government and education. He held posts at Trent
Regional Health Authority in public health and policy
development and at North Derbyshire Health Authority in
business planning, commissioning and contract
management. He joined Chesterfield Royal Hospital in
1993.

Register of directors’ interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the board of directors. They must disclose
details of company directorships or other positions held, particularly if they involve companies or organisations
likely to do business, or possibly seeking to do business with the Trust. The public can access the register at:
www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making a request in writing to:
Director of Corporate Administration
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Chesterfield S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: CRHFT.Communications@nhs.net
Contact with the directors
Information to contact members of the board of directors can be found through the Trust’s Freedom of
Information Act publication scheme. All directors can also be contacted at CRHFT.Communications@nhs.net
Board of directors and council of governors
The chairman also chairs the council of governors meetings. This is a unique position which ensures that there is
effective communication between the board and the council. Governors are invited to discuss strategic issues in
detail at the council of governors meetings and advise the chairman of their views. The chairman ensures their
views are considered at the board of directors meeting as part of the decision making process.
Informal joint meetings between the directors and the governors are held twice a year. The non-executive
directors also meet the governors to help promote shared understanding of the non-executive role.
Where a dispute between the council of governors and the board of directors occurs, in the first instance the
chairman of the Trust would endeavour to resolve the dispute.
Should the chairman not be willing or able to resolve the dispute the senior independent director and the deputy
chairman of the council of governors would jointly attempt to resolve the dispute.
Should the senior independent director and the deputy chairman of the council of governors not be able to
resolve the dispute, the board of directors, pursuant to section 15(2) of Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act, would decide
the disputed matter.
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Board of Directors Membership and Attendance - 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014
Notes:
X/y = number of meetings attended out of the total number possible

Council of
Governors

Quality and
Clinical
Governance
Committee

Charitable
Funds
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

9/10

7/7

--

7/7

--

--

5/5

Terry Alty

Director of
Corporate
Administration

8/10

7/7

5/5

6/7

--

--

--

--

Paul Briddock
(until 31 January
2014)

Director of
Finance &
Contracting

8/8

3/7

4/4

--

--

3/3

--

--

John Williams
(from 1 February
to 16 February
2014)

Acting
Director of
Finance &
Contracting

--

1/1

--

--

--

--

--

Steve Hackett
(from 17 February
2014)

Director of
Finance &
Contracting

2/2

1/1

1/1

--

--

1/1

--

--

Ian Gell

Medical
Director

9/10

6/7

--

--

11/12

--

--

--

Barbara Stuttle
(until 19 February
2014)

Interim Chief
Nurse

7/8

4/6

--

--

9/11

--

--

--
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Corporate
Citizenship
Committee

Board of
Directors

Chief Executive

Risk
Committee

Position

Gavin Boyle

Audit
Committee

Name

Bold indicates that the director was a member of the committee; figures not shown in bold indicate that the director was not a member but
in attendance.

Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14

Quality and
Clinical
Governance
Committee

Charitable
Funds
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Corporate
Citizenship
Committee

2/2

--

--

--

Director of
Performance
& Operations

8/9

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

Tony Campbell
(from 3 February
2014)

Director of
Strategy &
Performance

2/2

2/2

--

--

--

--

--

--

Andrew Jones

Director of
Facilities

10/10

6/7

--

--

--

--

--

3/4

Nicky Hill

Director of
Workforce &
Organisational
Development

10/10

5/7

--

--

--

--

5/5

--

Richard Gregory

Chairman

8/10

7/7

--

5/7

--

--

5/5

3/4

Michael Hall

Non-Executive
Director

9/10

4/7

5/5

5/7

--

--

4/5

--

David Whitney

Non-Executive
Director

9/10

2/7

--

3/7

10/12

2/4

2/4

--

Linda Challis

Non-Executive
Director

9/10

6/7

--

--

11/12

--

5/5

--

Alison McKinna

Non-Executive
Director

9/10

3/7

4/5

6/7

--

--

4/4

--

David Pickworth

Non-Executive
Director

9/10

2/7

--

--

10/12

--

3/4

--

Nikki Tucker
(until 14 March
2014)
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Audit
Committee

--

Director of
Nursing & Patient
Care

Council of
Governors

--

Lynn Andrews
(from 3 February
2014)

Board of
Directors

2/2

Position

2/2

Name

Risk
Committee
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Board of
Directors

Council of
Governors

Audit
Committee

Risk
Committee

Quality and
Clinical
Governance
Committee

Charitable Funds
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Corporate
Citizenship
Committee

Beverley Webster

Non-Executive
Director

10/10

6/7

4/5

--

--

4/4

3/4

--

Philip Severs

Non-Executive
Director

3/4

2/3

2/2

--

--

--

1/1

--

Name

Position
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(from 20 November
2013)

Nikki Tucker, Director of Performance & Operations, retired from the Chesterfield Royal Hospital after over 30 years of service.
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Council of Governors
Composition, roles and responsibilities
Every foundation trust is accountable to its local population and staff who have registered for membership. All
foundation trusts are required to have a council of governors.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a council to which 30 members are elected or appointed as
governors. During 2013/14 the council was made up of:
17 public governors

Elected

From five public constituencies.

Four staff governors

Elected

one from medical and dental;
one from nursing and midwifery;
one from allied health professionals,
pharmacists and scientists; and
one from all other staff groups.

Nine partner governors

Appointed

two from clinical commissioning groups;
three from local authorities;
two from the education sector; and
two from the voluntary sector

The council of governors is chaired by the Trust’s chairman, Richard Gregory. The deputy chairman of the council
of governors and lead governor for the Trust is Denise Weremzcuk, public governor.
The council of governors’ prime role is to represent the interests and views of Trust members, the local
community, other stakeholders and the public in general in the stewardship of the Trust. It has a right to be
consulted on the Trust’s strategies and plans and any matter of significance affecting the Trust or the services it
provides.
The council of governors’ roles and responsibilities are outlined in law and are detailed in the Trust’s constitution.
The governors have a number of important responsibilities to perform and are expected to act in the best
interests of the Trust. The council of governors would be expected to inform Monitor if it believed that the Trust
was at risk of breaching its provider licence.
The council of governors is specifically responsible for the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Appointment and removal of the chairman and other non-executive directors;
Approval of the appointment of the chief executive;
Appointment and removal of the Trust’s external auditor;
Receipt of the annual report and accounts;
Approval of changes to the Trust’s constitution (a joint responsibility with the board of directors);
Approval of any proposal by the Trust to enter into a significant transaction;
Approval of any application by the Trust to enter into a merger, acquisition, separation or dissolution; and
Approval of any proposed increase of more than 5% of total income in the amount of the Trust’s income
attributable to activities other than the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health service
in England.
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Link with board of directors
The council of governors holds the board of directors to account for the performance of the Trust. This increases
the level of local accountability in public services.
The council of governors is required to advise the board of directors regarding future plans and strategies and the
monitoring of performance against the Trust’s strategic direction.
By working in partnership with the board of directors, via receipt of significant project information and via
representation on specific groups and committees, the views of governors are taken into consideration in board
of directors’ discussions and decision-making.
To facilitate the board of directors’ understanding of the views of governors and members, an oral update is
provided by the chairman and the minutes of the council of governor meetings are provided to the board of
directors. Additionally, directors are invited to attend council of governors meetings, informal joint meetings of
the governors and directors are held twice yearly, and three meetings of the governors and non-executive
directors take place per year.
Meetings of the council of governors and its committees
Governors’ membership of the council and its committees, and attendance at meetings of the council and its
committees in 2013/14, are set out on pages AR81 to AR82 of the annual report.
Elections
Elections are held each year to fill seats on the council of governors held by public and staff governors whose
current term of office is due to expire. A report on the elections held in 2013/14 can be found on pages AR83 to
AR85 of the annual report.
The following seven governors who had been elected or appointed to the Trust from its authorisation as a
foundation trust in January 2005 came to the end of their full tenure on 31 December 2013, having each served
nine years on the council of governors:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dr Christopher Day, public governor for Chesterfield
Sheila Smith, public governor for Chesterfield
Pamela Wildgoose, public governor for Dales and North Amber Valley
Pauline Fisher, public governor for High Peak
Philip Cousins, staff governor
Joyce Cupitt, partner governor for the voluntary sector
Cllr Carol Walker, partner governor for local authorities

A reception was held for the governors in December 2013 and the chairman of the Trust, Richard Gregory, paid
tribute to the substantial contribution they had made, as ‘founder’ governors, to the development of the council
and the work it had done on behalf of members and the local community.
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Register of governors’ interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the council of governors. Governors must
disclose details of company directorships or other positions held, particularly if they involve companies or
organisations likely to do business, or possibly seeking to do business with the Trust.
The public can access the register at: www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making a request in writing to:
The Director of Corporate Administration
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Chesterfield S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: CRHFT.Communications@nhs.net
Contact with the governors
Information to contact members of the council of governors can be found through the Trust’s Freedom of
Information Act publication scheme. All governors can also be contacted at CRHFT.Communications@nhs.net
Governors’ expenses
Governors are not remunerated, but are entitled to claim expenses for costs incurred while undertaking duties for
the Trust as a governor (e.g. travel expenses to attend council of governors meetings). A total of £2,878 was paid
as expenses to governors in 2013/14 (£1,893 in 2012/13). The number of governors who held office during 2013/14
was 39 (35 during 2012/13).
Committees of the council of governors
The council of governors is supported in its work by the following committees:
• Nominations committee;
• Patient and public involvement committee;
• Outreach committee.
There is also a joint committee of the board of directors and the council of governors, the corporate citizenship
committee.
The membership of the three committees of the council is shown on pages AR81 to AR82 of the annual report.
Nominations committee
The role of the nominations committee is to:
•
•
•
•
•

Oversee the recruitment of non-executive directors undertaken via an appointments committee convened for
the purpose;
Conduct and manage the appraisals of the chairman, non-executive directors and council of governors;
Periodically review and make recommendations to the council of governors on the remuneration of the
chairman and non-executive directors;
Consider and review the position of the governors in respect of any concerns relating to attendance, conduct
or eligibility; and
Carry out any other functions as may be determined by the council of governors from time to time.
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The nominations committee does not have decision-making powers, but will make recommendations for
approval to the council of governors. The committee is chaired by Richard Gregory, the chairman of the Trust.
Members of the committee are appointed, through elections held by the council, for between one and three
years.
During 2013/14 the committee has undertaken the following work:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Participated in the appointment process for a new non-executive director and made recommendations on
the appointments for the council’s approval;
Agreed the appraisal processes for the council of governors, chairman and non-executive directors, and
reviewed a number of reports and made recommendations to the council of governors;
Managed the timetable and process for the appraisals of the chairman and non-executive directors, and the
council of governors;
Reviewed the results of appraisals and agreed the reports for presentation to the council of governors for
review and approval;
Advised the council on the contents of the action plans resulting from the appraisal;
Considered and made recommendations on the annual review of the remuneration of the chairman and
non-executive directors for the current and future years;
Monitored the attendance and conduct of governors;
Considered and made recommendations on the updated standing orders for the council of governors.

Patient and public involvement committee (PPI committee)
The role of the PPI committee is to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Be actively involved in the patient and public involvement national and local agenda;
Review and influence the Trust’s strategy and development plan, and be consulted on changes and
developments;
Ensure that the council of governors is updated on the PPI agenda including feedback from patients and the
public, sharing good practice and action plans developed to improve local services;
Review reports and action plans and scrutinise these to ensure appropriate action has been identified to
support a patient centred approach;
Where required, represent the council of governors on related projects and initiatives e.g. environment
checks, patient meals, staff education; and
Develop links with the Trust’s Assistance and Complaints Service.

The committee is chaired by Barry Whittleston, public governor for Bolsover, and its meetings are also
attended by:
•
•
•
•

Chairman of the Trust
Director of nursing and patient care;
Director of facilities; and
Chair of the quality and clinical governance committee or appointed deputy.

In the event of an officer of the Trust appointed as a member of the committee being unable to attend a meeting,
a nominated deputy can attend as their representative.
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In addition to reporting to the council of governors on the work of the committee, the committee chair attends
the board of directors to present the committee’s minutes and a report on its work.
Members of the committee are appointed, through elections held by the council, for between one and three
years.
During 2013/14 the committee has undertaken the following work:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Managed a regular programme of unannounced ward visits to talk to patients about their experience of being
in hospital. In addition, governors meet with a senior nurse representative following their visits to give
immediate feedback;
Undertaken a regular programme of unannounced ward and department visits to assess cleanliness with
members of the infection, prevention and control team. In addition, members of the committee joined Trust
staff to undertake the Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE) inspection;
Received and discussed reports on complaints and enquiries dealt with by the Assistance and Complaints
Service;
Continued to influence the Trust’s capital programme including the ward upgrade programme;
Representation on the catering development project team and nutrition team which aims to ensure
maximum benefits for patients are achieved from existing catering processes and contracts and undertakes
regular tasting sessions of patient meals, providing feedback and recommendations;
Representation on the dementia strategy group, which aims to develop a strategy to improve the care of
patients with dementia including staff training and awareness to ensure personalisation of care for the
patient;
Received the results of nurse metrics audits and patient experience questionnaires.

Outreach committee
The role of the outreach committee is to:
•
•
•

Review and analyse the Trust’s membership – with governors supporting membership recruitment, retention
and development;
Engage with local forums, groups and organisations to actively promote membership and the work of
governors and the council; and
Develop and encourage two-way dialogue and involvement between the council and its constituency
members.

During 2013/14 the committee has undertaken the following work:
•
•
•
•
•

Published a membership magazine distributed by post or email to the Trust’s membership (15,500
community members and 3,500 staff members);
Hosted governor promotional events in local libraries across constituency areas;
Held a regular programme of ‘drop-in’ days in the Hospital’s main entrances to register new members and
raise awareness of the work of the council;
Hosted several membership events, including patient feeding and mealtimes, urgent care and cancer
services;
Hosted an election evening aimed at enabling potential nominees the opportunity to meet with existing
governors.
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The committee will develop its work in 2014/15, with plans already in place for a full programme of events within
the exhibition area in the main entrance and for future membership evenings during the year.
Corporate citizenship committee
The role of the corporate citizenship committee is to promote the Trust as a good ‘corporate citizen’ and to
oversee the Trust’s approach to carbon management and sustainability, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Carbon management;
Sustainable local food;
Involvement of/and with local business;
Green travel plan;
Waste management;
Procurement.

The membership of the committee includes:
•
•
•
•

The Chairman of the Trust (as committee chair);
Non-executive directors;
Executive directors;
Public and staff governors.

During 2013/14 the committee has undertaken the following work:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Monitored the Trust’s action plan on carbon reduction;
Re-assessed performance against the NHS ‘Good Citizenship’ tool;
Supporting a partnership with the Prince’s Trust for work experience (for the third year in succession);
Supporting the Trust’s apprenticeship scheme;
Supporting the development of Shop@theRoyal as a local business for all users of the Trust and the purchase
of locally sourced products for the shop;
Commented on national initiatives around carbon reduction and information produced by the NHS
Sustainable Development Unit.

Governor involvement in other activities
Research strategy group
Promotion of high quality research for the benefit of patient care and service provision.
Staff recognition awards (STARS) panel
Shortlisting of individual members of staff and teams nominated for an annual recognition award.
Catering
Supporting nutritional menu development in the patient meals service.
Capital development project board
• Creating an ‘Urgent Care Village’ at the front of the site, bringing critical services together under one roof.
• Theatre refurbishment three-year programme
• Cancer Unit development to bring cancer and haematology services together in a purpose-built facility
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@the Royal user group
Examining how to improve, market and promote the services and facilities provided by the on-site convenience
store/newsagents, cafes and 'coffee shops'.
Representing the views of members and the public on the Trust’s plans, priorities and strategies
Through the work undertaken on patient and public involvement, outreach activities, ward visits and contact with
members, governors have listened to members and the public and represented their views to the board through
the council of governors on a wide range of matters relating to the Trust’s forward plans, priorities and strategies.

Our governors can often be found out and about in the hospital talking to patients, staff and visitors about their experiences and
explaining membership and the work of the Trust.
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Corporate Citizenship
Committee

1/1

Outreach Committee

Nominations
Committee

6/7

Patient and Public
Involvement
Committee

Council of Governors

Term of office ends

Term (years)

Appointment from

Vote held

Representing

Name

Governor Attendance at Trust Committees between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014

Public Governors
Alan Craw

Chesterfield

2012

1 January 2013

3

Aileen Dawson-Pilling

Chesterfield

2012

1 January 2013

3

Christopher Day

Chesterfield

2010

1 January 2011

3

Ruth Grice

Chesterfield

2012

1 January 2013

3

David Lyon

Chesterfield

2013

1 January 2014

3

Brian Parsons

Chesterfield

2013

1 January 2014

3

Janet Portman

Chesterfield

2011

1 January 2012

3

Margaret Rotchell

Chesterfield

2013

1 January 2014

3

Sheila Smith

Chesterfield

2010

1 January 2011

3

Toni Bennett

Bolsover

2010

1 January 2011

3

Mark Dixey

Bolsover

2013

1 January 2014

3

Denise Weremczuk

Bolsover

2011

1 January 2012

3

Barry Whittleston

Bolsover

2011

1 January 2012

3

Michael Grundman

2013

1 January 2014

3

2012

1 January 2013

3

2010

1 January 2011

3

Liam Clarke

Derbyshire
Dales
Derbyshire
Dales
Derbyshire
Dales
High Peak

2013

1 January 2014

3

Pauline Fisher

High Peak

2010

1 January 2011

3

John Kirby

North East
Derbyshire
North East
Derbyshire
North East
Derbyshire
North East
Derbyshire

2012

22 July 2012

2013

1 January 2014

2 yrs
5 months
3

2012

1 January 2013

3

2012

1 January 2013

3

Brenda Slavin
(resigned February 13)
Pamela Wildgoose

Mike Gibbons
Derek Millington
Bernard Everett
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31 December
2015
31 December
2015
31 December
2013
31 December
2015
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2014
31 December
2016
31 December
2013
31 December
2013
31 December
2016
31 December
2014
31 December
2014
31 December
2016
31 December
2015
31 December
2013
31 December
2016
31 December
2013
31 December
2014
31 December
2016
31 December
2015
31 December
2015

3/7

3/4

5/5

3/3

7/7
1/2

3/4

3/4
1/1

7/7

1/1

7/7

1/1

3/4

2/2
5/5

4/4

2/3

3/5

2/4

3/3

1/5
1/2
6/7
7/7

4/4

4/4

2/2
4/6

5/5

4/5

4/4

3/3

2/2

1/1

1/1

3/5

3/4

2/3

6/7

1/1

6/7

4/4
1/1

6/7
7/7

2/4
4/4

4/4

4/4
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4/4

3/3
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Committee

Council of Governors
5/5

Outreach Committee

Term of office ends
31 December
2013
31 December
2016
31 December
2014
31 December
2016
31 December
2013
31 December
2014

Term (years)

Appointment from

Vote held

Representing

Name
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Staff Governors
Philip Cousins

All Other Staff

2010

1 January 2011

3

Jackie Crampton

All other staff

2013

1 January 2014

3

Janice Smith

Nursing &
Midwifery
Medical &
Dental
Medical &
Dental
Allied health
professionals,
pharmacists &
scientists

2012

13 July 2012

2013

1 January 2014

2 yrs
5 months
3

2010

1 January 2011

3

2011

1 January 2012

3

Jeremy Groves
Manu Mathew
Tina Shewring
(retired August 2013)

2/2

1/1

6/7

0/1

2/2

1/1

1/5

1/4

4/4

1/2

0/3

Partner Governors
Joyce Cupitt

-

1 January 2011

3

-

1 January 2014

3

-

1 January 2014

3

-

1 January 2014

3

-

1 January 2014

3

Cllr David Allen

Voluntary
Sector
Voluntary
sector
Voluntary
sector
University of
Derby
University of
Sheffield
Local Authority

-

1 January 2013

3

Cllr Ray Russell

Local Authority

-

1 October 2011

3

Cllr Carol Walker

Local Authority

-

1 January 2011

3

Cllr Eion Watts

Local Authority

-

1 January 2014

3

Jayne Stringfellow

North
Derbyshire
Clinical
Commissioning
Group
Hardwick
Health Clinical
Commissioning
Group

-

1 March 2013

3

-

1 April 2013

3

Lynn Tory
John Wardle
Wendy Wesson
Tracey Moore

Steve Lloyd
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31 December
2013
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2015
30 September
2014
31 December
2013
31 December
2016
28 February
2015

2/5

31 March 2015

3/7

1/3

1/2
7/7

1/1
5/5

3/4

2/6
5/7

3/4

1/7

0/4

7/7
4/5

4/4

1/2
5/7

1/1

1/2

Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14

compassion  achievement  relationships  environment

Election of governors 2013/14
Public constituency – November 2013
This year, because of staggered appointments put in place when the Trust was authorised as a foundation trust (1
January 2005), the following public governor seats fell vacant:
•
•
•
•
•

one seat for the Bolsover constituency;
three seats for the Chesterfield constituency;
one seat for the Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley constituency;
one seat for the North East Derbyshire constituency; and
one seat for the High Peak constituency.

Staff constituency – November 2013
Elections were held for staff governors to represent the following constituencies:
•
•

one seat for the All other staff constituency; and
one seat for the Medical and Dental constituency.

Election turnout rates
The Trust has always had good interest in and a fair turnout for elections - and for 2013/14 rates were as follows:
Public governor elections:
Constituency
Bolsover
Chesterfield
Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley
North East Derbyshire
High Peak

No of seats
1
3
1
1
1

No of candidates
3
11
5
5
1

% Turnout at poll
24.9%
24.1%
26.4%
28.6%
Uncontested

The new governors took up their seats on the council on 1 January 2014 and all appointments were made for a
three-year term ending on 31 December 2016. One of the seven seats went to an existing public governor who
had opted to stand for re-election.
Public governor results:
Constituency
Bolsover
Chesterfield

No of seats
1
3

Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley
North East Derbyshire
High Peak

1
1
1
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Successful candidates
Mark Dixey
Margaret Rotchell
David Lyon
Brian Parsons
Michael Grundman
Michael Gibbons
Liam Clarke
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Staff elections:
In November 2013, the Trust sought nominations for the vacant seats in the All Other Staff and Medical and
Dental constituencies.
The deadline for nominations was noon on Thursday 17 October 2013. The Medical and Dental constituency was
not contested and therefore the nominated staff governor for this constituency was elected unopposed.
Constituency
All Other Staff
Medical and Dental

No of seats
1
1

No of candidates
2
1

% Turnout at poll
17.5%
Uncontested

The appointments were made for a three-year term, ending on 31 December 2016.
Staff governor results
Constituency
All Other Staff
Medical and Dental

No of seats
1
1

Successful candidates
Jacqueline Crampton
Jeremy Groves

Board assurance
The board of directors confirms that elections were held in accordance with the rules stated within the Trust’s
constitution. This is verified in the election reports of 25 October 2013 and 4 December 2013, as follows:
Election to the Council of Governors 2013: Uncontested report
Further to the deadline for nominations for the above election at noon on Thursday 17th October 2013, the following
constituencies are uncontested:
Public: High Peak
1 to elect
The following candidate is elected unopposed: Liam J. Clarke

Staff: Medical and Dental
1 to elect
The following candidate is elected unopposed: Jeremy B Groves

Elections are to take place in the following constituencies
• Public: Bolsover
• Public: Chesterfield
• Public: Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley
• Public: North East Derbyshire
• Staff: All Other Staff
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John Box
Returning Officer
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Election to the Council of Governors 2013: Contested report
My report of voting in the above election, which closed at 5pm on Tuesday 3 December 2013.
Electoral Reform Services can confirm that, as far as reasonably practicable, every person whose name appeared on
the electoral roll supplied to us for the purpose of the ballot:a) was sent the details of the ballot; and
b) if they chose to participate in the ballot, had their vote fairly and accurately recorded.
The elections were conducted in accordance with the rules and constitutional arrangements as set out previously by
the trust, and ERS is satisfied that these were in accordance with accepted good electoral practice.’
Yours sincerely

John Box
Returning Officer
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Promoting elections
The Trust continued to work to promote its annual elections and to encourage greater interest and turnout.
During the year it:
•
•
•

Worked with Electoral Reform Services (the Trust’s independent scrutineers) to adopt fair electoral processes
that encourage participation of all active members;
Worked with local media and other organisations to feature elections and the public governor role in
newspaper, magazine and radio media; and
Ensured all members were fully informed about elections and had the opportunity to stand for a governor
seat.
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Code of Governance
Monitor’s code of governance was revised in 2010 and updated most recently in December 2013.
Foundation trusts in their annual reports are required to disclose information relating to the code’s requirements.
For each item below, the information, its reference in the code of governance and its location within the annual
report are shown. The reference ‘ARM’ indicates a requirement not of the code but of the Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor.
Reference

Information

Location

A.1.1

The schedule of matters reserved for the board of directors should include a
clear statement detailing the roles and responsibilities of the council of
governors. This statement should also describe how any disagreements
between the council of governors and the board of directors will be resolved.
The annual report should include this schedule of matters or a summary
statement of how the board of directors and the council of governors
operate, including a summary of the types of decisions to be taken by each of
the boards and which are delegated to the executive management of the
board of directors.

Page AR69

B.3.1

A chairman’s other significant commitments should be disclosed to the
council of governors before appointment and included in the annual report.
Changes to such commitments should be reported to the council of
governors as they arise, and included in the next annual report

Page AR61

B.5.6

Governors should canvass the opinion of the Trust’s members and the public,
and for appointed governors the body they represent, on the NHS
foundation trust’s forward plan, including its objectives, priorities and
strategy, and their views should be communicated to the board of directors.
The annual report should contain a statement as to how this requirement has
been undertaken and satisfied.

Page AR80

ARM

If, during the financial year, the Governors have exercised their power* under This power has
paragraph 10C** of schedule 7 of the NHS Act 2006, then information on this not been
must be included in the annual report. This is required by paragraph 26(2)(aa) exercised
of schedule 7 to the NHS Act 2006, as amended by section 151 (8) of the
Health and Social Care Act 2012.
* Power to require one or more of the directors to attend a governors’
meeting for the purpose of obtaining information about the foundation
trust’s performance of its functions or the directors’ performance of their
duties (and deciding whether to propose a vote on the foundation trust’s or
directors’ performance).
** As inserted by section 151 (6) of the Health and Social Care Act 2012)
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B.6.1

The board of directors should state in the annual report how performance
evaluation of the board, its committees, and its directors, including the
chairperson, has been conducted.

Page AR57

B.6.2

Where there has been external evaluation of the board, the external
facilitator should be identified in the annual report and a statement made as
to whether they have any other connection to the Trust.

There has been
no external
evaluation of
the board

C.1.1

The directors should explain in the annual report their responsibility for
preparing the annual report and accounts, and state that they consider the
annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for patients,
regulators and other stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s
performance, business model and strategy.

Page AR45

Directors should also explain their approach to quality governance in the
Annual Governance Statement (within the annual report).

Pages AR111 to
AR112

C.2.1

The annual report should contain a statement that the board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal controls.

Page AR58

C.2.2

A trust should disclose in the annual report:

Page AR58

(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is structured and what
role it performs; or
(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact and the processes it
employs for evaluating and continually improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control processes.
C.3.5
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If the council of governors does not accept the audit committee’s
recommendation on the appointment, reappointment or removal of an
external auditor, the board of directors should include in the annual report a
statement from the audit committee explaining the recommendation and
should set out reasons why the council of governors has taken a different
position.

This has not
arisen during
2013/14
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C.3.9

A separate section of the annual report should describe the work of the audit
committee in discharging its responsibilities. The report should include:

•
•

•

Pages AR52 and
AR58

the significant issues that the committee considered in relation to
financial statements, operations and compliance, and how these issues
were addressed;
an explanation of how it has assessed the effectiveness of the external
audit process and the approach taken to the appointment or reappointment of the external auditor, the value of external audit services
and information on the length of tenure of the current audit firm and
when a tender was last conducted; and
if the external auditor provides non-audit services, the value of the nonaudit services provided and an explanation of how auditor objectivity and
independence are safeguarded.

D.1.3

Where an NHS foundation trust releases an executive director, for example
to serve as a non-executive director elsewhere, the remuneration disclosures
of the annual report should include a statement of whether or not the
director will retain such earnings.

This has not
arisen during
2013/14

E.1.5

The board of directors should state in the annual report the steps they have
taken to ensure that the members of the board, and in particular the nonexecutive directors, develop an understanding of the views of governors and
members about the NHS foundation trust, for example through attendance
at meetings of the council of governors, direct face-to-face contact, surveys
of members’ opinions and consultations.

Pages AR57 and
AR75

E.1.6

The board of directors should monitor how representative the NHS
foundation trust's membership is and the level and effectiveness of member
engagement and report on this in the annual report.

Pages AR90 to
AR93

E.1.5

Contact procedures for members who wish to communicate with governors
and/or directors should be made clearly available to members on the NHS
foundation trust's website and in the annual report.

Pages AR69 and
AR76

ARM

The annual report should include:

Pages AR90 to
AR93

•
•
•
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Brief description of the eligibility requirements for joining different
membership constituencies, including the boundaries for public
membership;
Information on the number of members and the number of members in
each constituency; and
Summary of the membership strategy, an assessment of the
membership and a description of any steps taken during the year to
ensure a representative membership including progress towards any
recruitment targets for members.
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ARM

The annual report should disclose details of company directorships or other
material interests in companies held by governors and/or directors where
those companies or related parties are likely to do business, or are possibly
seeking to do business, with the NHS foundation trust. As each NHS
foundation trust must have registers of governors’ and directors’ interests
which are available to the public, an alternative disclosure is for the annual
report to simply state how members of the public can gain access to the
registers instead of listing all the interests in the annual report.

Pages AR69 and
AR76

The board of directors confirms that in relation to those provisions within the code for which the Trust is required
to ‘comply or explain’, the Trust was complaint:
•

throughout the year to 31 March 2014 in respect of those provisions of the revised code which had effect
during that time; and

•

from 1 January 2014 in respect of those provisions of the revised code which only took effect from that date;

-save for the following exceptions, which the code requires the Trust to disclose:
B.1.2 - The Trust’s constitution (as agreed by Monitor) allows for an equal number of executive directors and nonexecutive directors (including the chairman). In the event that the number of non-executive directors (including
the chairman) is equal to the number of executive directors, the chairman has a second and casting vote at
meetings of the board of directors where the number of votes for and against a motion would otherwise be equal.
B.6.6 - There is a procedure in the constitution which deals with the removal of any governor on the grounds
stipulated in this section. This provides for any governor who disagrees with the decision to remove them to have
the right of representation to the council but it leaves to the council the final decision in the matter. It is felt that
the council should retain this, in order to promote effective governance. It is not felt that the involvement of an
external assessor is warranted.
B.7.1 - The Trust does not believe it necessary to adopt a policy of annual reappointments in a final term which
could be destabilising for individual non-executive directors and the Trust, recognising that the Trust already had
the ability to allow one, two or three year terms as required.
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Membership
Community membership overview 2013/14
The Trust has only two membership constituencies – one each for the community and its staff. It does not host a
patient constituency.
Our community membership – overall size and movements in 2013/14

At year start (1 April 2013)
New members
Members leaving
At year-end (31 March 2014)

Last year
16,988
385
1,814

Estimated for next year
15559
400
350

15,559

15,609

At 1 April 2014, the Trust had a community membership base of 15,559. In January 2014, as part of a data quality
exercise, the Trust undertook a cleanse of its membership database to identify members that had left the
catchment area, are deceased or that no longer wished to be members. In 2014/15 the Trust will aim to increase
membership by around 400 and aim to stabilise numbers at around 15,500.
Constituencies
The Trust’s public constituency is defined in terms of specific wards of local authorities within Derbyshire with
more than 460,000 people eligible for Foundation Trust membership (i.e. those over the age of 16 who live within
the defined area of the Trust).
Residents of the following local government administrative areas currently qualify for membership of the NHS
Foundation Trust:
Chesterfield Borough

All council wards

Bolsover District

All council wards

North-East Derbyshire District

All council wards

Derbyshire Dales District and Amber
Valley District

The council wards of Alfreton, Alport, Belper Central, Belper East, Belper
North, Belper South, Bakewell, Bradwell, Calver, Carsington Water,
Chatsworth, Crich, Darley Dale, Dovedale and Parwich, Hartington and
Taddington, Hathersage and Eyam, Heage and Ambergate, Ironville and
Riddings, Lathkill and Bradford, Litton and Longstone, Masson, Matlock All
Saints, Matlock St Giles, Ripley, Ripley and Marehay, Somercotes, Stanton,
Swanwick, Tideswell, Wirksworth, Wingfield, Winster and South Darley

High Peak Borough

The council wards of Barms, Blackbrook, Burbage, Buxton Central, Chapel
East, Chapel West, Corbar, Cote Heath, Hayfield, Hope Valley, Limestone
Peak, New Mills East, New Mills West, Sett, Stone Bench, Temple and
Whaley Bridge
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Membership analysis
The following analysis breaks down the Trust’s membership in terms of age, ethnicity, gender and socioeconomic groupings, which helps us to determine if our membership is representative of the population we serve.
The Trust membership is around 3% of its eligible population.

Age report
0-16*
17-21
22+
Age not provided by member
Total
Ethnicity report
White
Mixed
Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British
Other
Ethnicity not provided by member
Total
Gender report
Male
Female
Gender not provided by member
Total
Socio-Economic report**
AB
C1
C2
DE
Unknown
Total

31 March 2014
actual members

31 March 2014
eligible membership

0
27
13,992
1,541
15,559

5482
22,701
435,594
0
463,777

11,645
18
75
37
3
3,781
15,559

453,922
3,803
4,083
1,513
456
0
463,777

6,439
8,132
988
15,559

230,481
233,296
0
463,777

2,417
5,258
5,679
2,129
76
15,559

69,943
95,588
62,774
130,478
104,994
463,777

* members of the foundation trust must be aged 16+
** The Trust does not approach its membership for this data. We use ACORN - a geo-demographic tool used to identify and
understand the UK population and the demand for products and services. It is often used to make informed decisions on where direct
marketing campaigns will be most effective. ACORN classifies all 1.9 million UK postcodes, which have been described using over 125
demographic statistics and 287 lifestyle variables within England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.
From this classification we can see that our membership has limited social grade groupings.

AR Page 91

Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14

compassion  achievement  relationships  environment

Staff membership overview 2013/14
Staff membership at 31 March 2014
3748

Eligible membership
3752

The staff constituency comprises:
•
•

Permanent members of staff; and
Temporary members of staff who have been employed in any capacity by the organisation for a minimum
continuous period of one year.

For directly employed staff membership runs on an opt-out basis – ie. all qualifying staff are automatically
members unless they seek to opt out. All permanent contract holders are eligible for membership from the date
they take up their employment.
The staff constituency is broken down into four classes:
•
•
•
•

Medical and Dental staff
Nursing and Midwifery staff
Allied Health Professionals, Pharmacists and Scientists
All Other Staff

By sub-dividing the staff constituency in this way, representation from each major staff grouping is possible.
Breakdown of staff membership within constituencies:
Constituency
Medical and Dental
Nursing and Midwifery
Allied Health Professionals, Pharmacists and Scientists
All Other Staff
Total

Number of members (at 31 March 2014)
366
1602
563
1217
3748

Class
Medical and Dental
Nursing and Midwifery
Allied Health Professionals, Pharmacists and Scientists
All Other Staff
Total

Membership %
9.8
43.0
15.0
32.2
100.0

Developing a representative membership
The prime source for recruiting members is, and remains, those people who have an existing relationship with the
Royal Hospital. This could be as past and present patients or carers, or those who are potential users of the
service as residents of North Derbyshire (or the Trust’s defined catchment area).
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Membership recruitment objectives
The Trust continues to believe that membership should be ‘voluntary’ - to show definite willing and interested
participation. Our membership recruitment objectives are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

To ensure all current and future staff working for the Trust (including contracted-out staff) are aware of staff
membership, what it means for them and to encourage them not to decline membership;
To strive to for the composition of community membership to reflect diversity - geographically spread across
our proposed catchment area and reflecting age, gender, ethnicity and socio-economic groups;
To keep accurate and informative databases of members to meet regulatory requirements and to provide a
tool for membership development;
To define the right and responsibilities of membership to strengthen the partnership between the Trust, its
governors and its members;
To recognise and use members as a valuable resource;
To provide targeted communications that offer timely, consistent and regular messages about the Trust and
membership;
To use various methods to deliver the message about membership;
To set up a two-way feedback system, so staff and community members have suitable channels to feedback
their ideas and concerns, raise issues, ask questions and find out more information.

Engaging our membership
The Trust now has 15,559 local people registered as members (including affiliates) and a further 3,748 staff
members. This is an audience of over 19,000 people to seek views and opinions from. It is vital that both the Trust
and governors are able to reach and interact with this large audience.
Responsibility for membership engagement falls to the council of governors’ outreach committee. Last year,
members had an opportunity to get involved with, or participate in a range of events.
This year, plans to keep members informed and involved include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continuing to produce a quarterly newsletter (with content for all issues determined by the outreach
committee);
Promoting membership and the role of governors within the Trust - to patients and visitors through
promotional materials and ‘ambush’ days;
Running at least two membership evenings each year – where members can meet Governors and hear about
a topic or service;
Attending prominent local events, where appropriate, across North Derbyshire;
Promoting the Annual Members’ Meeting
Producing information leaflets that promote the role of governors and how they represent local people and
members;
Promoting the annual council of governor elections to ensure a good candidate spread and an increased
turn-out for voting;
Tapping into other local ‘markets’ to promote membership within communities.

Direct contacts
Members have a direct route they can use if they wish to communicate with governors or directors of the Trust.
Governors can be reached through the Trust’s communications department, either by phone, letter or via email
to: CRHFT.governors@nhs.net
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Remuneration report
Introduction
This report contains details of how the remuneration of senior managers is determined. A ‘senior manager’ is
defined as ‘those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the
major activities of the Trust. The Trust deems this to be the executive and non-executive members of the board
of directors.
Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee is chaired by Linda Challis, non-executive director, and has delegated responsibility
for the remuneration and terms of service for the chief executive and executive directors of the Trust. Its
responsibility includes all aspects of salary, provision for other benefits including pensions, arrangements for
termination of employment and other contractual terms. The nomination and selection of candidates for
appointment as chief executive or executive director is undertaken separately by an appointment committee.
The membership of the remuneration committee consisted of all the non-executive directors, as set out on pages
AR70 to AR72 of the annual report. The committee met on five occasions during the year.
The key items of business in the year were determining the remuneration for appointment to vacant executive
director posts and considering wider succession planning.
The chief executive and the director of workforce and organisational development were in attendance at
meetings of the committee to provide advice, but did not participate in any part of a meeting where matters
related to their own remuneration were discussed.
The remuneration committee did not receive any external advice.
Remuneration policy
With the exception of the chief executive and the executive directors, all non-medical employees of the Trust,
including senior managers, are remunerated in accordance with the national NHS pay structure, Agenda for
Change. Medical staff are remunerated in accordance with national terms and conditions of service for doctors
and dentists.
The remuneration of the chief executive and the seven other executive directors is determined by the
remuneration committee (see above) taking into account market levels, key skills, performance and
responsibilities.
The chief executive and the six other whole-time executive directors are paid a flat rate salary within the range
determined by the remuneration committee. The part-time executive director (medical director) is paid a flat
rate within the range determined by the remuneration committee, which is separate from the postholder’s salary
as a medical practitioner.
In reviewing remuneration, the committee has regard to the Trust’s overall performance, delivery of agreed
objectives, the pattern of executive remuneration among foundation trusts and the wider NHS, and the individual
director’s level of experience and development in the role. The annual review comprises, where applicable, a cost
of living uplift (which is the same as that for staff on Agenda for Change) and, at the committee’s discretion,
progression within the range set for the post by the committee.
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The Trust does not operate performance related-pay or bonuses. The performance of the executive directors is
assessed on a continuing basis via formal appraisal and unsatisfactory performance may provide grounds for
termination of contract. This will continue to be the Trust’s policy on the remuneration of the chief executive and
executive directors during 2014/15.
The ‘service contract’ for the chief executive and executive directors is the contract of employment. This is
substantive and continues until the director reaches the age of sixty-five, when it terminates automatically unless
there is agreement to extend it. Otherwise, the notice period for termination by the Trust is twelve months and
for termination by the director, six months. The contract does not provide for any other termination payments.
Details of the service contract for each executive director as at 31 March 2014:
Post title

From

Unexpired terms (years)*
0 -10

11-20


Chief Executive

26.03.12

Director of Finance and Contracting

17.02.14

Director of Nursing and Patient Care

03.02.14

Director of Corporate Administration

13.12.93



Medical Director

01.10.09



Director of Strategy and Performance

03.02.14



Director of Facilities

03.08.12



Director of Workforce and Organisational Development

27.01.13



21-30




*This distribution is shown because the directors have not given consent for their age to be disclosed.

The provisions for compensation for early retirement and redundancy are as set out in section 16 of the Agenda
for Change: NHS Terms and Conditions of Service Handbook.
Remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors
The nominations committee of the council of governors has responsibility for the appointment, remuneration
and appraisal of the chairman and non-executive directors. Full details of membership and of the work
undertaken by the committee during 2013/14 may be found on pages AR76 to AR77 of the annual report. This
work included:
• A review of the appraisal systems for the council of governors, chairman and non-executive directors; and an
overview of these processes within year; and
• Consideration of and recommendations to the council of governors on the annual review of the
remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors for the current and future years.
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Assessment of performance of senior managers
Individual performance is reviewed through the Trust’s appraisal process to evaluate the extent to which senior
managers have met their objectives and contributed to the delivery of the Trust’s strategic objectives.
Salary and allowances of senior managers
To avoid unnecessary duplication, the disclosure requirements on the salary and allowances of senior
managers, as set out in paragraphs 7.41 to 7.71 of the Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual for 2013/14,
are as shown on pages 22 to 26 of the annual accounts and financial statements in the last section of this
annual report. The figures relate to those individuals who have held office as a senior manager of the Trust
during the reporting year.
Directors’ expenses
A total of £17,052 was paid as expenses to executive and non-executive directors in 2013/14 (£17,868 in
2012/13). The number of directors who held office during 2013/14 was 21 (18 during 2012/13).
Payments to past senior managers
No payments or awards were made to past senior managers.
Off-payroll arrangements
Table 1: For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2014, for more than £220 per day and that last for
longer than six months:
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2014
Number that have existed for less than one year at the time of reporting
Number that have existed for between one and two years at the time of reporting
Number that have existed for between two and three years at the time of reporting
Number that have existed for between three and four years at the time of reporting
Number that have existed for four or more years at the time of reporting
Confirmation that all existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have at some
point been subject to a risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that
the individual is paying the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance
has been sought

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Not applicable
because of nil
returns

Table 2: For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April
2013 and 31 March 2014, for more than £220 per day and that last for longer than six months:
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1
April 2013 and 31 March 2014
Number of the above which include contractual clauses giving the Trust the right to
request assurance in relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations
Number for whom assurance has been requested
Of which...
Number for whom assurance has been received
Number for whom assurance has not been received
Number that have been terminated as a result of assurance not being received
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Table 3: For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial
responsibility, between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014:
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with
significant financial responsibility, during the financial year
Number of individuals that have been deemed “board members and/or senior officials
with significant financial responsibility” during the financial year. This figure should
include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements

One**
(as per table 2)
Twenty one

**The Trust had one off-payroll engagement relating to the appointment of an interim chief nurse, Dr Barbara Stuttle, to cover the post of
chief nurse which fell vacant at short notice. Dr Stuttle’s appointment was on an off-payroll engagement basis from 25 February 2013 to 24
August 2013. From 25 August 2013 until 19 February 2014, when she left the Trust, Dr Stuttle was on the Trust’s payroll.

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
27 May 2014
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust

Statement of the
Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as
Accounting Officer
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Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the
Accounting Officer of
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation Trust. The
relevant responsibilities of Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and regularity of
public finances for which they are answerable, and the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for
each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Chesterfield
Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and
cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
•
•
•
•
•

Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements;
Ensure that the use of public funds complies with relevant legislation, delegated authorities and guidance;
and
Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable him/her to ensure that the
accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor's NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
27 May 2014
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Annual Governance Statement 2013/14
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Annual Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds
and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to
me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically
and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the
NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
There are external arrangements in place for working with partner organisations. Those operating at Chief
Executive level include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

East Midlands Leadership Academy Board
East Midlands Acute Trust Chief Executives’ Partnership;
Derbyshire Health and Wellbeing Board
South Yorkshire Mid Yorkshire North Derbyshire (SYMYND) Working Together Group
21st Century Transformation Programme Board
Derbyshire Chief Executives’ Group; and
Foundation Trust Network group for Chairmen and Chief Executives.

There are similar arrangements in place for working with partner organisations that operate at Director level for
finance, business and service planning, quality governance and communications.
Purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of the Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. This system of internal control has been
in place in Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date
of approval of the annual report and accounts.
Capacity to handle risk
The board of directors is responsible for the management of key risks. The key areas of those risks are managed
through:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Strategic business risk management;
Integration of risk management;
Board assurance framework;
Trust risk register;
Financial risk management;
Compliance with targets.

The board of directors receives details of key risks through regular board reports.
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The high level risk report identifies all high level risks for the Trust with the monthly finance and activity report
recording all key financial risks. The performance report records all key operational risks and the clinical
performance report records performance against key clinical quality indicators.
The board of directors also addresses the risks when self-assessment documentation is completed for Monitor.
This arrangement ensures that the board of directors understands the strategic business risks to the Trust in the
context of the Trust’s strategic direction.
The risk committee, whose membership comprises the Chairman of the Trust, the chairs of the Trust’s audit and
the quality and clinical governance committees, another non-executive director and the chief executive, is a
board committee responsible for reviewing risks and providing additional assurance to the board of directors on
the key risks in the organisation. The Trust’s high level risk report is discussed at every risk committee meeting
and is a standing item for all board of director meetings.
All the board assurance committees receive reports showing the risks against the strategic objectives of the Trust
which are aligned to each committee’s terms of reference. The Trust’s six strategic objectives are:
1: Provide high quality, safe and person-centred care;
2: Deliver sustainable, appropriate and high-performing services;
3: Developing existing and creating new partnerships for the benefit of patients;
4: Support and develop our staff;
5: Manage our money wisely, foster innovation and improve efficiency;
6: Provide an infrastructure to support delivery.
The quality and clinical governance committee reviews the risk associated with strategic objectives one and two,
the audit committee reviews the risk associated with strategic objective five, and the risk committee reviews the
risk associated with strategic objectives three, four and six.
The board of directors and its committees also approve and regularly review the board assurance framework to
assess progress against the strategic objectives of the Trust.
The board of directors is supported by four committees (each chaired by a non-executive director together with
other non-executive director members) that ensure effective monitoring and assurance arrangements for the
system of internal control. These, and their key responsibilities, are set out below:
Audit committee
• Provide assurance to the board about the soundness of overall systems for governance and internal control.
• Financial risk management.
• Review allocated strategic objectives risks.
Risk committee
• Consider high level risks in detail.
• Ensure soundness of overall system of risk management.
• Provide assurance to the board of directors about the key risks.
• Review allocated strategic objectives risks.
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Quality and clinical governance committee
• Clinical risk assurance.
• Quality governance.
• Review allocated strategic objectives risks.
Remuneration committee
• Review and determine the executive directors’ remuneration package;
• Review and determine succession plans for the executive director posts.
Charitable funds committee
• Review and approve the use of the Trust’s charitable funds.
The minutes, an assurance report and other key documents that have been discussed at these committees are
submitted to the board of directors meeting.
Leadership of the risk management process
The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the management of risk of the Trust. The other members of the
Executive Team exercise lead responsibility for the specific types of risk as follows:





Clinical risk
Operational risk
Business risk
Financial risk

Director of nursing and patient care and medical director
Director of facilities
Director of strategy and performance
Director of finance and contracting

The role of the directors is to ensure that appropriate arrangements and systems are in place to achieve:
•
•
•
•

Identification and assessment of risks or hazards;
Elimination or reduction of risk to an acceptable level;
Compliance with internal policies and procedures, and statutory and external requirements; and
Integration of functional risk management systems and development of the assurance framework.

These responsibilities are managed operationally through the risk system manager supporting the directors and
working with designated lead managers in the clinical divisions.
Staff empowerment and training (risk management)
Staff are equipped to manage risk in a variety of ways and at different levels of strategic and operational
functioning. These include:
•

Formal in-house training for staff as a whole in dealing with specific everyday risks, e.g. fire safety, health and
safety, moving and handling, infection control, security;

•

Training and induction in incident investigation, including documentation, root cause analysis, steps to
prevent or minimise recurrence and reporting requirements; and

•

Developing shared understanding of broader business, financial, environmental and clinical risks through
collegiate clinical, professional and managerial groups (such as the performance delivery group and the
quality delivery group) and sharing good practice through appropriate forums such as the Foundation Trust
Network.
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A number of forums exist that allow communication with stakeholders including
•
•
•
•

Council of governors;
Partner organisations;
Staff;
Public and service users.

Communications with these bodies is key in ensuring risks identified by stakeholders that affect the Trust can be
assessed, discussed and where appropriate action plans can be developed to resolve any issues.
Such communication opportunities include
Council of governors
The council has a formal role as a stakeholder body for the wider community in the governance of the Trust.
•
•
•

Regular newsletters;
Events including the Annual Members’ Meeting/Annual General Meeting;
Minutes of the council of governors meetings.

Staff
• Payslip bulletin and electronic newsletter;
• Staff meetings and team briefings;
• Annual statement on the ‘fair blame’ policy on incident reporting; and
• Staff surveys.
Public and service users
• Patient surveys and face to face interviews;
• Assistance and Complaints Service;
• Patient forum; and
• Meetings with voluntary and self-help groups.
Partner organisations
• Clinical commissioning groups, voluntary sector and universities;
• Other health and social care community (e.g. East Midlands Chief Executives’ Forum); and
• Clinical and professional networks in East Midlands.
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Risk and control framework
Policy for the management of risk
The Trust has a strategic document called the Policy for the Management of Risk in place, which is endorsed by
the board of directors. The policy defines risk and the Trust’s risk appetite and identifies individual and collective
responsibility for risk management within the organisation. It also sets out the Trust’s approach to the
identification, assessment, scoring, treatment and monitoring of risk. The policy:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Defines the objectives of risk management and the process and structure by which it is undertaken;
Defines the Trust’s risk appetite which articulates the content and range of risk(s) that the Trust might take.
In its consideration of this range the Trust holds paramount its objective for providing high quality care and
services for its patients and the community;
Sets out the lead responsibilities and the organisational arrangements as to how these are discharged;
Sets out the key policies, procedures and protocols governing risk management; and
Identifies the link between directorate and corporate risk management and
Ensures the Trust complies with the NHSLA risk requirements.

The risk grading matrix uses an NHS common scoring approach that is a symmetrical scoring matrix, where risk is
calculated as the product of consequence multiplied by likelihood, often referred to as the 5 x 5 matrix (scores 125). The principle underpinning this approach is the higher the final score the greater the risk.
All risks are entered onto the Datix risk management system which is used to produce reports for all levels of
management, the assurance committees, the council of governors and the board of directors. Each score on the
matrix impact trajectory has an identifier which shows how that level of risk could impact on the Trust in terms of
finance, reputation and operations.
Board assurance framework
The Trust has a board assurance framework. This identifies the principal risks facing the Trust in the achievement
of its strategic objectives, the sources of assurance currently available both internally and externally, the
identification of the lead responsibility within the Trust and how the risk is being managed or treated. Any gaps in
sources of assurance are identified on the document along with actions for addressing the gaps. The board
assurance framework and action plans are reviewed during the year by the assurance committees and the board
of directors.
During 2013/14, the assurance committees have reviewed the board assurance framework, providing the board of
directors with assurances on the effectiveness of the systems of internal control. The board assurance framework
is considered to be a living document and has been updated during the year.
Quality accounts
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare quality accounts for each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance
to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of quality reports which incorporate the above legal
requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The quality and clinical governance committee is identified as the board committee with responsibility for the
development of the Trust’s annual quality accounts. This ensures that there is appropriate input into the
development of the report.
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The quality and clinical governance committee receives quarterly updates about clinical quality and has been
responsible for the development of the quality strategy. In addition, the medical director and the director of
nursing and patient care have led negotiations with the clinical commissioning groups on the agreement of the
quality schedule and specifically, the CQUINs (commissioning for quality and innovation targets). These
documents have formed the basis of the quality accounts.
In addition:
•
•
•

The board has reviewed the annual quality accounts and has considered ongoing compliance with the
priorities via the monthly performance reports;
The medical director and the director of nursing and patient care have presented the quality accounts to the
council of governors, which also receives the quarterly quality reports.
The draft quality accounts have been shared with: the clinical commissioning groups, the Derbyshire County
Council improvement and scrutiny committee and Healthwatch.

The quality accounts contain information that is subject to internal and, in many cases, external validation as set
out in the following paragraphs. In all instances the information has been made available to the public through
the monthly performance reports and the monthly clinical performance reports that are provided to the open
meeting of the council of governors and through reports produced by regulatory bodies.
There are no identified gaps in assurance in the board assurance framework relating to the Trust’s quality
accounts.
The Trust’s report on quality is subject to review by its external auditors who will report on their review of the
arrangements that the Trust has in put in place to secure the data quality of information included in the quality
accounts.
Clinical audit
Clinical audit is an integral part of the Trust’s clinical quality strategy and a key component of clinical governance.
The quality and clinical governance committee ensures that the Trust meets its statutory requirements with
regard to audit activity. The committee interrogates the quarterly quality reports, which detail summaries of the
audit projects. In addition, the committee ensures through the quality delivery group that activity is integrated
within the directorate structures, findings are considered and appropriate actions identified.
In order to ensure that there is a robust clinical audit programme which reflects Trust priorities, directorates are
required to develop annual clinical audit plans which include relevant local and national audits. In order to assess
progress against the annual plan an annual report detailing recommendations and action taken must be
presented to the directorate clinical governance groups and the Trust’s quality and clinical governance
committee.
Information governance assurance programme
Information governance (IG) remains a high priority for the Trust. The Trust has a Caldicott Guardian (medical
director) and Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO – director of nursing and patient care). The Trust has an
information governance group, established to oversee all information governance issues which reports to the
Trust’s quality delivery group, and each division has appointed an information asset owner (IAO) to provide
leadership at local level.
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Information governance risks are managed in accordance with Trust risk management standards, and, where
appropriate, recorded on the risk register. Each IT system has a designated system manager, with defined
responsibilities, including risk management and responsibility for identifying IG risks.
All staff are governed by a code of confidentiality, and access to data held on IT systems is restricted to
authorised users. Information governance training is incorporated as appropriate in all IT training sessions, the
corporate induction process has a dedicated IG session and all staff are required to undertake IG training to
national standards.
The annual information governance self-assessment exercise has taken place using the Information Governance
Toolkit provided by Connecting for Health. An independent review of the Trust’s compliance has been
undertaken by internal audit, which has validated a sample of the standards and supporting evidence to
substantiate the scores.
The Trust’s performance against level 2 of the Information Governance (IG) Toolkit has improved during 2013/14
with the Trust now achieving full compliance at level 2 across all IG standards.
Compliance with NHS pension scheme regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place to
ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments in to the Scheme are in accordance
with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the
timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Compliance with equality, diversity and human rights legislation
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and human
rights legislation are complied with.
Compliance with climate change adaptation reporting to meet the requirements under the Climate Change
Act, 2008
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements as based on UKCIP 2009 weather
projects, to ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the adaptation
reporting requirements are complied with.
Compliance with Care Quality Commission targets
The Trust is compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission. The Trust was
registered with no compliance conditions on 1 April 2010.
The Care Quality Commission has taken enforcement action against Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust during 2013/14. The CQC, following a routine inspection, issued a warning notice in June 2013 about
compliance with CQC Outcome 5 on meeting nutritional needs. This was lifted in August 2013 when, on reinspection by the CQC, compliance with Outcome 5 was confirmed.
The Trust has not participated in any special reviews or investigations by the CQC during 2013/14.
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The Trust received a routine inspection by the CQC in June 2013, during which it was assessed against three of the
CQC Outcomes as follows:
Outcome 1: Respecting and involving people who use services – the CQC identified moderate non-compliance;
Outcome 5: Meeting nutritional needs - the CQC identified moderate non-compliance and issued a warning notice
(see above for details);
Outcome 21: Records - the CQC identified moderate non-compliance.
An action plan was developed to address all three areas of non-compliance. The action taken on meeting
nutritional needs enabled the Trust to become compliant with Outcome 5 and to have the warning notice lifted in
August 2013.
The Trust received in November 2013 a routine follow-up inspection by the CQC on Outcomes 1 and 21. This
confirmed that the Trust was now compliant with Outcome 21 but that minor concerns about non-compliance
remained on Outcome 1. The CQC also found moderate non-compliance on Outcome 16: Assessing and
monitoring the quality of service provision. The Trust submitted an action plan in order to address these concerns
and implementation of the action plan will be completed in 2014/15.
Quality governance arrangements
The board takes clear responsibility for ensuring the quality and safety of services offered by the Trust and has
developed robust structures and reporting mechanisms to ensure that quality goals are identified, monitored
and, where performance is sub-standard action is taken to rectify the situation. The key board committee is the
quality and clinical governance committee which is supported in this role by the risk committee and audit
committee.
In light of the of the CQC’s inspection visits (see section on CQC above), the Trust in August 2013 commissioned
from Deloitte LLP a review of its quality governance arrangements against Monitor’s quality governance
assurance framework.
Deloitte assessed the Trust against Monitor’s quality governance assurance framework (QGAF) for NHS
foundation trusts, and identified four material concerns:


A quality strategy (the Care Strategy) which was not clear or SMART in its construction, lacking clear
milestones on how objectives would be achieved or reached;



An unclear risk escalation process at corporate level which meant that not all quality risks were making their
way onto the Trust’s high level risk report and board assurance framework;



Concern as to the effectiveness of the clinical governance committee and its capacity to provide effective
assurance to the board on all aspects of quality, safety and effectiveness; and



Lack of concise and consistent performance reporting throughout the Trust with inconsistent styles of
presentation, duplication of indicators, with some confused and conflicting data, and with RAG ratings which
promoted a lack of integrated reporting.

It is important to stress that the deficiencies identified by the review related to systems and processes for quality
governance, not to the quality or safety of patient care. This is confirmed by the Trust’s current score of band 6 –
the lowest category of risk – in the CQC intelligent monitoring report.
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The broad actions the Trust has taken on the findings and recommendations of the report fall under four themes,
as follows:
Strategy
The Trust has developed a single quality strategy and related improvement plan which pulls together clinical
effectiveness, patient experience and patient safety, to ensure that objectives are described as SMART in all
strategic documents and to set key milestones in the short, medium and longer term for delivery. The quality
strategy will be launched at the end of April.
Capabilities and culture
The Trust has brought together, under the leadership of the director of nursing and patient care, risk
management and quality governance, and strengthened the capacity to oversee these. This is to ensure a
consistent approach across the Trust to identifying and quantifying risk, populating the risk register and
escalating issues to the high level risk report, and that the Datix risk management system is used to its full
functionality.
Processes and structures
The Trust has reviewed the quality governance arrangements and the role and functioning of the clinical
governance committee and the quality delivery group to ensure a strategic approach to delivery and assurance.
The review of the role and functioning of the clinical governance committee and the quality delivery group has
been completed. The role of both is now set out clearly within the Trust’s quality governance system, both now
have revised terms of reference, and the clinical governance committee is now the quality and clinical governance
committee.
The system overview is contained in the quality governance system document and the standard operating
procedure for ward assurance, which have now been agreed by the board of directors and will be implemented
via the quality delivery group, and monitored via the quality and clinical governance committee.
Measurement
The Trust is undertaking a review of performance reporting and information flows to reduce duplication, ensure
clarity and accuracy of data, and promote triangulated analysis of different metrics (quality, financial, workforce
etc) via integrated reporting. The first integrated performance report is due to be presented to the board of
directors early in 2014/15.
Compliance with the NHS constitution
The Trust operates with regard to the NHS constitution in all its decisions and actions concerning its staff and
service users. The constitution has been revised to meet the requirements identified in the Health and Social
Care Act 2012.
A periodic statement is provided to the board of directors on the Trust’s compliance with the requirements of the
NHS constitution.
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Description of the principal risks Facing the Trust during 2013/14
The following principal risks were identified in 2013/14:
•

Potential loss of income because of commissioner affordability, reduced activity and service reconfiguration,
and contract penalties.

•

Challenging nature of tight targets for Clostridium difficile and MRSA, and potential inability to achieve
these.

•

Continuing high levels of emergency and urgent care activity and potential detrimental impact on patient
flow, bed availability and quality of patient experience.

•

Detrimental impact on quality of efficiency savings not being delivered and cost pressures not being
managed.

•

Under performance on activity plans, leading to reduced funding which if not contained would have a
negative impact on quality.

•

Over performance on activity plans, with the inability to increase capacity sufficiently to match increased
demand which if not contained would have a negative impact on quality.

•

Excessive reliance on locums and agency staff, creating significant cost pressure and having a potentially
detrimental impact on quality.

•

Quality targets not being achieved leading to financial penalties which if not contained would have a negative
impact on quality.

These risks have been mitigated during the year through close monitoring and performance, but some will
continue to be principal risks in the year ahead, and action to address them is set out in the Trust’s operational
plan for 2014 to 2016.
The principal risk to compliance with the provider licence condition 4 (FT governance) is that the Trust does not
achieve the improvements in its quality governance arrangements in response to the findings and
recommendations of the review of these by Deloitte against Monitor’s quality governance assurance framework
(QGAF). The action being taken to mitigate this is:
•

Tightly managed project management of the delivery of the QGAF action plan and the CQC action plan
through a corporate group which reports to the board through the risk committee;

•

The commissioning from Deloitte of a ‘progress check ‘ review of the Trust’s progress in delivering the QGAF
action plan to be undertaken early in 2014/15;

•

The commissioning later in 2014/15, approximately twelve months after the first quality governance review,
of an independent external follow-up full review to provide assurance to the Trust that the required
improvements have been made.
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In making its corporate governance statement for 2014/15, the Trust will have assured itself of the validity of the
statement through identification of the information and evidence available to support each part of the
statement, and the testing of the robustness of this with each of its three key assurance committees, i.e. the
quality and clinical governance committee, the audit committee and the risk committee, prior to the board
approving the final statement.
Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
During the year the board of directors has received regular reports informing of the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the use of resources. The reports provide detail on the financial, clinical and performance of the
Trust during the previous period and highlight any areas through benchmarking or traffic light system where
there are concerns. The executive directors of the Trust supply these reports.
Internal audit has reviewed the systems and processes in place during the year and published reports detailing the
required actions within specific areas to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources is
maintained. The outcomes of these reports are graded according to the level of outstanding risks within the area.
This Annual Governance Statement takes account of the limited (red) assurance opinions given in a number of
the internal audit reports, although these do not constitute any significant risk as the recommendations and
associated action plans arising are being tracked by the audit committee.
Monitor requires the board of directors to self-assess on a quarterly basis and Monitor assigns ratings based on its
assessment of the Trust under its risk assessment framework. Additionally the board of directors commissioned
from Deloitte LLP a review of its quality governance arrangements against Monitor’s quality governance
assurance framework, and is now implementing an action plan to address the findings and recommendations.
The Trust further obtains assurance of its systems and processes and tests its benchmarking by working with
other NHS and external organisations, and also through the Foundation Trust Network, where foundation trusts
share good practice.
Internal audit assurance statement
In accordance with NHS internal audit standards, the head of internal audit is required to provide an annual
opinion statement to the Trust, based upon and limited to the work performed on, the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.
This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by the audit
committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent limitations described
below.
The opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the organisation.
The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a robust and
organisation-led assurance framework. As such, it is one component that the board takes into account in making
its Annual Governance Statement.
The Trust has received a statement from its internal auditors that based on the work undertaken in 2013/14,
significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of internal control, designed to meet the
organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently. While the internal auditors
identified some weaknesses relating to the red audit opinions issued as a result of their work on data quality of
open incidents, non-medical staff appraisals and discharge management, in light of the action plans in place to
address the issues, they did not consider that these implied an overarching lack of application of and compliance
with the control framework across the Trust.
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The internal auditors report that the basis for forming their opinion was:
•
•
•
•
•

An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning the board assurance framework and
supporting processes;
An assessment of the Trust’s risk management processes;
An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from audit assignments reported throughout the
year. This assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s
progress in addressing control weaknesses;
An assessment of the process to monitor and record ongoing compliance with the essential standards of
quality and safety as required for registration with the Care Quality Commission;
Any reliance that is being placed upon third party assurances, and, in particular, findings from LCFS local or
national proactive exercises.

The Trust has its own recommendation tracking process, whereby a report on outstanding recommendations and
on completed recommendations is submitted to each audit committee along with internal audit verification of
completed action.
The auditors summarised that, based on the work they had undertaken on the Trust’s system of internal control,
they did not consider that, within those areas, there were any significant issues that should be flagged within the
Trust’s Annual Governance Statement.
Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors,
clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the
content of the Quality Accounts Report attached to this Annual Report and other performance information
available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management
letter and other reports.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control by the board, the audit committee, the risk committee and the quality and clinical governance
committee, and plans to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
My review is also informed by:
•
•
•

ISA 260 audit highlights memorandum 2013/14;
Confirmation by Monitor through quarterly monitoring of the Trust’s compliance with Monitor’s regime in
terms of the quarterly financial and governance risk ratings; and
Continued compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s essential standards of quality and safety.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control by the committees identified above, by the board of directors’ monitoring of corporate and divisional
performance, by the publication of audit reports in line with their work programme by internal audit during the
year, and by the evidence of the assessment of the Trust and the capacity and capability of the board of directors
by Monitor in relation to its financial management, governance arrangements and, risk management systems,
and the board of directors’ self-certification to Monitor.

AR Page 115

Annual Report and Accounts 2013/14

compassion  achievement  relationships  environment

Conclusion
There are no significant internal control issues that have been identified during the period 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2014 that require disclosure in this statement.

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
27 May 2014
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Delivering high-quality, safe and
person-centred care to all our patients is our
hospital’s first and most important
strategic objective.
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From the very young to older people - 30,000 patients are
admitted to our hospital every year for emergency or
urgent care. We want to provide them all with high-standards
and an exceptional patient experience.
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Part 1
Our Approach to Quality
Delivering high-quality, safe and person-centred care is our hospital’s most important strategic objective. Our
Quality Strategy (http://bit.ly/1vrPmBR) sets out how we intend to achieve this goal over the next three years –
and what improvements we’re making along the way. Our Board of Directors has adopted a ‘board to ward’
approach to assure itself that our hospital is achieving high-standards of performance and providing the very best
care for all our patients. The Quality Accounts are published every year to demonstrate our progress and to show
how we intend to continue to improve the services we provide.

What are Quality Accounts for?
Quality Accounts are annual reports to the public about the quality of services that providers of healthcare
deliver. They also show how they are performing against key standards and targets; and they explain their plans
for continuous improvement. Quality Accounts allow:
•
•
•

Patients and their carers to make well-informed choices about who they’d like to provide their healthcare;
NHS Foundation Trust Governors and the public to hold providers to account for the quality of the services
they provide and deliver; and
Boards of NHS providers to report what improvements they’ve made to their services - and what their
priorities are for the following year.

How do we Improve Quality?
Improving the quality of our services involves looking at these three important factors:
•
•
•

Safety
Patient experience and
Clinical effectiveness

Our Quality Account this year outlines our priorities and performance in these three areas, the improvements we
have made during 2013/14 and sets out what we intend to work on next year (2014/15). Our report also includes
feedback from our patients, governors and commissioners on how well they think we are doing.

About Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

In April 2014 we celebrated the 30th anniversary of the hospital as it is today, based about a mile outside of
Chesterfield’s town centre. We are proud to care for the people of Chesterfield and North Derbyshire (and
beyond) and nowadays more than 400,000 people rely on us for their healthcare. As a district general hospital we
provide a full range of acute services, including 24-hour emergency care and specialist children’s services. These
facts and figures give you some idea of our size and what we do:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Our annual budget is close to £200 million
We have more than 3,500 staff working at the hospital and out in local communities
We see 260,000 outpatients a year in ten out-patient suites
30,000 patients are admitted for emergency or urgent care every year
Another 30,000 patients are cared for on our wards after surgery or other elective treatment
Every year around 60,000 patients come to our Emergency Department (previously Accident & Emergency)
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Proud to Care
Chief Executive’s Quality Statement
We want our ‘Proud to Care’ values to be at the heart
of everything we do at the Royal. We want to create
a great hospital for our patients and great place to
work for our staff.
These values are all about never forgetting that
every one of our patients is a person who comes to
us at a time of need, when kindness, care and
compassion are what matter most.
Our aim is to deliver the best possible service; care
which is safe, effective, well-organised and meets
the needs of those who need our help. But we know
we don’t always get it right and there is still much to
do as we work to make our services better.
The annual Quality Account is a good way for
everyone to see the progress we’re making and the
areas we’re aiming to improve further…
Quality Accounts
I’m pleased to introduce this year’s report (2013/14). Its
focus is on high-quality, safe, people-centred care and
services – the first of our hospital’s six strategic
objectives and our top priority.
You can use the information in here to track the
progress we’ve made - and see what priorities we’ve
set for the months ahead.
Our Council of Governors and Board of Directors review
quality performance every month – so this final
document is an open and honest account of the last
12-months, our achievements and our challenges.
You can also read what others think about our hospital
with statements from our governors and health and
social care organisations offering scrutiny, views and
opinions about the quality of care and service we
provide.
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Seeing our hospital from the patient, visitor and staff perspective.
Gavin Boyle, Chief Executive (right) fulfilling an NHS Change Day
pledge to see how patient escort Luke Brewster does a great job.

Your choice for healthcare
A positive patient experience is critical and goes far
beyond the health outcomes of the care we give. We
know that our staff want to care for patients in the
same way that they’d want a member of their own
family to be treated. Would our staff choose their
own hospital for their healthcare? Would you? The
Quality Accounts report could help you to decide.
What were our quality priorities?
We concentrated on three areas – reducing avoidable
deaths, making sure patients suffer no harm and
using our patients’ feedback to improve what we do.
We’ve improved mortality rates, reduced harm from
pressure ulcers and increased patient satisfaction
through the national Friends & Family Test. We’re
pleased with our results, but we also know we have
more to do, to continue to make a difference.
How well did we perform?
Our Quality Accounts demonstrate progress against
some of the national standards that are important to
patients, such as waiting times in the Emergency
Department, how long it takes for people to get a
cancer diagnosis and start their treatment; and how
long it takes to get routine treatment when your GP
refers you to us. We meet and often exceed these
standards because we know our patients appreciate
getting the right care when they need it.
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We also aim to protect our patients from unnecessary
harm. We have continued with our patient safety
improvement programme – making good progress in a
number of areas, including falls prevention, reducing
the risk of preventable blood clots (VTE), and
increasing dementia screening. We have been praised
by the NHS Litigation Authority for our safe maternity
services and by the Care Quality Commission, who,
after assessing quality of service, set us the task of
improving mealtimes for patients and welcomed the
rapid progress we made to do just that!
We’ve continued to focus on protecting our patients
from hospital acquired infection and achieved our
lowest level of Clostridium difficile this year. We also
kept MRSAb infections at a low level over the past 12months, recording just two cases.

I believe the information in this report offers our
patients, our staff and our community an accurate
reflection of the quality of services we provide at
Chesterfield Royal, confirms where we fell short in
our expectations and describes how we intend to
improve what we do. I hope you find it a useful
indicator that strengthens our commitment to
provide high-quality, safe, people-centred care in our
hospital.

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
27 May 2014

Our Quality Accounts are a useful indicator for local people and illustrate our commitment to
providing high-quality, safe and people-centred care.
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Taking part in national audits and making sure our patients can
access research trials is an important part of our work to enable
service improvement.
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Part 2
Priorities for Improvement
We identified three areas for quality improvement over the year that cover the effectiveness of care and
treatments that patients receive, patient safety, and patient feedback (about the care they were given).
Clinical Effectiveness Priority:

Reduce avoidable deaths

Patient Safety Priority:

Reduce patient harm

Patient Experience priority:

Improve patient experience (using feedback from our patients)

They were chosen as they reflect quality of care across the organisation and are key indicators in our Quality
Strategy. We monitor our progress against each of them using a performance report that is presented to our
Quality and Clinical Governance Committee, Council of Governors and Board of Directors. We also share this
information with our Clinical Commissioners, and Derbyshire County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The reports are also published on our website at www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk in the Performance
Centre.
The next part of our report explains what we set out to do in 2013/14, what we achieved, where we fell short of
expected performance, and what we will do in 2014/15 to enable improvement.

The patient safety team work with colleagues across the
hospital to reduce patient harms such as falls in hospital
and hospital-acquired infections.
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2.1 Clinical Effectiveness Priority
Priority 1: Reduce avoidable deaths
How is mortality measured?
Mortality rates and measurements are an important part of assessing how a hospital performs and these statistics
have received increased attention following the Francis, Berwick and Keogh Reports - all of which confirm that
there are many different causes that impact on mortality and no single method for reducing it. Mortality rates
don’t give you the whole picture, but they are a useful measurement to use alongside many others when rating a
hospital’s overall performance.
We use the standard measures of HSMR and SHMI. These look at mortality in slightly different ways to provide
useful comparators:
What does the Hospital Standardised Mortality
Rate (HSMR) measure?

What does the Summary Hospital Mortality Index
(SHMI) measure?

Records deaths that happen in hospital care

Records deaths that happen in hospital care and
those that happen outside of hospital care (within 30
days of discharge).

Focuses on 56 diagnosis groups (about 80 per cent
of deaths that happen in hospital)

Includes all diagnosis groups (100 per cent of deaths)

Makes allowances for palliative care

Does not make allowances for palliative care

Sets the expected mortality rate for England at 100
and hospitals are then compared to this figure

Calculates a score like the HSMR, but also places each
hospital into one of three bandings for their mortality
rating:
1 – where the mortality rate is ‘higher than expected’
2 – where the mortality rate is ‘as expected’
3 – where the mortality rate is ‘lower than expected’

What did we set out to do?
• Achieve a year-on-year reduction in mortality using the Dr Foster Hospital Standardised Mortality Rate (HSMR)
• Keep our Summary Hospital Mortality Index (SHMI) measure within the ‘as expected’ range
Did we achieve this?

Hospital Standardised Mortality Rate (HSMR)
•

YES
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•

In 2012/13 our HSMR was 103, reduced from 105 in 11/12. This is slightly above the 100 average,
but is within the expected Dr Foster range.
In 2013/14 our most recent data (to end February 2014) is forecasting the HSMR to be even
closer to 100. We are therefore on target to improve our year-on-year HSMR yet again.
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Summary Hospital Mortality Index (SHMI)
•

YES

•
•

SHMI is published every three-months using a rolling 12-month programme. The table below
shows that the Trust achieved a rate which is ‘as expected’ for each reporting period.
The calculation for SHMI does not take account of any palliative care input. The Trust does have
a higher proportion of patients who die in hospital that have also received Palliative Care – and
this is also shown below.
The publication of the SHMI data runs five to seven months behind HSMR data - and whilst it is
usually a few points higher than the HSMR, it follows the same trend.

Summary Hospital Mortality Index (SHMI)
Rolling 12-month programme

Chesterfield Royal Measure

National Measure

July 2012 – June 2013

1.08 - ‘as expected’

1.0

April 2012 – March 2013

1.06 - ‘as expected’

1.0

Jan 2012 - Dec 2012

1.06 - ‘as expected’

1.0

Oct 2011 – Sept 2012

1.06 - ‘as expected’

1.0

July 2011 – June 2012

1.08 - ‘as expected’

1.0

Apr 2011 – Mar 2012

1.09 - ‘as expected’

1.0

Proportion of patient deaths with palliative care coded at either diagnosis or specialty level
July 2012 – June 2013

24.4%

20.3%

April 2012 – March 2013

24.0%

19.9%

Jan 2012 - Dec 2012

25.2%

19.1%

Oct 2011 – Sept 2012

26.4%

18.9%

July 2011 – June 2012

26.5%

18.4%

Apr 2011 – Mar 2012

25.0%

17.9%

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we aim to continue reduce mortality and we have already taken the following actions to
improve this rate and so the quality of services, by:
• Focusing on reducing our HSMR year-on-year and ensuring that the SHMI remains within ‘expected
ranges’ or is ‘better than’ the national average.
• Concentrating on specific groups of conditions where mortality rates appear to be higher than
expected.
• Initiating quality improvement projects using other sources of intelligence including: Internal concerns,
Incidents/Complaints, National Audit data, Incidents/complaints and Inquest reports. Results will be
used to develop action plans, which will be used to monitor progress.
• Establishing a mortality review group, led by the Medical Director to review mortality data, identify
any themes and trends; and initiate reviews of practice where required.
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Data quality
Our patients, our community and our staff need to be assured that all the data we use, including the information
that helps us to populate our Quality Accounts is accurate, robust and truthful. In the case of the mortality
figures, Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the
following reasons:
•
•
•

The SHMI methodology does not take account of the proportion of patients that required palliative care
input; and the data shows the proportion of these patients is higher at the Trust than it is nationally.
We identified some conditions where our mortality is higher than expected and as detailed below we are
working to improve these.
Data for the HSMR is made available by Dr Foster and SHMI is published by the NHS Information Centre;
both indicators use data submitted to HES (Hospital Episodes Statistics) in line with standard national
definitions.

There are a range of measurements that are an important part of assessing how a
hospital performs - and these statistics, including measures of mortality, have received
increased attention following the Francis, Berwick and Keogh Reports.
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2.2 Patient Safety Priority
Priority 2: Reduce patient harm
How do we measure patient harm?
To monitor patient harm we carry out a monthly audit (check) using a tool called the Safety Thermometer. This is
part of a national patient safety programme and is an improvement tool for measuring, monitoring and analysing
patient harms and harm free care. From April 2012 we have used the Safety Thermometer on all wards every
month following the national guidance.
The Safety Thermometer looks at four key harms that can affect patients when they are in hospital:
•
•
•
•

Pressure ulcers
Falls
Catheters/Urinary tract infections
Venous thromboembolisms (blood clots)

To keep our patients safe we try to reduce the instances of all these, but our primary focus in 2013/14 was to
reduce the number of patients who are harmed by hospital-acquired pressure ulcers. Our progress is described
below.
What did we set out to do?
Reduce the number of hospital-acquired pressure ulcers that cause our patients long term pain and distress.
Did we achieve this?

Rates of new pressure ulcers
These were our pressure ulcer rates:

YES

• In 2012/2013 the frequency of new pressure ulcers was 2.3%
• In 2013/2014 we have successfully reduced this to 1.8%.

How did we do it?
By adopting new ways of caring for patients and by changing how we monitor serious pressure ulcer incidents:
•

We used a five step care process called SSKIN which combines a number of measures that together help to
reduce the risk of patients developing pressure ulcers:

Surface – make sure your patients have the right support (mattress and cushions)
Skin Inspection – early inspection means early detection
Keep - your patients moving
Incontinence/moisture – your patients need to be clean and dry
Nutrition/hydration – help patients have the right diet and plenty of fluids.
•

Members of staff have taken on the roles of ‘pressure ulcer champions’. These advocates are now on each
ward to reinforce good practice about pressure ulcer prevention and pressure area care.
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•

The most serious pressure ulcers (grades 3 and 4) are subject to a root cause analysis investigation. This
makes sure that the key factors in the development of pressure ulcers are identified. The results from these
investigations are reviewed by a team of clinical staff who are part of the Pressure Ulcer Review Group. Any
learning from these reviews is shared across the hospital.

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we aim to reduce patient harm by expanding our focus to all patient harms, which we will
continue to monitor using the Safety Thermometer. We will also establish a new baseline position and set
the following targets to be achieved by March 2015:











97% of patients will receive no new harms
Reduce hospital acquired pressure ulcers (grade 2-4) by 20%
Eliminate all ‘avoidable’ grade 3 and 4 pressure ulcers
Reduce the incidence of falls per 1,000 bed days
Complete a root cause analysis for any fall that causes moderate and severe harm
Improve the management of catheters with a view to reducing hospital acquired catheter
associated urinary tract infections. We will monitor this by auditing against national guidelines
(EPIC guidance and CQUIN)
Maintain at least 95% of all patients risk assessed for venous thromboembolism (VTE)
Complete a root cause analysis for all hospital acquired VTEs
Renew our status as a Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) Exemplar Centre. We are currently one of
only 26 hospitals that have achieved this status in the United Kingdom.

In the coming year we want to make sure
that a minimum 97% of our patients
receive no new harms whilst in hospital
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2.3 Patient Experience Priority
Priority 3: Improve patient experience (using feedback from our patients)
How do we measure patient experience?
Ensuring that our patients have a good experience in our hospital is one of our key priorities. However, to meet
this objective we also need to demonstrate we are committed to listening to our patients and are willing to act on
their concerns and views. Their feedback about our services (from their experiences of them) will help us to
improve what we do. The Francis Inquiry into Mid-Staffordshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust highlighted just
how important that commitment to listen and act really is.
To check what our patients think about their recent hospital experience we use a range of measures, including the
national indicator known as the Friends and Family test. This asks patients:

‘How likely is it that you would recommend
this service* to friends and family?’
* This service may include: this ward, this emergency department, this out-patient clinic; or this maternity service

Based on their responses, patients are categorised into one of three groups:
• Promoters (extremely likely to recommend),
• Passives (likely to recommend),
• Detractors (neither likely nor unlikely to recommend, unlikely to recommend, extremely unlikely to
recommend or don’t know).
The Net Promoter Score
Working out how many patients recommend your service involves subtracting the percentage of Detractors from
the percentage of Promoters - and this gives you a Net Promoter score (NPS). This score can be as low as -100
(where everybody is a detractor/no-one recommends the service) or as high as +100 (where everybody is a
promoter/everyone recommends the service):

63
Percentage of those
extremely likely to
recommend your service
(Promoters)
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What did we set out to do?
• Show that we have improved patient experience on our in-patient wards by increasing our Net Promoter Score.
• Introduce the Friends and Family test to the Emergency Department and Maternity Services.
Did we achieve this?
Friends and Family Test Scores
This is how the Friends and Family test looks today:
YES

• In 2012/2013 our Net Promoter Score for in-patients was 56.
• In 2013/14 we have successfully increased our Net Promoter Score for in-patients to 63.
• We now ask the Friends and Family Test question to all patients in the Emergency Department
and those using our Maternity Services (in addition to all patients on our wards).

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we aim to improve patient experience by continuing to use the Friends and
Family Test:




Although we have improved our year-on-year in-patient score, we remain below the national
average of 70 (ref). This is also true of our scores for the Emergency Department and Maternity
Services. We intend to establish a baseline position for all three and by the end of 2014/15, we aim to
have increased the number of net promoters (patients that would highly recommend our services)
above these baseline targets.
From 1 October 2014, NHS patients will also be asked the Friends and Family Test question after
visiting out-patient clinics and following a day case procedure or treatment. We will also set baseline
positions for these new areas to measure against in 2015/16.

To check what our patients think about
their recent hospital experience
we use a range of measures, including
the national indicator
known as the Friends and Family test.
This asks patients:
‘How likely is it that you would
recommend this service* to friends
and family?’
We collect this feedback through faceto-face interviews, postcards, on-line
and using token systems like the one
illustrated here.
* This service may include: this ward, this
emergency department, this out-patient
clinic; or this maternity service
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2.4 Statements of Assurance from the Board
2.4.1 Review of Services
During 2013/14, Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provided and/or sub-contracted 43 relevant
health services. The Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data available to
them on the Quality of Care in all of these relevant health services.
The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2013/14 represents 100% per cent of the total
income generated from the provision of relevant health services by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust for 2013/14.
2.4.2 Participation in clinical audits and national confidential enquiries
Taking part in national audits is an important part of our work to enable service improvement, not only at this
hospital but across the country. During 2013/14, 24 national clinical audits and four national confidential
enquiries covered relevant health services that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provides.
During 2013/14 Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust participated in 96% of national clinical audits
and 100% of the national confidential enquiries that it was eligible to take part in.
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust was eligible for and participated in, and for which data collection was completed during 2013/14, are listed
below alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of
registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
National clinical audits
National audit title

Did we
participate?

Number of cases
submitted as a % of the
number of cases required
for 2013/14

Case Mix Programme

Yes

100%

Medical and Surgical Clinical Outcome Review Programme:
National Confidential Enquiry Into Patient Outcome and Death

Yes

100%

National Audit of Seizures in Hospitals (NASH

Yes

100%

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (NELA)

Yes

100%

National Joint Registry (NJR)

Yes

100%

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion Programme

Yes

100%

Bowel Cancer (NBOCAP)

Yes

100%

Head and Neck Oncology (DAHNO)

Yes

100%

Lung Cancer

Yes

100%

Oesophago-Gastric Cancer

Yes

100%

Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial Infarction

Yes

100%

National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA)

Yes

100%
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National audit title

Did we
participate?

Number of cases
submitted as a % of the
number of cases required
for 2013/14

National Heart Failure Audit

Yes

100%

Diabetes (Adult) ND(A) – includes National Diabetes In-Patient
Audit

Yes

100%

Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA)

Yes

TBC

Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD)

Yes

100%

National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) Audit
Programme

Yes

Started March 2014

Registered
January 2014

Not yet underway

Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit Programme (FFFAP)

Yes

100%

Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP)

Yes

100%

Elective Surgery - National Patient Reported Outcome
Measures Programme (PROMS)

Yes

100%

Epilepsy 12 Audit (Childhood Epilepsy)

Yes

100%

Maternal, Newborn and Infant Clinical Outcome Review
Programme (MBRRACE-UK)

Yes

100%

Neonatal Intensive and Special Care (NNAP)

Yes

100%

Paediatric Intensive Care (PICANet)

Yes

100%

Rheumatoid and Early Inflammatory Arthritis

National confidential enquiries
Study title

Did we take part?

No. of cases submitted as
a percentage of the
number of cases required
for 2013/14

Lower Limb Amputation

Yes

100%

Tracheostomy Care

Yes

100%

Subarachnoid Haemorrhage

Yes

100%

Alcohol Related Liver Disease

Yes

100%

The MINAP audit showed that the hospital continues its excellent performance in administering appropriate care
and treatment to patients with acute myocardial infarctions. In particular, the administration of secondary
preventative medication with scores in the high 90s. We intend to maintain these excellent results.
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The reports of 24 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2013/14 and Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided:
•
•

Structured education – rolled out from January 2014 as a result of recommendation from the national
Diabetes (Paediatric) audit. This will enable staff to provide better quality care to these patients.
Second IBD Nurse Practitioner – funding for this post a direct result of the Inflammatory Bowel Disease
audit.

The reports of 225 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2013/14 and Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided:
•
•
•

Sealed resuscitation trolleys – the audit led to improved patient safety and compliance in checking essential
emergency equipment.
New policy for the Emergency Department – includes clearly defined conditions that require referral to the
obstetric and gynaecology team and a clear process for documenting that the O&G consultant is aware of
all sick women admitted with a non-obstetric problem.
Last Days of Life – over 800 educational sessions have taken place with all grades of clinical staff to raise
awareness of patient care in the last days of life; enabling improved care and better control of symptoms.

2.4.3 Research
Participating in clinical research demonstrates the Trust’s commitment to improving quality of care and
contributing to wider community health improvement. We are actively involved in clinical research to provide
access to new treatments for local people – and to support advancement in clinical care.
The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted by Chesterfield Royal
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in 2013/14 that were recruited during that period to participate in research
approved by a research ethics committee was 512. Of this number, 339 patients were recruited to NIHR portfolio
studies, against the NIHR target of 400. 173 patients were recruited to non-portfolio studies.
During 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 a total of 33 new studies were approved. Of this total, 26 studies were NIHR
portfolio adopted (21 were recruiting studies and five were patient identification only). Seven studies were nonportfolio (five were recruiting studies and two patient identification only). During this same timescale nine NHS to
NHS letters of access were issued by researchers and 15 letters of access were issued to researchers employed by
academic institutions in conjunction with research passports.
The Trust uses the Department of Health’s standard clinical trial agreements for research and in order to comply
with the Human Tissue Act 2004 requirements, signed material transfer agreements are always put in place
where appropriate.
The Trust maintains its commitment to contributing to the national and international research agenda and to
offering the local community the opportunity to participate in important and relevant quality healthcare research
projects.
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2.4.4 Goals agreed with Commissioners
A proportion of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s income in 2013/14 was conditional on
achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust and any person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for the
provision of relevant health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment framework.
For 2012/13 the total income dependent upon achieving quality improvement and innovation goals was £4,190k,
of this we received £4,056k. For 2013/14 the total income dependent upon achieving quality improvement and
innovation goals is £4,040K, of this we received £3,828k.
2.4.5

What others say about the Provider

Care Quality Commission (CQC) Registration
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the Care Quality Commission and
its current registration status is registered with no compliance conditions.
The Care Quality Commission has taken enforcement action against Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust during 2013/14. Following a routine inspection in 2013/14, the CQC issued a warning notice in June 2013,
relating to compliance with CQC Outcome 5 – meeting nutritional needs. This was lifted in August 2013, during a
re-inspection, when compliance with this Outcome was confirmed.

In June 2013, the Care Quality Commission’s assessment determined that the Trust was not compliant with Outcome 5 – meeting
nutritional needs. We were inspected again later in the year when compliance with this Outcome was confirmed.
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Care Quality Commission Special Reviews/Investigations
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has not participated in any special reviews or investigations by
the CQC during the reporting period.
The Trust received a routine inspection by the CQC in June 2013, during which it was assessed against
these three outcomes:
CQC Assessment
concluded:
Outcome 1
Respecting and Involving People who
Use Services
Outcome 5
Meeting Nutritional Needs

Outcome 21
Records

Position
June 2013

Position
November 2013

Minor
Non-compliance

Minor
Non-compliance

Moderate
non-compliance

Moderate
non-compliance and
warning notice issued

Warning Notice
Issued

Moderate
non-compliance
Minor
Non-compliance

Outcome 16
Assessing & Monitoring Quality of
Service Provision

Compliant

Moderate
non-compliance

Compliant

This outcome
was not assessed
Minor
Non-compliance

Current position
In November 2013, a further inspection was carried out on Outcomes 1 and 21. The Trust was complaint with the
latter, but minor concerns were raised in respect of Outcome 1. The CQC assessors also found minor noncompliance with Outcome 16 – Assessing & Monitoring the Quality of Service Provision. An action plan to
respond to these issues has been submitted to the CQC and will be completed during 2014/15.
2.4.6 Data quality
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2013/14 to the Secondary Uses
Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data.
The percentage of records in the published data that included the patient’s valid NHS number:
Percentage
% for admitted patient care
% for out-patient care
% for emergency department (A&E) care
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The percentage of records in the published data that included the patient’s valid General Medical
Practice Code was:
Percentage
% for admitted patient care
% for out-patient care
% for emergency department (A&E) care

Chesterfield Royal Hospital %
100%
100%
99.9%

National %
99.9%
99.9%
99.1%

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for
2013/14 was 66% and was graded as SATISFACTORY.
In total there are 45 standards and for each one we are required to evidence our compliance. Dependent on the
evidence each standard is judged from level 0 (no evidence) to level 3 (evidence of full compliance). This year the
Trust has achieved level 2 for all 45 standards.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust was subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit
during the reporting period by the Audit Commission; and the error rates reported in the latest published audit
for that period for diagnoses and treatment coding (clinical coding) were:
•
•
•
•

Primary diagnoses incorrect 7.9%
Secondary diagnoses incorrect 9.4%
Primary procedures incorrect 4.7%
Secondary procedures incorrect 14.8%

This audit is based on 200 episodes focusing on 100 patients with cardiac disorders and 100 patients in general
medicine. This reflects a small proportion of the Trust’s activity and therefore the results should not be
extrapolated further that the actual sample audited.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following actions to improve data quality:
•

Expand and develop the recently established Trust Data Assurance Programme.
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Part 3
Review of Quality Performance
This section of our Quality Accounts includes a range of information about our performance in 2013/14. Although
this is not an exhaustive list, it offers you an overview of what we’ve achieved in both hospital-wide and service
specific indicators, in each of the three quality domains:
•
•
•

3.1

Clinical Effectiveness
Patient Safety
Patient Experience

Clinical Effectiveness Indicators

3.1.1 Cancer waiting times
Timely diagnosis and treatment of cancer is the key to improving survival rates. To illustrate how important this
is, there are a range of national targets and standards we are monitored against:
Standard

Percentage of patients seen by a
specialist within 2 weeks of urgent
GP referral for suspected cancer.
Percentage of patients seen by a
specialist within 2 weeks of GP
referral with any breast symptom
except suspected cancer
Percentage of patient treated within
one month (31 days) of a decision to
treat
Percentage of patients receiving
subsequent surgical treatment
within one month (31 days) of a
decision to treat
Percentage of patients receiving
subsequent anti-cancer drug
treatment within one month (31
days) of a decision to treat
Percentage of patients receiving
their first definitive treatment for
cancer within two months (62 days)
of a GP or dentist urgent referral for
1
suspected cancer
Percentage of patients receiving
their first definitive treatment for
cancer within two months (62 days)
of urgent referral from a national
1
screening programme

National
Target

Our year-on-year performance against these targets
2010/11
2011/12
2012/13
2013/14
Did we
achieve the
target?

93%

96.5%

96.7%

96.1%

95.2%

93%

97.0%

95.7%

96.9%

96.9%

96%

99.9%

99.7%

99.4%

99.7%

98%

100%

100%

100%

100%

94%

100%

100%

100%

100%

85%

92.6%

92.0%

92.7%

93.9%

90%

95.4%

92.4%

97.5%

97.6%

The calculation of performance against these standards takes account of all cancer patients referred to Chesterfield Royal Hospital
irrespective of where their treatment actually takes place, whether it is in Chesterfield or Sheffield.
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What did we set out to do?
Achieve the national targets and standards for cancer tests, diagnosis and treatment.
Did we achieve this?

YES

National targets and standards for cancer
The full range of standards and targets is shown in the table on page 16, but illustrates that in
2013/14 and for the previous four years:
We exceeded all of the targets.

How did we do it?
To make sure our cancer patients receive timely and appropriate care and treatment and to maintain these high
standards of performance we:
•

Check the status of all cancer patients every week - a weekly meeting takes place between the Divisional
Performance Managers, the Cancer Pathway Team Leader and the Head of Cancer Services. This enables
active patient monitoring and establishes a clear treatment plan for each patient (to take place before their
guarantee date).

•

Monitor standards every month - The Cancer Management Team also meets monthly - to make sure that all
performance is monitored in regards to quality, patient safety, effectiveness and patient experience.

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we aim to ensure the high-quality and clinical effectiveness of our cancer services is
maintained by:
Continuing to provide our cancer patients with timely diagnosis and treatment, through meeting and
surpassing national standards.

Data quality
We are confident that the information we use for these indicators is accurate. It is collected from our Patient
Administration System, cancer information systems and the national cancer waiting times system in line with
national definitions. The process is subject to an annual external audit, which did not identify any concerns.
We also use the ‘Infoflex’ Cancer Management system that generates work lists for Cancer Pathway Staff and
helps us to maintain active monitoring of patients against the Cancer Waiting Times targets. There is also a
‘target list’ of ‘potentially problem patients’ - those who are undergoing extensive tests to determine their cancer
and as such may be at risk of care pathway delays.

QA Page 25

Quality Accounts 2013/14

positive patient experience:  safe care  effective care  responsive care

3.1.2 Maternity Services
We are responsible for maternity services in North Derbyshire, which deliver over 3,000 babies a year. To ensure
the quality of these services we monitor our performance against a range of indicators, including these:
National target (where the target has
changed this is shown in brackets):

Caesarean section rate less than
21.6%
Proportion of unassisted deliveries
greater than 64.4%
More than 75% of mothers initiate
breastfeeding
More than 90% of those who initiate
breastfeeding are still breastfeeding
at 10 days

Trust Performance
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

19.6%

21.4%

21.2%

22.9%

20.8%

N/A

N/A

69.4%

66.8%

79.2%

71%
(target
> 68%)

73.0%

70.9%

70.0%

76.3%

N/A

N/A

77.2%

88.0%

89.9%

Did we
achieve the
target?

What did we set out to do?
Achieve the quality standards that relate to caesarean rates, unassisted deliveries and breastfeeding.
Did we achieve this?

Maternity service standards and targets
The table above shows that:

YES

•
•

We have maintained a positive performance – reducing caesarean section rates and increasing
the number of unassisted deliveries.
We have helped more mothers to initiate breastfeeding and are only 0.1% away from reaching
the minimum target rate (90%) for mums who continue to breastfeed after ten days.

How did we do it?
To improve our performance in these maternity standards we:
•

Invested in more midwives – to increase the midwife to birth ratio, which, amongst other benefits, will give
midwives more time to support mothers to breastfeed.

•

Appointed Maternity Assistants to work in our Antenatal Clinic and in our two community midwifery bases –
specifically to discuss infant feeding and encourage mothers to start breastfeeding.

•

Invested in staff training and education related to infant feeding.
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How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we aim to improve the quality and clinical effectiveness of our maternity services by:
Helping new Mums to sustain breastfeeding. We will continue to invest in staff training related to infant
feeding until all relevant staff have attended the 'in house' breastfeeding management course.

Data quality
We are confident that the information we use for these indicators is correct. Data for these indicators are drawn
from an internal data collection process using facts and figures recorded by our midwives. These systems were
previously subject to an internal audit, which did not identify any significant concerns.

We have maintained a positive performance in maternity services this year – reducing
caesarean section rates and increasing the number of unassisted deliveries.
Training and education for the birth centre team – such as SimMom (an advanced full body
birthing simulator) is vitally important for building skills and knowledge.
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3.1.3 Percentage of admitted patients risk-assessed for Venous Thromboembolism (VTE)
Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) is a condition where a blood clot (a thrombus) forms in a vein. Clots like this
can dislodge and move to the heart or the lungs. Most clots occur in the deep veins of the leg and are more
commonly known as a deep vein thrombosis and around 25,000 people in the UK die from Venous
Thromboembolism (VTE) every year.
What did we set out to do?
Reduce the risk of our patients developing VTE in hospital. We assess patients when they are admitted to hospital
and offer preventative measures to those considered at increased risk. We aim to meet the national standard for
VTE assessment, which is now set at 95% of all admitted patients.
Did we achieve this?

YES

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) risk assessment standards
Reducing VTE is a national priority and the proportion of patients risk assessed on admission was
set as a national Clinical Quality Indicator (CQUIN) for 2013/14.
As the table below shows we perform consistently against this standard and maintained
compliance at the 90% target throughout 2012/13 and at over 95% from April 2013, when the
target was revised.

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) risk assessment standards
CQUIN target

Our score

January – March 2014

95%

95.6%

October – December 2013

95%

95.6%

July – September 2013

95%

96.1%

April – June 2013

95%

95.7%

January-March 2013

90%

92.8%

October-December 2012

90%

91.4%

July-September 2012

90%

91.1%

April-June 2012

90%

91.2%

July-September 2012

90%

91.4%

October-December 2012

90%

91.6%
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How did we do it?
To reduce the risk of patients developing a VTE we:
•
•
•

Educated our medical staff to assess all patients on admission
Offered appropriate preventative measures to patients at greater risk of VTE
Set out to achieve best practice (and have been identified as a national VTE Exemplar Centre (a site of best
practice) for our VTE assessment work).

Data quality
We are confident that the information we use for this indicator is true. It is published by the NHS Information
Centre, based on submissions from the Trust that are collected in line with standard national definitions. We
consider that this data is as described for the following reasons: A risk assessment is completed for the majority
of patients; and this target has been met by educating medical staff - to ensure the risk assessment is carried out
in a timely manner.

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to
improve this score and so the quality of its services, by:
Linking the electronic Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) risk assessment tool to our electronic prescribing
system - so that the risk assessment must be completed before any prescribing can be undertaken. This
will automatically increase the proportion of patients for whom the risk assessment is completed.

We have national VTE exemplar status in
recognition of the work we have done to
reduce the risk of blood clots acquired in
hospital (venous thromboembolisms)
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3.1.4 Re-admissions
We try to avoid (or reduce to a minimum) the numbers of patients who need to be re-admitted quickly, following
their discharge home from hospital. Most emergency re-admissions are not normally part of the original
treatment plan or care pathway - and many may be potentially avoidable. Nationally hospitals are measured
against five emergency re-admissions indicators: fractured proximal femur; hip replacement surgery;
hysterectomy; stroke and ‘all readmissions'
What did we set out to do?
Reduce re-admission rates to less than the national average.
Did we achieve this?

YES

Re-admissions
Our re-admission rates are shown in the table below and show that:
We perform consistently against this standard and our re-admission rates are less than the national
scores.

This table shows the percentage rate of patients re-admitted to our hospital within 28 days of being discharged in
2012/2013:
Patients
Patients aged 16 and over
Patients aged 0 to 15

2013/14
7.10%
10.38%

Our re-admission rates
2012/13
2011/12
N/A
11.03%
N/A
8.96%

National re-admission rates*
2011/12
11.16%
10.15%

Notes:
•
•
•

Our overall readmission rate for the year 2013/14 is 7.34%
*National readmission rates: No national comparator has been made available on the NHS Information
Centre website since 2011/12, therefore we are reporting this as the latest national figure.
Our readmission rates: the 2011/12 rate is from the national site as above, however as this information has
not been made available for subsequent years 2012/13 has been marked N/A and 2013/14 has been calculated
internally by our Information Team.

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to
improve this score and so the quality of its services, by:
Reviewing our hospital discharge process - to ensure that patients are discharged at the right time, with
the right package of care in place to support them.
Data quality
We are confident that the information shown here is accurate. Data for this indicator is published by the NHS
Information Centre, using figures submitted to HES (Hospital Episodes Statistics) in line with standard national
definitions. Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described as we
continuously monitor re-admission rates to detect any areas where these are higher than expected and take
action to address any concerns identified.
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3.1.5 Dementia
According to the Alzheimer's Society there are around 800,000 people in the UK with dementia. One in three
people over 65 will develop dementia, and two-thirds of people with dementia are women. The number of people
with dementia is increasing because people are living longer. It is estimated that by 2021, the number of people
with dementia in the UK will have increased to around 1 million.
Hospital environments can be disorientating and frightening for a person with dementia and may make them
more confused than usual. The person might find the ward loud and unfamiliar, and may not understand why
they are there. We want to make sure we provide high-quality care for this vulnerable group of patients – making
sure they are properly supported and reassured whilst they are in hospital with us.
What did we set out to do?
We wanted to make sure that our patients who have (or who may have) dementia are appropriately identified on
admission to hospital so they get the right type of care and treatment. We aim to screen, assess and if necessary
refer patients over the age of 75 on to a specialist when they are admitted to hospital in an emergency.
Did we achieve this?

Dementia Screening, Assessment and Referral
We achieved high compliance rates for these targets:

YES

•
•
•

Number of patients over the age of 75 (admitted in an emergency) screened – 91.%8
Number of subsequent patients assessed – 95.7%
Number of patients referred on for specialist diagnosis – 96.9%

How did we do it?
We achieved these scores by:
•
•
•

Screening all patients over the age of 75 who are admitted as an emergency to find out if they have been
diagnosed with dementia or delirium and if not, whether there is a potential for them to have dementia
Assessing all patients whom the screening question suggests have the potential to have dementia.
Referring anyone for whom the above assessment was either positive or inconclusive on for specialist
diagnosis.

How will we continue to improve?
Next year (2014/15) we will continue to improve the service we provide to our patients by:
Developing our dementia screening programme to ensure we maintain and improve on these highcompliance rates.

Data quality
We achieved this due to the efforts of our dementia assessment nurses who review each admission for screening.
They then ensure that the appropriate patients have their diagnostic assessment and further advice where
needed. The data is collated and checked by the team in Information Services.
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3.2

Patient Safety Indicators

3.2.1 Hospital Acquired Infections
Hospital or healthcare acquired infection causes significant harm and is one of the biggest worries patients say
they have when they come into hospital. Rates of MRSA and Clostridium difficile infection at Chesterfield Royal
Hospital have significantly declined in recent years, but we want to reduce our rates even further. We monitor
performance against a range of targets in relation to infection control including:
•
•

Rates of Clostridium difficile and MRSA – two key infections that can be contracted in hospitals.
Compliance with cleanliness and hand hygiene – maintaining high standards of both are proven to reduce
the spread of infection.

What did we set out to do?
• Have zero cases of hospital-acquired MRSA bacteraemia during 2013/14.
• Have no more than 23 cases of hospital-acquired Clostridium difficile during 2013/14.
• Achieve minimum scores of 95% in cleanliness audits.
• Achieve minimum scores of 85% in hand hygiene audits.
Did we achieve this?

NO

MRSA and Clostridum difficile
We had this many hospital-acquired cases:
•
•

MRSA - two
Clostridium difficile - 36

Cleanliness and hand hygiene
Our scores in our audits were:

YES

•
•

Cleanliness – 97.3%
Hand hygiene – 96.9%

Our hand hygiene campaign has successfully raised awareness of being seen to gel and
wash hands in and out of clinical areas
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What did we do?
Over a number of years we have improved how we clean the hospital, adopted a hand hygiene campaign, created
more single room and en-suite facilities, developed new antibiotic prescribing regimes (this type of medication is
a risk-factor in developing Clostridium difficile) and through these and many more measures, focused our efforts
on preventing infection. Although we did not achieve the very low target rates we were set, the risk of a hospitalacquired MRSA at Chesterfield Royal Hospital is negligible; and for Clostridium difficile 0.1% (36 cases and around
30,000 admissions).
The table below shows performance year-on year from 2010/11 to 2013/14:
Measure

2010/11
Target

Actual
Rate

2011/12
Target

Actual
Rate

2012/13
Target

Actual
Rate

2013/14
Target

Actual
Rate

MRSA

No more
than 4
cases

3
Cases

No more
than 4
cases

5
Cases

No more
than 3

1
Case

Zero
cases

2
Cases

Clostridium difficile

No more
than 50
cases

51
Cases

No more
than 48
cases

42
Cases

No more
than 34
cases

39
Cases

No more
than 23
cases

36
cases

Cleanliness audits

95%

96%

95%

96%

95%

96.7%

95%

97.13%

Hand hygiene audits

85%

91%

85%

96%

85%

98.4%

85%

96.9%

MRSA
Our target for this year was zero cases. Although we didn’t achieve this level, the two cases we reported is still a
low result and is well within Monitor’s threshold of no more than six cases for the year.
Clostridium difficile
The rate set for us this year was 23 cases maximum and we actually had 36 cases. This is a reduction on the
previous year and is our best ever score.
In addition to the information above, data is reported nationally and shows the number of hospital-acquired
Clostridium difficile infections per 100,000 bed days:
Year
2013/14
2012/13
2011/12
2010/11
2009/10

Chesterfield Royal Hospital
infections per 100,000 bed days
19.0
21.0
23.4
28.5
28.4

National Measure
infections per 100,000 bed days
*
17.3
21.8
29.6
36.7

*National data for 2013/14 due to be published July 2014
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How will we continue to improve?
Over the last year Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to
improve this rate and so the quality of its services, by:







Sustained programmes to encourage good hand hygiene for staff, patients and visitors. We have
introduced high visibility hand hygiene stations at the entrance to the hospital and all clinical areas.
All hospital acquired MRSAb and Clostridium difficile infections are thoroughly investigated and any
issues identified as a result of these are widely communicated across the Trust to ensure good practice is
shared.
The infection control team undertake regular visits to all of the wards to actively identify any potential
issues.
Education and ongoing awareness training continues to be delivered for junior medical staff with respect
to antibiotic prescribing.
We commissioned a review by Professor Wilcox (ref) into the management of Clostridium difficile which
recognised the high standard to which we work, and raised only minor improvement that could be
implemented. An action plan has been developed to address these issues but we are disappointed that the
number of Clostridium difficile infections this year has exceeded the imposed trajectory.

Data quality
We are confident the data used to illustrate hospital-acquired infections, cleanliness and hand hygiene is
accurate. The Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the
following reasons:
The data for these indicators are collected by the infection control team using data from their IT system (ICNET)
which links directly to the laboratory information system. The process for infection surveillance was subject to an
internal audit in 2009/10 and the process for Clostridium difficile was subject to external audit in April 2011,
neither of these audits identified any significant concerns. As the data shows we have not maintained the MRSA
or Clostridium difficile target.

Clinical procedures such
as cannulation start with
excellent hand hygiene.
We have introduced high
visibility hand hygiene
stations at the entrance
to the hospital and in all
clinical areas –
we want all our people to
demonstrate they
follow our ‘be seen to be
clean’ ethos.

QA Page 34

Quality Accounts 2013/14

positive patient experience:  safe care  effective care  responsive care

3.2.2 Patient Falls
Across England and Wales, approximately 152,000 falls are reported in acute hospitals every year; a significant
number of which result in death or severe or moderate injury, at an estimated cost of £15 million per annum for
immediate healthcare treatment alone (NPSA, 2007).
In addition to these financial costs, there are effects that are more difficult to quantify. The human cost of falling
includes distress, pain, injury, loss of confidence and loss of independence, as well as the anxiety caused to
patients, relatives, carers, and hospital staff.
What did we set out to do?
Reduce the number of falls our patients have; and reduce the harm to patients that is caused by falling in hospital.
Did we achieve this?

Hospital falls
Fall rates are shown in the table below and illustrate that:

YES

The number of falls reported at our hospital, per 1000 bed days over the past three years has
dropped. The first column shows all reported falls and the second column shows the number of
reported falls that caused harm to our patients.

Rate per 1000 bed days
Year
2013/14
2012/13
2011/12
2010/11

All falls
7.9
9.1
9.1
7.1

Falls causing harm
2.4
2.6
2.5
1.0

How did we do it?
Over the year we have monitored the completion of falls risk assessments and interventions.

How will we continue to improve?
Our rate of all falls per 1000 bed days remains higher than the national average (although our rate of falls
causing harm is lower than national average). A falls group has been established during 2014 and is led by
one of the hospital’s medical matrons. The Director of Nursing will offer strategic support to the group as
it moves its agenda forward.
Data quality
We are confident that the data shown here is correct. The falls data is drawn from our incident reporting system,
which was last audited in 2011, and the nurse metrics data is collected via internal audit processes which were the
subject of an internal audit in March 2011. Neither of these audits identified any significant concerns.
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3.2.3 Patient safety incidents
Our primary role is to provide our patients with high-quality care that is safe and people-centred. However, we
know that things can still go wrong and when they do, it is our job to be honest and open about what happened,
so we can learn from our errors and prevent them recurring. Our staff have a duty to report patient safety
incidents, such as medication errors, hospital falls, pressure ulcer development or clinical error.
To check how we are doing we measure the number and rate of patient safety incidents that staff report; and the
number and percentage of patient safety incidents that result in severe harm or death.
What did we set out to do?
Increase the number of reported incidents and near misses to enable and support organisational learning –
reducing future harm and improving patient experience and safety.
Did we achieve this?

Patient Safety Incidents
Our open and honest culture regarding incident reporting has led to:

YES

A continued year- on-year increase in the number of patient safety incidents reported by staff
within the Trust.

All incidents reported

Incidents that resulted in severe
harm or death

Rolling Year
Oct 13 – Mar 14*
Apr 13 – Sep 13*
Oct 12 – Mar 13
Apr 12 – Sep 12
Oct 11 - Mar 12
Apr 11 - Sep 11
Oct 10 - Mar 11
Apr 10 - Sep 10
Oct 09 - Mar 10
Apr 09 - Sep 09
Oct 08 - Mar 09

No.
3389
2924
2550
2442
2417
2128
2236
2186
2298
2063
2100

Rate per 100 admissions
8.7
7.8
7.0
6.7
6.7
5.9
6.4
6.2
6.8
6.0
6.2

No.
13
17
9
9
18
6
6
2
14
17
17

Rate per 100 admissions
0.03
0.05
0.03
0.02
0.05
0.02
0.02
0.01
0.04
0.05
0.05

* Data for this period is not yet available from the NHS Information Centre – this has therefore been calculated
internally based on submissions to the National Patient Safety Agency and internal data on admissions.
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How will we continue to improve?
The Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve this
percentage and so the quality of its services, by enabling its Patient Safety Team to continue to:


Encourage incident reporting to increase the number of incidents and near misses that are reported. It is
an accepted view that high levels of incident reporting are a sign of a good safety culture within a
healthcare system.



Support the investigation of incidents and the identification of root causes to enable changes in practice
to be made and shared.



Carry out a root cause analysis into all serious incidents and developing an action plan. These plans are
monitored by our Quality Delivery Group, chaired by the Medical Director, to ensure timely and
appropriate action is taken.

Data quality
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons:

•
•

The data is drawn from our incident reporting process, which was last subject of an internal audit in 2011; this
audit did not identify any concerns.
There has been a continued year-on-year increase in the number of patient safety incidents reported within
the Trust, and staff are actively encouraged to report incidents and near misses to enable the organisation to
learn from these and therefore reduce harm and improve the patient’s experience and safety.

When incidents do occur it’s important we are
honest with our patients, that we investigate
thoroughly, learn from what happened and enable
changes in practice to be made and shared.
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3.3

Patient Experience Indicators

3.3.1 Emergency Department (formerly A&E) indicators
In April 2011 a new set of national Clinical Quality Indicators were issued that were designed to monitor and
improve the quality of clinical care given in Emergency Departments (ED). Our ED has, since then, implemented
changes in practice and data collection to meet these new indicators and to illustrate to patients what standards
of services they are receiving.
What did we set out to do?
• Make sure that 95% or more of our patients wait four hours or less before a decision to treat, admit or
discharge home is made;
• Make sure that the median waiting time patients spend from arriving at ED before starting definitive
treatment (seeing a decision making clinician) is 60 minutes;
• Make sure that less than 5% of our patients opt to leave ED without being treated.
Did we achieve this?
The key national standard is that patients should spend less than four hours in ED and our hospital has historically
performed well against this target – as shown in the table below. Over the past year it has proved an increasingly
challenging target to meet, because of increases in emergency activity across the health community and a higher
number of patients coming to the Emergency Department. Despite these challenges we remain one of the
highest performing hospitals in the country for the four-hour wait.
Target

Achieved?

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

96.2% 95.7% 97.3%
95% or more of our patients to wait
four hours or less before decision to
treat, admit or discharge

That the median waiting time
patients spend from arriving at ED
before starting definitive treatment
(seeing a decision making clinician) is
60 minutes

Less than 5% of our patients opt to
leave ED without being treated
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64 mins

74 mins

70 mins

1.9%

2.7%

2.8%

GETTING
THERE

YES
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How will we continue to improve?
We will aim to meet waiting time standards in the Emergency Department (ED) and make sure our patients
have an excellent service experience by:


Continuing to review and enhance clinical practices across the hospital (to support patient flow).



Regularly reviewing staffing levels and working practices in ED to improve patient experience when
attending the department.



Continuing to improve triage systems to help to reduce waiting times between arrival at ED and the
start of definitive treatment.

Data quality
We are assured that the data for these indicators are accurate as they are collected from our Patient
Administration IT System in line with national definitions.

Last year 96.2% of our patients waited four hours or less before a
decision to treat, admit or discharge was made.
This is better than the national target of 95% and is part of providing patients
with high-standards of service and an excellent experience.
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3.3.2 National Surveys
Patient satisfaction and positive feedback is a key indicator of success. We conduct a wide range of patient and
public involvement activities, but the main measures of patient satisfaction are the national patient surveys where ratings are given using these three categories:
•
•
•

Better than most others in the survey
About the same as most others in the survey
Worse than most others in the survey.

(a) National in-patient survey
What did we set out to do?
We wanted to achieve an increased number of ‘better than’ scores in the national in-patient survey for 2013.
Did we achieve this?

NO

National In-patient Survey
The table below shows comparative Trust Performance on the national In-patient Survey 2013 vs.
2012 and 2011 (Source: Healthcare Commission/Care Quality Commission Comparative reports). This year we:
Maintained a similar performance to that in previous years – with most (97%) of the indicators for our
hospital in the ‘about the same’ category.

Performance Rating
Better than
About the same
Worse than

2013
0 (0%)
58 (97%)
2 (3%)

2012
1 (2%)
56 (93%)
3 (5%)

2011
3 (4%)
67 (91%)
4 (5%)

How will we improve what we do?
We have highlighted the key issues and concerns from the 2013 in-patient survey and are taking action to
improve. This includes:


Improving communication with patients, relatives and carers – using ward communication forms
where queries are answered within 24 hours.



Extending visiting hours – to allow more time for ward staff to discuss issues with patients, relatives
and carers.



Increasing permanent nurse staffing positions – to reduce reliance on agency and temporary staffing.



Introducing Ward Nutrition Champions – staff that monitor the patient meal experience to ensure a
high-quality of service and the right level of patient support.



Reducing noise at night – an issue for patients at present, divisions are looking at improvement
actions they can take on their own wards to reduce the amount of unnecessary noise at night-time.
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Data quality
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons: The data for these indicators is taken from data published nationally by the Care Quality Commission.
This information is drawn from data submitted by organisations in relation to individual responses to patient
surveys. We run each of the national surveys in line with national guidance and all analysis is conducted
nationally by the Picker Institute.
(b) National Cancer Survey
We also took part in the national survey of cancer patients, which focuses on patients that have had cancer care
and treatment - and seeks views about the quality of the experience and care they received.
What did we set out to do?
We wanted to achieve as many ‘green’ indicators as possible – so we feature in the top 20% of all Trusts.
Did we achieve this?

YES

National Cancer Survey
Once again we were shown to provide cancer services that our
patients are very happy with.
• We were ranked 6th out of 155 trusts in the country that
took part in the survey.
• Of the 62 questions asked within the survey that were
relevant to us, this is how we compared with other trusts:
o
o
o

35 of our responses were in the top 20% of trusts (Green)
24 of our responses were in the mid 60% of trusts (Amber)
Three responses about us were in the bottom 20% (Red)

We were
ranked 6th out
of 155 trusts.

How will we improve what we do?
Although our report was very positive, there are still actions we can take to make our services for cancer
patients event better. We identified these concerns that we need to act on:
•
•
•

Clinical Nurse Specialists need to explain more about who they are and what they do, when they
introduce themselves to patients.
Key members of staff should have their photographs displayed in clinics to say who they are and what
role they play in patient care.
More information should be given to patients about research - and how they may be able to
participate.

Data quality
We are confident that the information we used is correct. The data for these indicators is taken from data
published nationally by the Care Quality Commission. The information is drawn from individual responses to a
patient survey, which is run on behalf of the Department of Health by an external agency.
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(c)
National Maternity Survey
We took part in the Care Quality Commission’s survey that evaluated the experiences of Mums-to-be and new
Mums who used our maternity services during January/February 2013. The Care Quality Commission produced
three separate reports for the Trust, one covering experiences during labour and birth, one for ante-natal care
and another for post-natal care.
What did we set out to do?
We wanted to achieve as many ‘better than’ scores as possible in the national maternity survey – in all three
report areas.
Did we achieve this?

National Maternity Survey
The table below shows the overall rankings in the 2013 maternity services survey, but:

YES

Our ratings were good – with 16 in the ‘better than’ category.

Our overall rankings look like this:
Ranking
Green – Better than
Amber – about the same as
Red – Worse than

Ante-natal Care

Labour and Birth

Post-Natal Care

1
8
0

7
10
0

8
8
1

How will we improve what we do?
We have identified a number of areas where we can improve and make our maternity services even better for
Mums-to-be and new Mums:








Choice – community midwives will talk to Mums-to-be about the option of having a home birth.
Choice during labour – all women will be offered choices of birth position (where appropriate and safe) and
active birth will be encouraged.
Communication - effective communication will be part of mandatory training for staff to address concerns
around poor communication in some areas.
Post-natal care – when talking to women about personal items and issues privacy and dignity should be
maintained and a full explanation of what the hospital provides (and what women need to bring) should be
given.
Feeding – choices of feeding to be explained fully and women should be shown how to breastfeed in a caring
manner (some women felt ‘manhandled’).
Postnatal home appointments - community midwives to discuss and agree the postnatal visiting plan at the
first visit and ensure all women are told about the importance of the six-week postnatal appointment.

Data quality
We are confident that the information here is accurate. The data for these indicators is taken from data published
nationally by the Care Quality Commission. The information is drawn from individual responses to a patient
survey, which is run on behalf of the Department of Health by an external agency.
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3.3.3 National Staff Surveys
As well as asking patients how they feel about the care and services we provide to them, the annual staff survey
also includes a Friends and Family Test question, which tells us what proportion of staff would recommend the
Trust as a provider of care (that is to their friends and family).
What did we set out to do?
Increase the percentage of staff who would recommend our hospital to their own friends and family members.
Did we achieve this?

National staff survey – Friends and Family Test
These are the percentages for the last three years:

YES

• In 2011 62% of our staff would have recommended the hospital to their friends and family
• In 2012 57% of our staff would have recommended the hospital to their friends and family
• In 2013 61% of our staff would have recommended the hospital to their friends and family

How will we improve what we do?
It’s a well-recognised fact that staff that are listened to, valued and supported are more likely to feel positive
about the organisation they work for. In a hospital this translates into better patient care and affects the
way staff are likely to respond to feedback like the Friends and Family Test.
The actions described throughout these Quality Accounts will improve the patient care we provide, so staff
know that we are serious about providing high-quality, safe and people-centred services. We can also
improve how we look after our staff, to illustrate that their well-being is just as important. These are some of
things we are doing in 2014/15 to help make the hospital a great place for staff, as well as patients.
Although we have improved our score over the last three years, we are still not where we would wish to be
and we want to do better. Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions
to improve this score and so the quality of its services by:





Introducing a Let’s Talk Care programme – where every member of staff attends a conversation
session to talk about values and behaviours with colleagues (mandatory training).
Valuing staff and showing appreciation – from simple thank you cards to the annual STARS award
ceremony.
Listening to staff concerns - and making it easy for staff to come forward and let the Trust know if
they feel standards are slipping and patient care is at risk of being compromised.
Encouraging staff to participate in sports, social and team-building events.

Data quality
We believe the information we describe in this indicator is correct. Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons: The data for this indicator is taken from
data published nationally by the Care Quality Commission. This information is drawn from data submitted by
organisations in relation to individual responses to staff surveys. We commission an external organisation to run
the national staff survey in line with national guidance.
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3.3.4 Referral to treatment waiting times
To make sure that patients receive timely treatment from the moment they are referred to the hospital, the Trust
monitors performance against the following standards:
•
•

90% of admitted patients to be treated within 18 weeks of referral, including waiting for out-patient
appointments, diagnostics tests and investigations; and in-patient treatment.
95% non-admitted patients to be treated within 18 weeks of referral, including wait for out-patient
appointments and diagnostic tests and investigations.

Did we achieve this?

Referral to treatment waiting times
The table below outlines the year-on-year figures that show:

YES

We have exceeded the national referral to treatment time standards for the last four years.

Target

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

90% of admitted patients treated within 18 weeks of
referral, including wait for outpatients, diagnostics and
inpatient treatment

N/A

99.7%

97.9%

93.5%

95% non-admitted patients treated within 18 weeks of
referral, including wait for outpatients and diagnostics

99.9%

99.6%

99.7%

99.4%

How will we improve what we do?
Making sure our patients can easily access services to receive a timely diagnosis and treatment is an
important measure of high-quality care and an excellent patient experience.
In 2014/15 we will aim to maintain our position with regards to referral to treatment times.
Data quality
We are confident that the figures illustrated in this indicator are accurate. The data are collected from the Trust’s
Patient Administration System in line with national definitions and the data is reported monthly in the Trust’s
Performance Dashboard.

QA Page 44

Quality Accounts 2013/14

positive patient experience:  safe care  effective care  responsive care

3.3.5 Patient Reported Outcome Measures
Patient reported outcome measures (PROMs) are typically short, self-completed questionnaires, which measure
a patient’s health status, or their health related quality of life at set points in time - such as before and after an
operation. By comparing the answers given, we can assess the ‘success’ of treatment from a patient’s
perspective. The national PROMs programme was launched in April 2009 and includes patients having the
following operations:
•
•
•
•

Groin hernia surgery;
Hip replacements;
Knee replacement; and,
Varicose vein surgery.

We are responsible for asking patients to complete a questionnaire before their operation, and providing they
give consent, this is followed-up at a set time post-operatively by an independent company who have been
commissioned to run PROMs by the Department of Health. For patients where both the pre and post-operative
questionnaires are returned, these are analysed to calculate the change in scores as a result of surgery.
What did we set out to do?
Achieve higher than national average PROMS scores in each of the four operation indicators – to help support an
excellent patient experience through perceived health gains.
Did we achieve this?
Patient Reported Outcome Measures
The table on the next page outlines the year-on-year figures. For 2013/14 it shows
that we have achieved a mixed performance:

Score higher than
the national
average?

Groin Hernia Surgery

Hip Replacement

Knee Replacement

No score recorded as
fewer than 30
patients responded

Varicose Vein Surgery

No score recorded as
fewer than 30
patients responded

We are disappointed not to have any recorded scores in the latter two outcomes. We will continue to work with
patients during their time in hospital to encourage them to participate in the PROMS programme.
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The table below shows how our results compare with other organisations nationally, using the case-mix adjusted
average health gain as measured by the EQ-5D, which is based on five quality of life questions. The higher the
score the greater the patients’ perceived health gain.

Groin hernia surgery

Hip replacements

Knee replacements

Varicose vein surgery

2
3

Year

Chesterfield Royal

National

2013/14

0.095

0.085

2012/13

0.110

0.091

2011/12

0.062

0.087

2010/11

0.102

0.085

2013/14

0.380

0.4983

2012/13

N/A 2

~

2011/12

0.372

0.416

2010/11

0.384

0.405

2013/14

N/A2

~

2012/13

N/A2

~

2011/12

0.301

0.302

2010/11

0.312

0.299

2013/14

N/A2

~

2012/13

N/A2

~

2011/12

0.085

0.094

2010/11

0.097

0.091

Data is not available as to date there has been less than 30 responses with regard to this procedure
Negative 99.8% outlier on the EQ-5D Index measure
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How will we improve what we do?
Making sure that patients achieve a positive outcome from surgery is important to us – and is a good indicator
of a positive patient experience. Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following
actions to improve this score and so the quality of its services, by:
•
•

In the second half of the year we introduced an enhanced recovery pathway for primary hip replacement
patients which includes enhanced pre-op education and information for patients, set pathways for
physiotherapy support and surgical and anaesthetic techniques.
Patients are better prepared and counselled before their procedure and we expect this to shorten their
length of stay so they can return home sooner.

Data quality
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons:
We are a negative outlier on the EQ-5D Index measure, for primary hip replacements. This means that there is
about a 1 in 500 chance that its results would be so much higher or lower than the England average merely
because of random variation in its patients, so is a good indication that there is something that is causing this
difference from the England average. This may be something that we do as a provider or something about the
selection of our patient population that causes the outlier result.
We are confident that the information used for this indicator is correct. The data is taken from facts and figures
published nationally by the NHS Information Centre. This information is drawn from individual patient responses
to questionnaires administered pre and post surgery. This process is administered by an independent
organisation commissioned by the Department of Health.

Making sure that patients achieve a
positive outcome from surgery is
important to us – and is a good indicator
of a positive patient experience.
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3.3.6 NHS Litigation Authority, Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts Level 2 Assessment – Maternity
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) is a Special Health Authority that administers the Clinical Negligence
Scheme for Trusts (CNST). The NHSLA issue Trust and Maternity clinical risk management standards that help to
ensure the care and safety of patients. The maternity NHSLA CNST standards focus on ante-natal, intrapartum
(labour and birth) and postnatal periods of pregnancy and birth.
What did we set out to do?
Achieve level 2 of the CNST for Maternity Services, which focuses on the process for managing risks as described
and documented in our policies.
Did we achieve this?

CNST level 2 – Maternity Standards
The assessment used the 5 risk Standards with 10 criteria as illustrated in the table below.

YES

The Maternity Unit passed all standards by scoring a maximum of 50 out of 50.
This is an outstanding result and we are the only organisation in the region to achieve such a score.
This not only secures a £363,000 saving on our insurance contribution to the NHS Litigation
Authority, but reassures us, and our Mums-to-be of that we are providing high-quality and safe
patient care, for them and their babies.

How did we do it?
To achieve compliance at Level 2 staff needed to demonstrate that processes to manage risk had been
implemented in a minimum of 75% of cases. In addition, 40 out of 50 criteria shown (with no fewer than 7 criteria
passed in any one Standard) were needed to achieve compliance at Level 2.
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Before publication, we share our draft Quality Accounts with a
number of organisations, for their views and comments.
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Annexe 1: Feedback on our Quality Accounts
What other organisations have commented on the quality of our services?
Before publication we shared the draft Quality Accounts for 2013/14 with these organisations, for their views and
comments:
•
•
•
•

North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Our Council of Governors
Derbyshire Healthwatch
Derbyshire County Council Improvement and Scrutiny Committee

You can read their statements on pages 51 to 57.
Tell us your views
We would like to hear what you think about the content of our Quality Accounts. If you would like to give us your
views and feedback; and make suggestions about what you’d like to see included in our future quality reports
you are welcome to write to:
The Clinical Governance Team
FREEPOST
NAT 18442
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield
S44 5BR
Telephone: 01246 513151
Email: communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
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Statement from NHS North Derbyshire CCG, acting as lead commissioner for the Trust. This statement has been
approved by our Governing Body Assurance Committee and shared with the other Derbyshire CCGs.

General Comments
NHS North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group (NDCCG) is responsible for providing the commissioner
statement on the quality account provided by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (CRHFT) and in
doing so has taken account of comments made by NHS Hardwick Clinical Commissioning Group as an associate
commissioner. Careful consideration has been given to the content and accuracy in line with the national guidance.
NDCCG can confirm that CRHFT has produced a Quality Account that meets the required criteria and that the
information provided appears to be accurate and representative of the information available to NDCCG through
contract monitoring and quality assurance processes during the year.
Measuring and Improving Performance
The Quality Account describes the quality of services provided this year by CRHFT measured against national,
regional and local standards as detailed within the NHS contract and also within the local quality schedule and
quality incentive scheme (CQUIN). Areas in which CRHFT has performed exceptionally well include maternity where
they achieved their CNST level 2 status passing every standard and cancer services where they have consistently
exceeded national waiting times standards in addition to being rated 6/155 Trusts by the patients who had received
care at the hospital. The Trust should also be commended for the achievement of exemplar status nationally in
relation to its work around Venous Thromboembolism (VTE).
Last year CRHFT detailed 3 local priorities for quality improvement over the year. These were broadly described as
patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. It is clear that Trust commitment to these areas has led
to significant achievements and developments which have enhanced patient care. It is noted from the Quality
Account that the Trust intends to continue to work to sustain and enhance these improvements over the next year,
with specific targets relating to further reductions in avoidable pressure ulcers being welcomed by commissioners and
forming part of this year’s national CQUIN programme.
The Trust has shown commitment over the year to improvement of their Friends and Family net promoter score
however although this has risen for in patients, it remains below the national average, commissioners would expect
to see a continued increase over the next year. The expansion of the Friends and family test to the Emergency
Department and maternity has provided the Trust with challenges and they have worked hard to address these, with
new systems being introduced late in the year which have shown a marked improvement. The Trust has maintained a
similar level of performance in the national In patient survey to that of previous years, which is disappointing when
commissioners have noted that the Trust is proactively addressing issues and concerns which have been raised by
patients through the implementation of extended visiting hours and working to reduce unnecessary noise levels at
night on the wards.
It is recognised that staff satisfaction and a feeling of being valued positively affects patient care, the annual staff
survey also contains a friends and family question to measure what proportion of staff would recommend the Trust as
a provider of care. The Trust has achieved their aim of increasing this percentage over the year and has plans in place
to further develop staff support and services.
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The Care Quality Commission visited CRHFT during 2013/14, and during a routine inspection the Trust was issued a
warning notice in relation to the outcome concerned with meeting nutritional needs. This Trust worked hard to regain
compliance with this measure and now have protected mealtimes with all staff involved in assisting patients at this
time. Later in the year CQC assessors identified compliance issues with assessing and monitoring the quality of
service provision, and an improvement plan has been submitted to the CQC and shared with commissioners to
address these issues. Progress against this plan will be closely monitored by commissioners.
The Trust has continued to demonstrate good results in relation to hand hygiene and cleanliness, but has not
achieved their target in relation to Clostridiumd difficile infections. The Trust has taken positive action to address this
issue by commissioning a review in to the management of Clostridium difficile and working with commissioners to
improve this area of performance and provide regular updates on progress. New national guidance shall enhance
collaborative working as commissioners will become involved earlier in the process of analysing the root causes of
infections to ascertain if they were avoidable or not and identify learning in an increasingly timely manner.
In relation to patient safety Commissioners continue to receive all serious incident reports, safety thermometer
reports and root cause analysis work. Improvements have been noted in the timeliness of these reports ongoing work
needs to focus on themes and evidencing improvements in practice as a result of the action plans which are
presented. Commissioners are working with the Trust to examine current processes and ascertain a collaborative way
forward.
The Trust has made excellent progress against the CQUIN goals for dementia screening, assessment and referral. In
addition the Trust has worked hard to deliver dementia training to a significant number of their staff and provide
support services for families. The Trust has struggled with the target related to the sustaining of breast feeding, and
continues to work on this, but has done well to improve their performance in relation to initiation of breast feeding.
Additional comments
The Quality Account is an annual report to the public that aims to demonstrate that the Trust is assessing quality
across the healthcare services provided. The Quality account provides patients and their families with an accurate,
honest and reflective account of the progress that the Trust has made throughout this year and its future plans to
further enhance service provision.
NHS North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group and associate commissioners look forward to continuing to
work with the Trust to commission and deliver high quality patient care.

Jayne Stringfellow, Chief Nurse & Quality Officer
NHS North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group
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Statement from the Trust’s Council of Governors

The Council of Governors wish to comment on the following areas:
•

Infection Control – the Trust has seen a further reduction in the overall number of hospital-acquired
clostridium difficile infections, but unfortunately missed the target for the year, which was extremely
challenging. The Trust has sustained programmes to encourage hand hygiene for staff, patients and visitor
and robust processes in place to investigate these types of infections. In addition the Trust commissioned a
review of clostridium difficile management which recognised the high standards to which the Trust adheres
and raised only minor concerns. An action plan has been developed to address the issues, which is fully
supported by the Governors.

•

Dementia – the Governors have been pleased to follow the continued work on dementia over the past year.
This year the Trust has achieved extremely high compliance with screening, assessing and referring patients
for a specialist diagnosis. We also welcome the continuing focus on staff training, general awareness raising
and commitment to funding a clinical lead for dementia.

•

Cleanliness – the Governors are actively involved in monthly internal Patient-Led Assessments of the Care
Environment (PLACE). PLACE is a government initiative and it is mandatory to have a once a year inspection
with patient representative involvement, which means our inspections are above and beyond what is
expected. We have been pleased to note that standards of cleanliness are being maintained and improved.

•

Nurse staffing – the Trust’s decision to make significant investment into nurse staffing has been welcomed
and supported, but the Governors have had concerns about the level of recruitment achieved so far and the
reliance on agency staff. We are pleased to see a number of initiatives underway to address this including the
engagement of student nurses prior to graduation, recruitment events and an overseas recruitment drive. In
addition the Trust is outsourcing its managed service so, where there is a need for flexible staffing, the gaps
will be filled more cost effectively and with more continuity of care thus delivering a better service for
patients.

•

Nutrition – Governors have been closely involved in the feeding and nutrition working groups, which has led
to the substantive appointment of a feeding advocate, whose role is to promote the importance of patient
feeding and act as a link between catering, patients and clinical services. In addition, Governors are involved
in regular “expectation” meetings with our catering provider and have been active in the meal tasting
sessions which the Trust holds to allow patients, visitors and staff to taste the same food served to patients
food on the day. With regard to the Care Quality Commission’s visit and their concerns regarding nutrition
and food service, the Governors have been very pleased with the Trust’s response which includes the
introduction of nutrition champions and improved modified texture food menu.

•

Urgent Care Village – the Governors continue to be involved in early discussions with regard to developing
the Trust’s services for patients who attend for emergency and urgent care. We look forward to these plans
coming to fruition in the coming years.
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•

Assistance and Complaints– this is the one stop shop for patients, visitors and carers to ask any queries they
may have, pass on their compliment or raise concerns or complaints. We welcome the change in title from
‘Advice Centre’ to ‘Assistance and Complaints’ as we feel this better reflects the function of the department.

•

Eye Centre – the Governors are pleased with the continuing improvement in the Eye Centre, and that work is
in progress to address concerns regarding the backlog of patients.

•

Links with Care Quality Commission (CQC) – the Governors are looking forward to a continued relationship
with representatives from the CQC and becoming familiar with the new inspection regime.

•

PAS – the replacement of the old Patient Administration System (PAS) is a positive move for Trust in the
coming year, and the Governors are looking forward to receiving regular updates on the implementation
process.

•

Cancer project board – the Governors remain keenly interested in the development of services for cancer
patients and their pathways of care.

•

Healthwatch – As a sub-group of the Council of Governors, the Patient and Public Involvement Committee, is
looking forward to developing closer links.
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Statement from Healthwatch Derbyshire

Healthwatch Derbyshire came into operation on the 1 April 2013 and was very much in its infancy when asked to
submit a response to last year’s Quality Account for Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. However,
having now been operating for 12 months as the consumer champion for health and social care services,
Healthwatch Derbyshire is now in a much better position to strengthen the collective voice of patients and the
public in Derbyshire, and ensure that voice is used to help influence and improve the delivery and design of local
services.
Healthwatch Derbyshire is responding to this Quality Account largely in relation to the ‘Patient experience
priority for improvement’, as this is where our evidence is based.
In our first year we have developed a strong early relationship with the Trust as a key NHS healthcare provider in
Derbyshire. The Trust has been receptive to the public and patient feedback collected by Healthwatch
Derbyshire which is sent to the Trust on a regular basis using our information sharing protocols. The Trust shows
a willingness to respond, react and learn from the feedback we present on behalf of local people.
Healthwatch Derbyshire is providing, and will continue to provide, a valuable source of independent patient
feedback to be used and incorporated by the Trust in appropriate reporting systems. This will complement the
measures put in place by the Trust to capture and gauge patient experience, for example the Friends and Family
test.
The statement from the Trust Council of Governors refers to Healthwatch presence on the Patient and Public
Involvement Committee. This is already proving to be a really useful committee for receiving and considering
feedback from Healthwatch Derbyshire, alongside other measures of patient experience available to the Trust.
We look forward to continued involvement with this committee in 2014.
The development of our relationship with the Trust over the past year has resulted in a valuable information
sharing process that ensures that Healthwatch Derbyshire, and the voices of the local people it champions, have
the potential to be at the heart of decisions regarding service delivery and design at the Trust. We look forward to
working with the Trust with this shared objective in mind during 2014/5.

Darren Bailey
Healthwatch Derbyshire Chair
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Statement from Derbyshire County Council’s Improvement and Scrutiny Committee

Derbyshire County Council’s Improvement and Scrutiny – Health Committee is responsible for considering major
service reconfigurations by health service commissioners and providers.
The Committee has considered one such issue this year in relation to maternity services. Ms Linda Gustard, Head
of Midwifery at Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, attended a meeting of the ISC Health
Committee to explain proposals that would establish new community midwifery bases in Chesterfield – within
Queens Park Sports Centre and Clay Cross Clinic (following its refurbishment).
The ‘midwifery base’ model of community care had enabled the Trust to modernise the midwifery service and
achieve national recommendations related to maternity care for a proportion of women who access the
maternity service in North Derbyshire. The evaluations of this model of care by service users and staff were
positive, and midwife time was more effectively utilised. There was potential for co-locating other services within
the bases in the future to achieve public health initiatives and facilitate partnership working with other agencies.
The Trust recognised that the community midwifery services in some GP practices in these areas may need to be
retained – for example at Stonebroom, South Normanton and Pinxton, because the base in Clay Cross was not
easily accessible. The Trust would undertake a thorough assessment of the transport links to the proposed bases
and retain service provision in areas where transport links were identified as inadequate.
The ISC Health Committee resolved that (1) the proposals be welcomed and an update on the development be
submitted to the Committee in the future; (2) that the Committee record its concern that the Trust had been
unsuccessful in its attempts to secure feedback from GP surgeries in the area, even though a number of
approaches had been made by the Trust, and (3) that information be presented to the Committee on the
arrangements for midwifery services that were in place in other parts of the County.
We are looking forward to working with the Trust and other stakeholders during 2014/15. To facilitate a mutual
exchange of information and better understanding of “who does what and where” in the health service
community – and the role and responsibilities of the Health Scrutiny Committee – a stakeholder event is being
held by the Health Scrutiny Committee on 9 June 2014 to bring together all organisations working to provide
health services in Derbyshire.
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Based on their knowledge and experience of
the Trust, our council of governors has
commented on this year’s Quality Accounts
and our progress.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Quality Accounts Report
Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are required, under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality
Accounts) Regulations 2010 as amended, to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.
Monitor (the independent regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts) has issued guidance to NHS
Foundation Trust Boards on the form and content of Annual Quality Reports (which incorporate the
above legal requirements) and on the arrangements that Foundation Trust Boards should put in place
to support the data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report.
In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:
• The content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual 2011-12;
• The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources of
information including:











Board minutes and papers for the period April 2013 to March 2014
Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2013 to March 2014
Feedback from the Commissioners dated 19 May 2014
Feedback from Governors dated 3 March 2014
Feedback from Local Healthwatch organisations dated 22 April 2014
The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated 5 May 2014
The latest national patient survey
The latest national staff survey
The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment dated 31
March 2014
Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles received between 1 April 2013 and the
31 March 2014.

• The Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance over
the period covered;
• The performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate;
• There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to confirm
that they are working effectively in practice;
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Directors’ responsibilities continued…
•

The data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is robust
and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, is subject
to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has been prepared in accordance
with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which incorporates the Quality Accounts
regulations) (published at www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the
standards to support data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report
(available at www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual).

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board

Michael Hall
Deputy Chairman¹
27 May 2014

Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive
27 May 2014

¹: As authorised by the Chairman, Richard Gregory OBE
and the Board of Directors

Our Governors, Directors
and
Non-Executive Directors
spend time out on the
wards talking to patients
and finding out what
they think about
everything from patient
meals, to care and
treatment.
Face to face coversations
are the best ways to get
feedback and to make
sure any problems or
issues can be addressed
straight away.
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Independent Auditors Report on the
Quality Report
(including Limited Assurance Statement)
2013/2014
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2014

Total

Public Dividend
Capital

£000

£000

Income and
Revaluation Reserve Expenditure Reserve
£000

£000

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY AT 1 APRIL 2013 - as previously
stated
Surplus for the Year
Net Impairments
Revaluations - Property Plant and Equipment
Transfer to Retained Reserves on Asset Disposals

138,128
2,035
444
1,144
0

49,296
0
0
0
0

32,571
0
444
1,144
(1,430)

56,261
2,035
0
0
1,430

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY AT 31 MARCH 2014

141,751

49,296

32,729

59,726

The notes on pages 6 to 50 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

Total

Public Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY AT 1 APRIL 2012 - as previously
stated
Surplus for the year
Net Impairments
Revaluations - Property Plant and Equipment
Transfer to Retained Reserves on Asset Disposals
Public Dividend Capital Received

137,770
2,554
(2,863)
448
0
219

49,077
0
0
0
0
219

35,056
0
(2,863)
448
(70)
0

53,637
2,554
0
0
70
0

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY AT 31 MARCH 2013

138,128

49,296

32,571

56,261

The notes on pages 6 to 50 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2014
2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

5,344
0

5,972
0

5,344

5,972

6,690
1,742
(1,703)
(39)
(154)
0
0
(4,185)
(71)
577
1,078
133
9,412

6,718
2,039
(67)
(58)
(100)
(7)
90
645
(57)
1,034
(521)
106
15,794

182
(1,106)
(7,020)
1,415

176
(388)
(8,196)
215

NET CASH GENERATED USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Public Dividend Capital Received
Loans Repaid - Independent Trust Financing Facility
Capital Element of Finance Lease Rental Payments
Interest Paid
Interest Element of Finance Lease Rental Payments
PDC Dividend Paid
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

(6,529)

(8,193)

0
(1,001)
(196)
(166)
(54)
(3,123)

219
(1,001)
(310)
(200)
(92)
(3,342)

(4,540)

(4,726)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(1,657)

2,875

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT31 MARCH

44,232

41,357

42,575

44,232

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Surplus from Continuing Operations
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) of Discontinued Operations
OPERATING SURPLUS
NON-CASH INCOME AND EXPENSE:
Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairments
Reversals of Impairments
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal
Non-Cash Donations / Grants Credited to Income
Interest Accrued and Not (Paid) or Received
Dividends Accrued and Not (Paid) or Received
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase) in Inventories
Increase in Trade and Other Payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Decrease in Provisions
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment

28

The notes on pages 6 to 50 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1 Accounting Policies and Other Information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM) which shall be agreed with
HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
FT ARM 2013/14 issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) to the extent
that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.
1.1 Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of land, buildings and dwellings.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
1.2 Consolidation
Subsidiary entities are those over which the trust has the power to exercise control or a dominant influence
so as to gain economic or other benefits.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee to Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust General Charity (registered charity number 1052913). The Foundation Trust has
assessed it's relationship to the Charitable Fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the
Foundation Trust has the power (in accordance with the Trust Deed) to govern the financial and operating
policies of the Charitable Fund so as to obtain benefits from its activities for itself, its patients or its staff.
Prior to 2013/14, the FT ARM permitted the NHS Foundation Trust not to consolidate the Charitable Fund.
From 2013/14, the Foundation Trust is now required to apply IAS 27 and, where applicable, to consolidate
the Charitable Fund.
However, the transactions are not material in the context of the group and transactions have not been
consolidated. Details of the transactions with the Charity are included in note 32 Related parties.
1.3 Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. Income is shown gross except where an
administrative arrangement exists, whereby the income is netted off with the corresponding expenditure in
accordance with the FT ARM. The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in
respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that
income is deferred. Where income has not been received prior to the year end but the provision of a
healthcare service has commenced i.e. partially completed spells, then income relating to the patient activity
is accrued. The accrued income is estimated on the number of days of incomplete spells at an average daily
tariff adjusted to reflect hospital case-mix.
The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an
insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and
Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is
measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for
unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been
met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
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1.4 Expenditure on Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is
received from employees.
The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is
recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into
the following period.
NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed
under the direction of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the NHS Foundation
Trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a
defined contribution scheme. Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as
and when they become due. Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by
the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional
costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless
of the method of payment.
1.5 Expenditure on Other Goods and Services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and
is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses
except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.
Expenditure is shown gross except where an administrative arrangement exists, whereby the expenditure is
netted off with the corresponding income in accordance with the FT ARM.
1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust;
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably and is in excess of £5,000.
Additionally, Property, Plant and Equipment will be capitalised where it is made up of a group of assets
which individually have a cost of £250 and collectively have a cost of at least £5,000, are functionally
interdependent, with broadly simultaneous purchase and disposal dates and are under single managerial
control; or where it is part of the setting up cost, of a new building, or refurbishment of a new ward or unit,
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different
asset lives, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their useful
economic lives.
Measurement
Valuation
All Property, Plant and Equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost includes professional fees but
not borrowing costs, which the FT Annual Reporting Manual does not allow to be capitalised and are
recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. All assets are
measured subsequently at fair value.
For property assets, the Trust follows the revaluation model outlined in IAS 16.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Specialist buildings are valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset basis.
Non-specialised buildings are valued at market value on an existing use basis.
Assets under construction (AUC) are shown at actual expenditure incurred to date, except for significant
value long term building projects which can be split into components and revalued by a professional valuer.
Revaluations are performed by professional valuers. A full revaluation will be performed at least every 5
years, and the Trust will undertake an annual review to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from the values that would be determined at the statement of financial position date.
A full revaluation with a prospective date of 31 March 2014 was undertaken.
For newly constructed or acquired property, a valuation is only undertaken when there is an indication that
the initial cost is different to its fair value. Otherwise the asset is only revalued on the next occasion when all
of the assets of that class are revalued.
Plant and equipment assets are not revalued but carried at depreciated historical cost. The FT ARM permits
depreciated historical cost as a proxy to fair value when the life of the assets are short or the assets are of
low value, providing that both the useful life of the asset and the consumption of economic benefit reflected
by the depreciation policy are realistic.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised as an increase
in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service
potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component of such an item will flow to the Trust and
the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria
for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and
maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a
manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is
considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment which has been
reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
Property assets are depreciated on a component basis over the asset lives determined by professional
valuers with a range of asset life from 4 to 90 years.
Plant and equipment assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the following asset life ranges:
Plant & machinery
Transport equipment
Information technology
Furniture & fittings

3 to 13 years
2 to 10 years
2 to 10 years
4 to 10 years

Depreciation, asset lives and any residual amounts are reviewed annually.
Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the Revaluation Reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they
reverse a revaluation decrease that has been previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case
they are recognised in operating income.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Revaluation losses are charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the extent that there is an available balance,
and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the Revaluation Reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments
At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its property, plant
or equipment have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated to determine the value of the loss. In accordance with the FT ARM,
impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefit or service potential in the asset are charged to
operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the Income and
Expenditure Reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses;
and (ii) the balance in the Revaluation Reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.
An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when, and to the
extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating
income to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment
had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the Revaluation Reserve. Where, at
the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the Income and
Expenditure Reserve, an amount is transferred back to the Revaluation Reserve when the impairment
reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of 'other impairments' are treated as
revaluation gains.
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria are met:
• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual
and customary for such sales;
• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
- management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
- an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
- the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
- the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘Held for Sale’;
and
- the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or
significant changes made to it.
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their
‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except
where the ‘fair value less costs to sell’ falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all
material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, Plant and Equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as
‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the assets economic life is adjusted. The
asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
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1.7 Intangible Assets
Recognition
Intangible Assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold
separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They
are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be
provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is
more than £5,000.
• Internally generated Intangible Assets
Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the
following can be demonstrated:
• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an Intangible Asset for
sale or use;
• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;
• how the Intangible Asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the
presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the
asset;
• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the
development and sell or use the asset; and
• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
• Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of
the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of
hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised as an Intangible Asset.
Measurement
Intangible Assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create,
produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Following initial recognition, Intangible Assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or,
where no active market exists, at amortised historic cost as a proxy for fair value.
Intangible Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs
to sell’.
Amortisation
Intangible Assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Life ranges from 2 to 10 years.
1.8 Donated, Government Grant and Other Grant Funded Assets
Donated and grant funded Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets are capitalised at their fair
value on receipt. The donation / grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor / grantor
has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the donation / grant are to be
consumed in a manner specified by the donor / grantor. In this case, the donation / grant is deferred within
liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been
met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items
of Property, Plant and Equipment.
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1.9 Revenue Government and Other Grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from Clinical Commissioning
Groups (CCGs) or NHS Trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue
expenditure, it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in-first-out cost formula.
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of inventories.
1.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash Equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of the
acquisition and that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of changes in
value. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS Foundation Trust’s bank account belonging to
patients (see “third party assets” Note 1.20 below).
1.12 Financial Instruments
Recognition
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial
items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase,
sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when
receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases
are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described in Note 1.13
below.
Regular purchases or sales are recognised and de-recognised, as applicable, using the trade date.
All other Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
De-recognition
All Financial Assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial Liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets are categorised as Loans and Receivables.
Financial Liabilities are classified as Other Financial Liabilities.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in Current Assets.
The Trust’s Loans and Receivables comprise: Cash and Cash Equivalents, NHS Receivables, Accrued
Income and ‘Other Receivables’.
Loans and Receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured
subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or,
when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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1.12 Financial Instruments (continued)
Interest on Loans and Receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in Current Liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as Long-term Liabilities.
Interest on Financial Liabilities, carried at amortised cost, is calculated using the effective interest method
and charged to Finance Costs. Interest on Financial Liabilities taken out to finance Property, Plant and
Equipment or Intangible Assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Determination of fair value
For Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined
from discounted cash flow analysis.
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any Financial Assets, other than
those held at ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’ are impaired. Financial Assets are impaired and
Impairment Losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the asset. For Financial Assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
Impairment Loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
directly or through the use of a Bad Debt Provision. Bad Debt Provisions are used when there is some
uncertainty that the debt will be paid. Bad debts are written off directly only when there is certainty that the
debt will not be paid.
1.13 Leases
Finance Leases
The Trust as a lessee
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset
is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which
both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease
payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a
finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding
liability and is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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1.13 Leases (continued)
The Trust as a lessor
The Trust does not have any Finance Leases where it acts as the lessor.
Operating Leases
The Trust as a lessee
Other leases are regarded as Operating Leases and the rentals are charged to Operating Expenses on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating Lease incentives received are added to the lease
rentals and charged to Operating Expenses over the life of the lease.
The Trust as a lessor
Rental income from Operating Leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an Operating Lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Leases of Land and Buildings
Where a lease is for Land and Buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and
the classification for each is assessed separately.
1.14 Provisions
The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount, at the
Statement of Financial Position date, on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation. The amount recognised as a Provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where
the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted
using HM Treasury’s published discount rates for short term (0 to 5 years), medium term (5 to 10 years) and
long term (> 10 years), except for Early Retirement Provisions and Injury Benefit Provisions which both use
the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of 1.8% (2012/13: 2.35%) in real terms.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a Provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the Receivable is recognised as an Asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be
received and the amount of the Receivable can be measured reliably.
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a Provision. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.
Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the
NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the
Trust. The total value of Clinical Negligence Provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is
disclosed at Note 26 and is not recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both
are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions,
and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to Operating Expenses when the
Liability arises.
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1.15 Contingencies
Contingent Assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or
more future events not wholly within the Trust’s control) are not recognised as Assets, but are disclosed in
Note 31 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 31 (where applicable), unless the
probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent Liabilities are defined as: possible
obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the Trust’s control; or present obligations arising from past
events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. A Contingent Liability is disclosed unless the
possibility of payment is remote.
1.16 Public Dividend Capital
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over
liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust. HM Treasury has determined that PDC
is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS Foundation Trust, is paid to the
Department of Health as PDC dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently
3.5%) on the Average Relevant Net Assets of the Trust. Relevant Net Assets are calculated as the value of
all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for (i) Donated Assets (ii) average daily cash balances
(banking days) held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) deposits,
and (iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by
the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual
Average Relevant Net Assets as set out in the pre-audit version of the Annual Accounts. The dividend thus
calculated is not revised should any adjustment to Net Assets occur as a result of the audit of the Annual
Accounts.
1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output VAT is charged or input
VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.18 Corporation Tax
The Trust is a Health Service Body within the meaning of s519A ICTA 1988 and accordingly is exempt from
taxation in respect of Income and Capital Gains within categories covered by this but the Trust is potentially
within the scope of Corporation Tax in respect of activities where Income is received from a Non Public
Sector source.
However, the Trust has evaluated that it is has no Corporation Tax Liability, as all activities are either
ancillary to healthcare or below the de minimus level of profit at which Tax becomes payable.
1.19 Foreign Exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are sterling. Foreign Exchange transactions are
negligible.
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1.20 Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate
note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual
(Note 35).
1.21 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed
funds for the National Health Service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally
should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.
Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in Expenditure on an
accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the
Trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure). Provisions for future losses are not recognised in the Accounts.
1.22 Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Adopted
The following Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations have been issued by the IASB and
IFRIC and are required by Monitor to be adopted according to the timetable below:

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements revised definition of control.
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements - classification of
joint arrangements dependent on whether the
parties have rights to and obligations for the
underlying assets and liabilities.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
- expanded and new disclosures for entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement - revised
definition of fair value and extensive
disclosures
IAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements revised definition of control.
IAS 28 (2011) Associates and joint ventures standard now incorporates joint ventures.
IAS 32 (amendment) Financial Instruments:
Presentation - offsetting financial assets and
liabilities
IAS36 (amendment) Impairments - recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets
IFRIC 21 Levies - recognition of liability to pay
a levy
IFRS 9 Financial instruments - part
replacement of IAS 39

Effective date

Financial year for which
change first applies

(effective 1 January 2013)

2014/15*

(effective 1 January 2013)

2014/15*

(effective 1 January 2013)

2014/15*

(effective 1 January 2013)

2013/14 but not yet
adopted by HM Treasury

(effective 1 January 2013)

2014/15*

(effective 1 January 2013)

2014/15*

(effective 1 January 2014)

2014/15

(effective 1 January 2014)

2014/15

(effective 1 January 2014)

2014/15

(effective 1 January 2015)

2015/16

* reflects European Union adopted date rather than the effective date in the standard.
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1.22 Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Adopted (continued)
The Trust has considered the new Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to published
standards that are not yet effective and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Trust or that they
would not have a significant impact on the Trust’s Financial Statements, other than some additional
disclosures being required.
1.23 Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Issued but Adopted Early
The Trust has not adopted early any new Accounting Standards, Amendments or Interpretations.
2. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Trust’s Accounting Policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that
management has made in the process of applying the Trust’s Accounting Policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.
Leases
The Trust has used its judgement to determine if substantially all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of Leases are transferred from other entities in accordance with IAS 17. Only those
arrangements where it has been judged that the risks and rewards are transferred to the Trust are included
within Finance Leases.
Consolidation of NHS Charity
The Trust has taken the decision not to consolidate its NHS Charity under IAS 27 due to it being not
material to the Trust. Further details are shown in note 1.2.
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2. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The Trust has considered key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that could have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment, in the opinion of the Directors, to the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities within the next
financial year.
Although the Trust has made estimates within these Financial Statements such as Incomplete Patient Spells
Accrued Income, Annual Leave Accrual and Provisions e.g. Litigations and Early Retirements, the amounts
involved would not cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of Liabilities within the next financial
year.
In addition, a revaluation of the Trust's buildings was undertaken with a prospective date of 31st March
2014. The Trust relies on the professional services of the valuation office for the accuracy of such
valuations.
3. Operating Segments
The Board as 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' has determined that the Trust operates in one material
segment, which is the Provision of Healthcare Services. The segmental reporting format reflects the Trust's
management and internal reporting structure.
The Provision of Healthcare (including Medical Treatment, Research and Education) is within one main
geographical segment, the United Kingdom, and materially from Departments of HM Government in
England.
Income from Activities (medical treatment of patients) is analysed by customer type in note 4.2 to the
Financial Statements. Other Operating Income is analysed in note 5 to the Financial Statements and
materially consists of revenues from Healthcare Research and Development, Medical Education and the
Provision of Services to Other NHS Bodies. Total Income by individual customers within the whole of HM
Government and considered material, is disclosed in the Related Parties Transactions note 32 to the
Financial Statements.
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4.1 Income from Activities

Elective Income
Non-Elective Income
Outpatient Income
A&E Income
Other NHS Clinical Income*
Other Clinical Income**
Private Patient Income

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

30,662
56,491
27,261
7,029
66,988
1,036
101

30,106
58,758
29,899
7,150
51,021
1,324
85

189,568

178,343

Under the terms of their Licences, from 1 April 2013, Foundation Trusts are required to disclose
income from Patient Care Activities relating to Commissioner Requested Services and those from
other services. Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs)
are responsible for planning and purchasing health services for their local populations. That
responsibility includes designating a range of services that local Commissioners believe should
continue to be provided locally if any individual provider is at risk of failing financially. These are
referred to as Commissioner Requested Services.
The split of income from patient care activities into those relating to Commissioner Requested
Services and other services is as follows:
2013/14
£000
Income from Patient Care Activities arising from Commissioner
Requested Services
Income from Patient Care Activities arising from all other services

188,431
1,137
189,568

*Other NHS Clinical Income includes direct access services such as Pathology £4,457k (2012/13:
£4,157k), Radiology £3,251k (2012/13: £1,821k), Audiology £1,504k (2012/13: £1,584k), Critical
Care Services £9,263k (2012/13: £8,699k), Child Health Services £7,944k (2012/13: £7,759k),
Maternity £6,053k (2012/13: £942k), Screening Services £1,254k (2012/13: £1,673k), CQUIN
£3,573k (2012/13: £4,026K), Stroke £1,987k (2012/13: £2,013k), Transformation £6,154k (2012/13:
£3,147k), High Cost Drugs not in Tariff £9,396k (2012/13: £8,545k), Paediatric Diabetes/Cystic
Fibrosis £401k (2012/13 £458k), Therapies £1,122k (2012/13: £2,037k) and Patient Travel £1,202k
(2012/13: £1,201k)
**Other Clinical Income includes NHS Injury Scheme Income £1,019k (2012/13: £1,311k) and
Overseas Visitors £17k (2012/13: £13k). NHS Injury Scheme Income is subject to a Provision for
Doubtful Debts of 12.6% (2012/13: 13.9%) to reflect expected local rates of collection.
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4.2 Income from activities

NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
Strategic Health Authorities *
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS England
Primary Care Trusts *
Local Authorities
NHS Other
Non NHS:
- Private Patients
- Overseas Patients (Non-Reciprocal)
- NHS Injury Scheme
- Other

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

413
84
n/a
184,783
n/a
2,973
125

409
0
107
n/a
176,386
1
31

98
17
1,019
56

85
13
1,311
0

189,568

178,343

* Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusts were abolished on 31 March 2013.
5. Other operating income

Research and Development
Education and Training
Charitable and Other Contributions to Expenditure: NHS Charities
Charitable and Other Contributions to Expenditure: Other
Non-Patient Care Services to Other Bodies
Other Income*
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Profit on Disposal of Assets Held for Sale
Reversal of Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment
Rental Revenue from Operating Leases
Staff Recharges
Car Parking Income
Pharmacy Sales Income
Staff Accommodation Rental Income
Clinical Excellence Awards
Catering Income

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

523
6,693
165
30
5,886
737
9
39
1,703
266
1,253
992
122
510
258
1,833

589
6,694
134
0
5,691
1,155
28
57
67
266
1,065
983
108
467
150
1,519

21,019

18,973

* Included within 'Other Income' 2013/14 is £223k, being the final receipt of cash (£550k 2012/13) in relation to
an insurance claim from the fire that occurred in the front entrance of the hospital in June 2011.
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6. Operating Expenses
6.1 Operating Expenses comprise:

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from Primary Care Trusts
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS England
Services from Other NHS Bodies
Purchase of Healthcare from Non-NHS Bodies
Executive Directors' Costs
Non-Executive Directors Costs
Staff Costs
Redundancy Costs
Drug Costs
Supplies and Services - Clinical (excl. Drugs)
Supplies and Services - General
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase in Provision for Impairment of Receivables
Increase in Other Provisions
Change in Provisions Discount Rate
Inventories Write Down
Rentals Under Operating Leases
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment
Auditor's Remuneration - Statutory Audit Fees
Auditor's Remuneration - Regulatory Reporting
Other Auditor's Remuneration
Clinical Negligence
Loss on Disposal of Other Property, Plant and Equipment
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Fees
Training Costs
Patient Travel
Car Parking and Security Services
Hospitality and Publishing
Insurance Costs
Other Services
Losses, Ex Gratia and Special Payments
Other

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

1,832
617
n/a
5
0
299
1,436
150
133,992
0
15,166
17,298
5,794
1,647
1,540
8,055
294
188
79
51
316
6,135
555
1,742
55
17
278
5,257
9
621
509
16
330
59
260
301
9
331

1,575
819
18
n/a
74
468
1,175
141
124,568
40
13,777
16,191
4,996
1,607
1,520
8,047
305
174
103
43
154
6,223
495
2,039
54
17
103
4,061
27
708
490
16
323
62
216
292
137
286

205,243

191,344

The above Directors and Staff Costs include £12,405k Employers Pension Contributions
(2012/13: £11,722k).
Research and Development Costs, mainly included in Staff Costs above, total £406k (2012/13: £426k).
Inventory Movements included in the above are shown in Note 18.
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7.1 Operating Lease Income
The Trust receives Rental Income for Accommodation that is owned by the Trust but which is rented out to third
parties. The Rental Income received during the year and the future minimum lease payments receivable are shown
below.

Operating Lease Income
Minimum Lease Receipts
Contingent Rents
Other

Future Minimum Lease Payments Receivable
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

265
1
0

265
1
0

266

266

266
962
1,247

266
949
1,474

2,475

2,689

7.2 Arrangements Containing an Operating Lease
The Trust pays rentals for Property, Plant and Equipment that are used but not owned by the Trust. The Trust has
reviewed all contracts where the Trust has the right to use an asset to determine whether in substance, an
Operating or Finance Lease exists. Where the Trust has determined that a lease arrangement is that of a Finance
Lease, these are disclosed in Note 25. Operating Leases that have been identified are shown below. The rentals
paid during the year plus the future minimum lease payments due are disclosed.

Total
2013/14
£000

Buildings
2013/14
£000

Plant and
Machinery
2013/14
£000

Other
2013/14
£000

Total
2012/13
£000

Payments Recognised as
an Expense
Minimum Lease Payments
Contingent Rents

309
7

39
0

88
0

182
7

154
0

309

39

88

189

154

157
124
0

32
31
0

84
39
0

41
54
0

204
82
0

281

63

123

95

286

Future Minimum Lease
Payments due
Not later than one year
Between one and five years
After 5 years

The Trust does not sublease to other third parties.
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8. Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers
A i) Remuneration 2013/14
Name and Title
Salary and Fees Salary and Fees
for Director
for Clinical
Duties
Duties
(a)
(a)
(Bands of
(Bands of
£5,000)
£5,000)
£000
£000

Long-Term
PerformanceRelated Bonus
(d)
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Pension
Benefits

Total
Remuneration

£00

2013-14
Annual
PerformanceRelated Bonus
(c)
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

(e)
(Bands of
£2,500)
£000

(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Taxable
Benefits*
(b)

Executive Directors
Mr Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive

170 - 175

0

6

0

0

20 - 22.5

195 - 200

Mr Paul Briddock
Director of Finance and Contracting and
Deputy Chief Executive
(until 31 January 2014)

125 - 130

0

4

0

0

20 - 22.5

145 - 150

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

0 - 2.5

15 - 20

0-5

0

0

0

0

0 - 2.5

5 - 10

Mr Terry Alty
Director of Corporate Administration

110 - 115

0

0

0

0

5 - 7.5

115 - 120

Dr Barbara Stuttle
Interim Chief Nurse
(until 19 February 2014)

150 - 155

0

26

0

0

0

150 - 155

Ms Lynn Andrews
Director of Nursing and Patient Care
(from 3 February 2014)

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

2.5 - 5

20 - 25

Dr Ian Gell
Medical Director
(retired 31 March 2014)

40 - 45

145 - 150

0

0

0

2.5 - 5

190 - 195

Mr Andrew Jones
Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities
Services

115 - 120

0

0

0

0

42.5 - 45

160 - 165

Mrs Nikki Tucker
Director of Performance and Operations
(retired 31 March 2014)

115 - 120

0

0

0

0

42.5 - 45

160 - 165

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

0 - 2.5

15 - 20

115 - 120

0

0

0

0

15 - 17.5

135 - 140

Mr Richard Gregory
Chairman

45 - 50

0

0

0

0

n/a

45 - 50

Mr Michael Hall
Non-Executive Director

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

n/a

15 - 20

Mr David Whitney
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

Mrs Janet Birkin
Non-Executive Director
(until 5 May 2013)

0-5

0

0

0

0

n/a

0-5

Mrs Linda Challis
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

Mrs Alison McKinna
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

Ms Beverley Webster
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

Dr David Pickworth
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

0-5

0

0

0

0

n/a

0-5

Mr Steven Hackett
Director of Finance and Contracting
(from 17 February 2014)
Mr John Williams
Acting Director of Finance and Contracting
(from 1 February 2014 to 16 February 2014)

Mr Tony Campbell
Director of Strategy and Performance
(from 3 February 2014)
Mrs Nicky Hill
Director of Workforce and Organisational
Development
Non - Executive Directors

Mr Philip Severs
Non-Executive Director
(from 20 November 2013)

For definitions of what is included under each column heading, please refer to page 24.

Page 22

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014

8. Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers (continued)
A ii) Remuneration 2012/13
Name and Title
Salary and Fees Salary and Fees
for Director
for Clinical
Duties
Duties
(a)
(a)
(Bands of
(Bands of
£5,000)
£5,000)
£000
£000

Long-Term
PerformanceRelated Bonus
(d)
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Pension
Benefits

Total
Remuneration

£00

2012-13
Annual
PerformanceRelated Bonus
(c)
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

(e)
(Bands of
£2,500)
£000

(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Taxable
Benefits*
(b)

Executive Directors
Mr Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive

170 - 175

0

8

0

0

72.5 - 75

245 - 250

Mr Paul Briddock
Director of Finance and Contracting and
Deputy Chief Executive

145 - 150

0

6

0

0

22.5 - 25

170 - 175

Mr Terry Alty
Director of Corporate Administration

110 - 115

0

0

0

0

(12.5) - (15)

95 - 100

Mr Alfonzo Tramontano
Chief Nurse
(until 1 March 2013)

100 - 105

0

0

0

0

(5) - (7.5)

95 - 100

Dr Barbara Stuttle
Interim Chief Nurse
(from 25th February 2013 until 19 February
2014)

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

0

15 - 20

Dr Ian Gell
Medical Director

35 - 40

140 - 145

0

0

0

(17.5) - (20)

160 - 165

Mr Andrew Jones
Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities
Services
(from 3 August 2012)

75 - 80

0

9

0

0

27.5 - 30

100 - 105

Mrs Nikki Tucker
Director of Performance and Operations
(from 3 August 2012)

75 - 80

0

0

0

0

25 - 27.5

100 - 105

Mrs Nicky Hill
Director of Workforce and Organisational
Development
(from 28 January 2013)

20 - 25

0

0

0

0

2.5 - 5

25 - 30

Mr Richard Gregory
Chairman

45 - 50

0

0

0

0

n/a

45 - 50

Mr Michael Hall
Non-Executive Director

15 - 20

0

0

0

0

n/a

15 - 20

Mrs Pam Liversidge
Non-Executive Director
(until 30 September 2012)

5 - 10

0

0

0

0

n/a

5 - 10

Mr David Whitney
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

0-5

0

0

0

0

n/a

0-5

Mrs Janet Birkin
Non-Executive Director

10 - 15

0

0

0

0

n/a

10 - 15

Mrs Linda Challis
Non-Executive Director
(from 1st September 2012)

5 - 10

0

0

0

0

n/a

5 - 10

Mrs Alison McKinna
Non-Executive Director
(from 1st September 2012)

5 - 10

0

0

0

0

n/a

5 - 10

Ms Beverley Webster
Non-Executive Director
(from 1st September 2012)

5 - 10

0

0

0

0

n/a

5 - 10

Dr David Pickworth
Non-Executive Director
(from 1st October 2012)

5 - 10

0

0

0

0

n/a

5 - 10

Non - Executive Directors

Miss Deborah Fern
Non-Executive Director
(resigned 29th May 2012)

For definitions of what is included under each column heading, please refer to page 24.
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8. Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers (continued)
A iii) Remuneration - Definitions of Table Column Headings
The following definitions were used to populate the Remuneration Tables on pages 22 and 23:
Column (a) Salary and Fees
Salary is the gross salary paid / payable to the Director.
Salary includes:
• all amounts paid or payable by the Trust to the Director, including recharges from any other health body;
• overtime;
• the gross cost of any arrangement whereby a Senior Manager receives a net amount and the Trust pays Income Tax on their behalf;
• any financial loss allowances paid in place of remuneration;
• recruitment and retention allowances; and
• any ex-gratia payments;
Salary excludes:
• taxable benefits;
• performance pay and bonuses;
• Employer's National Insurance and superannuation contributions;
• recharges to another health body;
• reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses directly incurred in the performance of the Director's duties;
• reimbursement of travelling and other allowances (paid under determination order) including home to work travel costs;
• compensation for early retirement or for loss of office; and
• any amount paid which the Director must subsequently repay.
Column (b) Taxable Benefits
Taxable benefits are the gross value of such benefits before tax.
Taxable benefits include:
• expenses allowances that are subject to UK Income Tax and paid or payable to the Director in respect of qualifying services; and
• benefits received by the Director (other than salary) that are emoluments of the Director and are received by them in respect of qualifying
services.
Column (c) Annual Performance-Related Bonuses
Annual performance-related bonuses compromise money or other assets received or receivable for the financial year as a result of achieving
performance measures and targets relating to a period ending in the relevant financial year other than:
• those which result from awards made in a previous financial year and the final vesting is determined as a result of achieving performance
measures or targets relating to a period ending in the relevant financial year; and
• those which are receivable subject to the achievement of performance measures or targets in a future financial year.
Column (d) Long-Term Performance-Related Bonuses
Long-term performance-related bonuses compromise money or other assets received or receivable for periods of more than one year where
final vesting:
• is determined as a result of achieving performance measures or targets relating to a period ending in the relevant financial year; and
• is not subject to the achievement of performance measures or targets in a future financial year.
Column (e) Pension Benefits
Pension benefits apply to Executive Directors only as Non-Executive Directors do not receive any pensionable remuneration.
Pension benefits include:
• the cash value of payments (whether in cash or otherwise) in lieu of retirement benefits; and
• all benefits in year from participating in pension schemes. This is the annual increase in the pension entitlement less employee
contributions and any transferred in amounts.
For the NHS Pension Scheme, the amount included is the annual increase in pension entitlement determined in accordance with the 'HMRC'
method as follows:
Increase = ((20 x PE) + LSE) - ((20 x PB) + LSB)
Where:
PE = annual rate of pension that would be payable to the Director if they became entitled to it at the end of the financial year
PB = annual rate of pension, adjusted for inflation, that would be payable to the Director if they became entitled to it at the beginning of the
financial year
LSE = amount of lump sum that would be payable to the Director if they became entitled to it at the end of the financial year
LSB = amount of lump sum, adjusted for inflation, that would be payable to the Director if they became entitled to it at the beginning of the
financial year
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8. Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers (continued)
A iv) Changes to Board Members During 2013/14 and 2012/13
There were several changes to the Board of Directors during 2013/14 and 2012/13 as follows:
Executive Directors
Mr Paul Briddock, Director of Finance and Contracting was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive from 11 October 2012. He left
the Trust on 31 January 2014.
Mr Steve Hackett was appointed Director of Finance and Contracting from 17 February 2014.
Mr John Williams was acting Director of Finance and Contracting between 1 February and 16 February 2014.
Mr Terry Alty’s post title changed from Corporate Secretary to Director of Corporate Administration on 4 February 2013.
Mr Alfonzo Tramontano’s tenure as Chief Nurse ended on 1st March 2013.
Dr Barbara Stuttle was appointed as Interim Chief Nurse on 25 February 2013. She left the Trust on 19 February 2014.
Ms Lynn Andrews was appointed as Director of Nursing and Patient Care on 3 February 2014. This post replaces the post of
Chief Nurse.
Dr Ian Gell, Medical Director retired on 31 March 2014.
Dr Gail Collins was appointed as Medical Director on 1 April 2014.
Mr Andrew Jones, Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities Services, was appointed to the Board of Directors on 3 August 2012.
Mrs Nikki Tucker, Director of Performance and Operations, was appointed to the Board of Directors on 3 August 2012. She
retired on 31 March 2014.
Mr Tony Campbell was appointed as Director of Strategy and Performance on 3 February 2014. This post replaces the post of
Director of Performance and Operations.
Mrs Nicky Hill was appointed to the Board of Directors as Director of Workforce and Organisational Development on 28 January
2013.

Non-Executive Directors
Mrs Janet Birkin, Non-Executive Director, sadly died in office on 5 May 2013.
Mrs Linda Challis, Mrs Alison McKinna and Ms Beverley Webster were appointed as Non-Executive Directors on 1 September
2012.
Dr David Pickworth was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 1 October 2012.
Mr Philip Severs was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 20 November 2013.
Mrs Pam Liversidge, Non-Executive Director completed her final term of office on 30 September 2012.
Miss Deborah Fern, Non-Executive Director resigned from her post on 29 May 2012.
`

B) Median Remuneration of the Trust's Staff
HM Treasury requires all public sector bodies to disclose the median remuneration of the reporting entity’s staff and the ratio
between this and the mid-point of the banded remuneration of the highest paid Director, as set out in the guidance Hutton Review
of Fair Pay . The calculation is based on full-time equivalent staff as at the reporting period end date e.g. 31 March 2014, on an
annualised basis.
Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total
Remuneration (£000)
Median Total Remuneration
Ratio

2013-14

2012-13

190 - 195
£23,665
8.1

180 - 185
£23,165
7.9

The banded remuneration of the highest paid Director in the financial year 2013/14 was £190 - £195k (2012/13: £180 - £185k).
The mid-point of this banding is 8.1 times (2012/13: 7.9 times) the median remuneration of the Trust's staff, which was £23,665
(2012/13: £23,165). The banding of the highest paid Director is higher than the equivalent figure for the prior year due to a
payment in lieu of annual leave not taken. If this payment is excluded, the banding of the highest paid Director would have been
£180 - £185k and the mid-point of the banding would have been 7.7 times the median remuneration of the Trust's staff.
None of the Trust's employees received remuneration that was in excess of the highest-paid Director in either years.
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind but excludes severance payments.
It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.
Agency staff covering vacancies as at the year end date have been excluded from the above calculations.

Page 25

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014

8. Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers (continued)
C) Pension Benefits

Name and title

Real Increase
(Decrease) in
Pension Sum at
age 60

Real Increase
(Decrease) in
Lump Sum at
Age 60

Total Accrued
Pension at Age
60 at 31 March
2014

Lump Sum at
Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Real Increase
Age 60 Related Transfer Value at Transfer Value at (Decrease) in
to Accrued
31 March 2014
31 March 2013 Cash Equivalent
Pension at 31
Transfer Value
March 2014
(Bands of £2500) (Bands of £2500) (Bands of £5000) (Bands of £5000)
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000

Employer's
Contribution to
Stakeholder
Pension

Total Pension
Entitlement at 31
March 2014

£000

(Bands of £5000)
£000

Mr Gavin Boyle
Chief Executive

0 - 2.5

5 - 7.5

40 - 45

120 - 125

693

629

51

n/a

165 - 170

Mr Paul Briddock
Director of Finance and Contracting and Deputy Chief Executive
(until 31 January 2014)

0 - 2.5

5 - 7.5

30 - 35

100 - 105

567

514

41

n/a

135 - 140

Mr Steven Hackett
Director of Finance and Contracting
(from 17 February 2014)

0 - 2.5

0 - 2.5

30 - 35

100 - 105

491

448

4

n/a

135 - 140

Mr John Williams
Director of Finance and Contracting
(from 1 February 2014 to 16 February 2014)

0 - 2.5

0 - 2.5

5 - 10

20 - 25

86

54

1

n/a

30 - 35

Mr Terry Alty
Director of Corporate Administration

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

40 - 45

130 - 135

929

865

45

n/a

175 - 180

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Ms Lynn Andrews
Director of Nursing and Patient Care
(from 3 February 2014)

0 - 2.5

0 - 2.5

25 - 30

85 - 90

518

468

6

n/a

115 - 120

Dr Ian Gell
Medical Director
(retired 31 March 2014)

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

75 - 80

225 - 230

1779

1664

77

n/a

305 - 310

Mr Andrew Jones
Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities Services
(from 3 August 2012)

2.5 - 5

7.5 - 10

45 - 50

145 - 150

943

852

73

n/a

195 - 200

Mrs Nikki Tucker
Director of Performance and Operations
(from 3 August 2012. Retired 31 March 2014)

2.5 - 5

7.5 - 10

45 - 50

135 - 140

872

784

70

n/a

180 - 185

Mr Tony Campbell
Director of Strategy and Performance
(from 3 February 2014)

0 - 2.5

0 - 2.5

10 - 15

35 - 40

238

207

4

n/a

45 - 50

Mrs Nicky Hill
Director of Workforce and Organisational Development
(from 28 January 2013)

0 - 2.5

5 - 7.5

0-5

0-5

30

4

26

n/a

5 - 10

Dr Barbara Stuttle
Interim Chief Nurse
(from 25 February 2013 until 19 February 2014)

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure
applies. The CETV figures, and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS Pension Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit
accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement).
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9. Employee Benefit Expense and Numbers
9.1 Employee Expenses
Total
£000
Salaries and Wages
Social Security Costs
Post Employment Benefits - Employer
Contributions to NHS Pension Scheme
Pension Costs - Other Contributions
Termination Benefits
Agency/Contract Staff

2013/14
Permanent
£000

Other
£000

Total
£000

2012/13
Permanent
£000

Other
£000

100,826
7,639

98,044
7,626

2,782
13

95,840
7,271

92,610
7,271

3,230
0

12,408
3
0
14,894

12,400
3
0
n/a

8
0
0
14,894

11,722
0
40
10,910

11,722
0
40
n/a

0
0
0
10,910

135,770

118,073

17,697

125,783

111,643

14,140

342

137

205

0

0

0

135,428

117,936

17,492

125,783

111,643

14,140

Total
WTE

2013/14
Permanent
WTE

Other
WTE

Total
WTE

2012/13
Permanent
WTE

Other
WTE

Medical and Dental
Administration and Estates
Healthcare Assistants and Other Support Staff
Nursing, Midwifery and Health Visiting Staff
Scientific, Therapeutic and Technical Staff
Social Care Staff
Agency and Contract Staff
Bank Staff
Other

341
605
26
1,320
457
10
155
124
280

303
605
26
1,320
457
10
n/a
n/a
280

38
0
0
0
0
0
155
124
0

337
576
24
1,233
462
16
103
114
273

306
576
24
1,233
462
16
n/a
n/a
273

31
0
0
0
0
0
103
114
0

Total

3,318

3,001

317

3,138

2,890

248

Employee Costs Capitalised as Part of Assets
Total Staff Costs (Excluding Capitalised Costs)
9.2 Average Number of Employees (WTE Basis)

WTE = Whole Time Equivalents
9.3 Employee Benefits
There are no additional Employee Benefits, other than those reported in note 9.1.
9.4 Staff exit packages
The Trust is required to disclose Staff Exit Packages in line with HM Treasury guidance. Staff Exit Packages include payments made to staff members
who have been made redundant (or where their departure has been mutually agreed) including Payments in Lieu of Notice plus Other Non-Compulsory
Staff Departures. Details are provided in the table below.
2013/14

Exit Package Cost Band

Number of
Compulsory
Redundancies

Number of
Other
Departures
Agreed

2012/13
Total
Number of
Exit
Packages
by Cost
Band

Number of
Compulsory
Redundancies

Number of
Other
Departures
Agreed

Total
Number of
Exit
Packages
by Cost
Band

£0 - £50,000

-

15

15

1

-

1

Total Number of Exit Packages by Type

-

15

15

1

-

1

There were no departures in either year where Special Payments in accordance with HM Treasury guidelines have been made.
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9. Employee Benefit Expense and Numbers (continued)
9.5 Staff Exit Packages - Other Non-Compulsory Departure Payments
2013/14
Number of
Payments
Agreed

Total Value of
Agreements
£000

Contractual Payments in Lieu of Notice
Exit Payments following Employment Tribunals or Court Orders
Non-Contractual Payments requiring HM Treasury Approval*

11
4
0

14
21
0

Total
Of which:

15

35

0

0

Non-Contractual Payments made to individuals where the
payment value was more than 12 months of their annual
salary

As a single exit package can be made up of several components, each of which will be counted separately in this note, the total
number above may not necessarily match the total numbers in Note 9.4 which will be the number of individuals.
* includes any Non-Contractual Severance Payment made following judicial mediation and amounts relating to Non-Contractual
Payments in Lieu of Notice.
No Non-Vontractual Payments were made to individuals where the payment value was more than 12 months of their annual salary.
The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of any Exit Payments to individuals named in that Report.
9.6 Retirements Due to Ill-Health
During the year to 31st March 2014 there were 9 Early Retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health.
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these Ill-Health Retirements will be £566k.
There were 6 Ill-Health Retirements in the year to 31st March 2013, with estimated liabilities of £325k.
The cost of these Ill-Health Retirements will be borne by the NHS Pensions Agency.
10. Pension Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an Unfunded,
Defined Benefit Scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of
State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share
of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a Defined Contribution Scheme:
the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the
accounting period.
In order that the Defined Benefit Obligations recognised in the Financial Statements do not differ materially from those that would
be determined at the reporting date by a formal Actuarial Valuation, the HM Treasury FReM requires that "the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years". An outline of these follows:
a) Accounting Valuation
A valuation of the Scheme Liability is carried out annually by the Scheme Actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises
an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the
current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the
Scheme Liability as at 31 March 2014, is based on the valuation data as at 31 March 2013, updated to 31 March 2014 with
summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19,
relevant HM Treasury FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the Scheme is contained in the Scheme Actuary Report, which forms part of the annual
NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS
Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
b) Full Actuarial (Funding) Valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the Scheme (taking into account
its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.
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10. Pension Costs (continued)
b) Full Actuarial (Funding) Valuation (continued)
The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the
consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer
representatives as deemed appropriate.
The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used to inform the
contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.
c) Scheme Provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and
is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these
benefits can be obtained:
Annual Pensions
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of
the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of
membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
Pensions Indexation
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on
changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011/12 the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Price Index (RPI).
Lump Sum Allowance
A lump sum is payable on retirement for the 1995 section only which is normally three times the annual pension payment.
With effect from 1 April 2008, members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump
sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “Pension Commutation”.
Ill-Health Retirement
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the Scheme who are permanently incapable of
fulfilling their duties or regular employment effectively through illness or infirmity.
Early Retirement
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the Scheme. The full
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.
Death Benefits
A death gratuity of twice their final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death
after retirement is payable.
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
Transfer Between Funds
Scheme members have the option to transfer their pension between the NHS Pension Scheme and another scheme when they
move into or out of NHS employment.
Preserved Benefits
Where a scheme member ceases NHS employment with more than two years service they can preserve their accrued NHS
pension for payment when they reach retirement age.
Compensation for Early Retirement
Where a member of the Scheme is made redundant they may be entitled to early receipt of their pension at the employer’s
cost.
11. Auditor's Remuneration
Auditor's remuneration for the year for audit services was £46k (2012/13: £45k) including £2.6k (2012/13: £2.5k) to cover
disbursements.
The Trust also paid fees of £15k (2012/13: £14k) relating to limited assurance work performed on the Trust's Quality Accounts.
All fees disclosed above are exclusive of VAT.
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11. Auditor's Remuneration (continued)
Other Auditor Remuneration
Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor is analysed as follows:

Auditing of Any Associate of the Trust's Accounts
Audit-Related Assurance Services
Taxation Compliance Services
All Other Taxation Advisory Services (not included above)
Internal Audit Services (only those payable to the External Auditor)
All Other Assurance Services (not included above)
Corporate Finance Transaction Services (not included above)
All Other Non-Services

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

0
0
0
1
0
0
0
277

0
0
0
6
0
0
0
97

278

103

All fees disclosed above are exclusive of VAT.
The Limitation of Auditor's Liability was £1m for 2013/14 and 2012/13.
12. Public Sector Payment Policy
12.1 Better Payment Practice Code - Measure of Compliance
2013/14

2012/13

Number

£000

Number

£000

Total
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

84,823
83,021
97.9%

82,532
79,772
96.7%

72,851
71,231
97.8%

76,569
74,240
97.0%

Non NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

81,983
80,262
97.9%

65,074
62,915
96.7%

69,958
68,391
97.8%

59,546
57,476
96.5%

NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

2,840
2,759
97.1%

17,458
16,857
96.6%

2,893
2,840
98.2%

17,023
16,764
98.5%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid NHS and non-NHS payables
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.
13. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
No payments were made in respect of the Late Payment of Commercial Debt (Interest) Act 1998 in either
period of account.
14. Finance Income
Finance Income was received in the form of Bank Interest Receivable totalling £172k (2012/13: £168k).
15. Finance Costs - Interest Expense
Interest Costs incurred during the year are as follows:

Loans from the Independent Trust Financing Facility
Finance Leases
Other

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

163
54
0

191
92
8

217

291

During 2009/10, the Trust signed a 10 year loan agreement for £11.5m from the Independent Trust Financing Facility
(ITFF) (formerly called Foundation Trust Financing Facility - FTFF) to fund the building of three new wards. The total of
the loan actually drawn down was £8.51m. As at 31 March 2014 total borrowings less repayments totalled £5.01m (31st
March 2013 £6.01m).
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16.1 Intangible assets
Total
31 March
2014
£000

Software
Purchased
£000

Assets Under
Construction
£000

Total
31 March
2013
£000

Software
Purchased
£000

Assets Under
Construction
£000

Gross Cost at 1 April
Additions - Purchased / Internally
Generated
Reclassifications
Gross Cost at 31 March

3,678

3,217

461

3,122

2,890

232

1,907
12
5,597

223
427
3,867

1,684
(415)
1,730

556
0
3,678

136
191
3,217

420
(191)
461

Amortisation at 1 April
Provided During the Period
Amortisation at 31 March

1,960
555
2,515

1,960
555
2,515

0
0
0

1,465
495
1,960

1,465
495
1,960

0
0
0

1,715

1,254

461

1,715

1,254

461

3
1,718

3
1,257

0
461

3
1,718

3
1,257

0
461

3,081

1,351

1,730

1
3,082

1
1,352

0
1,730

Net Book Value
- Purchased at 1 April 2013
- Donated and Government Grant
Funded at 1 April 2013
- Total at 1 April 2013
Net Book Value
- Purchased at 31 March 2014
- Donated and Government Grant
Funded at 31 March 2014
- Total at 31 March 2014

No Intangible assets were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds in either year.
All intangible assets under construction relate to software that has been purchased but not commissioned at the year end. The majority
relates to a new Patient Administration System due to go live at the end of May 2014 and a Maternity System part live on the 1st April 2014.
16.2 Intangible Assets Acquired by Government Grant
There are no Intangible Assets that have been acquired by Government Grant.
16.3 Economic Life of Intangible Assets
The minimum and maximum economic lives of Intangible Assets are as follows:
Min. Life
Years

Max. Life
Years

1

5

Software - Purchased

None of the Trust's Intangible Assets have indefinite useful economic lives.
16.4 Impairment of Intangible Assets
There were no impairments of Intangible Assets during 2013/14 or 2012/13.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment
17.1 Property, Plant and Equipment for 2013/14 comprise the following elements:
Total 31 March
2014

Land

Buildings
Excluding
Dwellings

Dwellings

Assets Under
Construction and
Payments on
Account*

Plant and
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture and
Fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2013
Additions - Purchased
Additions - Leased
Additions - Donations of Physical Assets (Non-Cash)
Impairments Charged to the Revaluation Reserve
Reversal of Impairments Credited to the Revaluation
Reserve
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Transfers to / from Assets Held for Sale and Assets in
Disposal Groups
Disposals
Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2014

128,720
7,669
58
154
(114)

16,463
0
0
0
0

74,770
1,306
0
0
(114)

4,950
27
0
0
0

1,560
4,236
0
0
0

22,548
1,816
58
154
0

535
0
0
0
0

6,559
284
0
0
0

1,335
0
0
0
0

558
(12)
(277)

0
0
14

538
917
(244)

20
0
(47)

0
(1,321)
0

0
133
0

0
0
0

0
259
0

0
0
0

(2,388)
(1,999)
132,369

(1,340)
0
15,137

(1,048)
0
76,125

0
0
4,950

0
0
4,475

0
(1,105)
23,604

0
(7)
528

0
(887)
6,215

0
0
1,335

Accumulated Depreciation at 1 April 2013
Provided During the Period
Impairments Charged to Operating Expenses
Reversal of Impairments Credited to Operating
Income
Revaluations
Transfers to / from Assets Held for Sale and Assets in
Disposal Groups
Disposals
Accumulated Depreciation at 31 March 2014

21,944
6,135
1,742

0
0
0

1,048
2,896
121

0
107
0

0
0
1,621

15,224
2,285
0

330
33
0

4,862
646
0

480
168
0

(1,703)
(1,421)

0
0

(1,703)
(1,314)

0
(107)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

(1,048)
(1,963)
23,686

0
0
0

(1,048)
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
1,621

0
(1,073)
16,436

0
(7)
356

0
(883)
4,625

0
0
648

Net Book Value
- Owned at 1 April 2013
- Finance Lease at 1 April 2013
- Government Granted 1 April 2013
- Donated at 1 April 2013
Total at 1 April 2013

104,241
380
43
2,112
106,776

16,463
0
0
0
16,463

72,738
0
0
984
73,722

4,950
0
0
0
4,950

1,560
0
0
0
1,560

6,102
111
26
1,085
7,324

200
0
0
5
205

1,422
269
0
6
1,697

806
0
17
32
855

- Owned at 31 March 2014
- Finance Lease at 31 March 2014
- Government Granted 31 March 2014
- Donated at 31 March 2014
Total at 31 March 2014

106,563
258
28
1,834
108,683

15,137
0
0
0
15,137

75,183
0
0
942
76,125

4,950
0
0
0
4,950

2,854
0
0
0
2,854

6,210
79
17
862
7,168

168
0
0
4
172

1,410
179
0
1
1,590

651
0
11
25
687

Property, Plant and Equipment assets totalling £124k (2012/13: £100k) were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds, and £30k (2012/13
£nil) were donated from another company.
Land value of £1,340k and Buildings Excluding Dwellings £nil net book value were transferred to 'Assets Held for Sale' in year and subsequently sold on the 31st March 2014.
17.2 Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment 31 March 2014
From 1 April 2013, an analysis of Protected and Non-Protected Assets disclosures that were previously required to be disclosed under the Terms of Authorisation are no longer required. The
Terms of Authorisation were replaced by Provider Licences which do not require this disclosure.
All Land, Buildings and Dwellings are freehold.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
17.3 Property, Plant and Equipment for 2012/13 comprise the following elements:
Total 31
March 2013

Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2012
Additions - Purchased
Additions - Donated
Impairments
Revaluations
Disposals
Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2013
Accumulated Depreciation at 1 April 2012
Provided During the Period
Impairments
Reversal of Impairments
Revaluations
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2013
Net book value
- Owned at 1 April 2012
- Finance Lease at 1 April 2012
- Government Granted at 1 April 2012
- Donated at 1 April 2012
Total at 1 April 2012
- Owned at 31 March 2013
- Finance Lease at 31 March 2013
- Government Granted at 31 March 2013
- Donated at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

Land

Buildings
Excluding
Dwellings

Dwellings

Assets Under
Construction and
Payments on
Account*
£000

Plant and
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture and
Fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

130,409
6,946
100
(2,863)
(4,558)
(1,314)
128,720

16,363
100
0
0
0
0
16,463

75,428
3,544
50
(2,863)
(4,535)
0
74,770

4,950
23
0
0
(23)
0
4,950

4,005
1,538
0
0
0
0
1,560

21,790
1,306
50
0
0
(1,158)
22,548

535
0
0
0
0
0
535

6,262
143
0
0
0
(123)
6,559

1,076
292
0
0
0
(33)
1,335

20,042
6,223
2,039
(67)
(5,006)
(1,287)
21,944

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,048
2,928
2,039
(67)
(4,900)
0
1,048

0
106
0
0
(106)
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

14,122
2,250
0
0
0
(1,148)
15,224

204
126
0
0
0
0
330

4,323
649
0
0
0
(110)
4,862

345
164
0
0
0
(29)
480

107,199
673
62
2,433
110,367

16,363
0
0
0
16,363

73,407
0
0
973
74,380

4,950
0
0
0
4,950

4,005
0
0
0
4,005

6,010
222
34
1,402
7,668

232
93
0
6
331

1,569
358
0
12
1,939

663
0
28
40
731

104,241
380
43
2,112

16,463
0
0
0

72,738
0
0
984

4,950
0
0
0

1,560
0
0
0

6,102
111
26
1,085

200
0
0
5

1,422
269
0
6

806
0
17
32

106,776

16,463

73,722

4,950

1,560

7,324

205

1,697

855

Property, Plant and Equipment assets totalling £100k (2011/12: £246k) were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds.
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, included within Land were £1,340k and within Buildings excluding dwellings £nil net book value relating unprotected assets that were sold by the Trust
on the 31 March 2014. These assets did not meet the criteria as being 'Held for Sale' as set out in IFRS 5 until August 2013.
17.4 Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment 31 March 2013
Total 31
March 2013

Net Book Value
- Protected Assets as at 31 March 2013
- Unprotected Assets as at 31 March 2013
- Total at 31 March 2013

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

82,377
24,399

13,440
3,023

68,937
4,785

0
4,950

0
1,560

0
7,324

0
205

0
1,697

0
855

106,776

16,463

73,722

4,950

1,560

7,324

205

1,697

855

All Land, Buildings and Dwellings are Freehold.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
17.5 Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Trust had a professional modern equivalent asset (MEA) valuation performed as at 31 March 2014 by an independent
external valuer, the District Valuer (DV). The valuation has been undertaken on the basis that the land and buildings have
been valued for the Trust's existing site (and not for an alternative site as also permitted by HM Treasury).
MEA principles and assumptions used in the valuation are in line with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Red Book
Standards. This means that specialised property is valued at the cost of replacing the service potential of the existing
property with a modern equivalent asset adjusted to take account of depreciation on the existing asset. This is considered
a change in valuation methodology rather than any change in accounting policy so no prior period adjustment arises.
Where property is considered to be non-specialised, the DV has valued the buildings at open market value. Of the totals at
31 March 2014, £1,217k (2012/13: £1,203k) related to Land valued at open market value and £6,315k (2012/13: £6,315k)
related to Buildings and Dwellings valued at open market value.
Plant and Equipment are shown at depreciated historical cost as a proxy to fair value due to the lives of the assets being
short.
Assets under construction comprise Property, Plant and Equipment and are stated at cost, other than the new build
theatres which have been revalued by the DV.
17.6 Economic Life of Property, Plant and Equipment
The minimum and maximum economic lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows:

Land
Buildings Excluding Dwellings
Dwellings
Assets Under Construction
Plant and Machinery
Transport Equipment
Information Technology
Furniture and Fittings

Min. Life
Years

Max. Life
Years

infinite
1
14
N/A
1
3
1
1

infinite
90
80
N/A
12
7
5
9

Land and Building lives have been determined by the District Valuer as part of the MEA valuation exercise carried out
prospectively at 31st March 2014.
There is no significant change in the asset lives assigned to Plant and Equipment.
17.7 Analysis of Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment
31 March 2014

Changes in Market Price
Reversals of Impairments
Charged in Previous Years
Net Impairments

Included in
Operating
Expenses
£000

Charged
against
Revaluation
Reserve
£000

Total
£000

Included in
Operating
Income
£000

1,856

n/a

1,742

114

(2,261)
(405)

(1,703)
(1,703)

n/a
1,742

(558)
(444)

Included in
Operating
Expenses
£000

Charged
against
Revaluation
Reserve
£000

31 March 2013

Changes in Market Price
Reversals of Impairments
Charged in Previous Years
Net Impairments

Total
£000

Included in
Operating
Income
£000

4,902

n/a

2,039

2,863

(67)
4,835

(67)
(67)

n/a
2,039

0
2,863
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
17.8 Assets Owned that are Leased Under Operating Leases
Analysis of assets owned by the Trust that are leased to other entities as an Operating Lease are as follows:
31 March 2014
Land
Buildings
£000
£000
Gross Carrying Amount
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Loss
Depreciation Charge for the Year
Impairment Losses Recognised in the
Year
Impairment Losses Reversed in the
Year

31 March 2013
Land
Buildings
£000
£000

302
0
0
0

3,686
0
75
185

302
0
0
0

3,620
0
85
172

0

0

0

40

0

(10)

0

0

Total
£000

Drugs
£000

Consumables
£000

1,603
13,887

1,043
11,920

38
68

59
0

463
1,899

(13,765)

(11,783)

(70)

(12)

(1,900)

(51)
1,674

(10)
1,170

0
36

0
47

(41)
421

Total
£000

Drugs
£000

Consumables
£000

Energy
£000

Other
£000

1,546
14,235

1,082
10,562

47
78

57
14

360
3,581

(14,135)

(10,591)

(87)

(12)

(3,445)

(43)
1,603

(10)
1,043

0
38

0
59

(33)
463

18. Inventories
18.1 Analysis of Inventory Movements 2013/14

Carrying Value 1 April 2013
Additions
Inventories Consumed (Recognised
in Expenses)
Write-Down of Inventories
Recognised as an Expense
Carrying Value 31 March 2014

Energy
£000

Other
£000

18.2 Analysis of Inventory Movements 2012/13

Carrying Value 1 April 2012
Additions
Inventories Consumed (Recognised
in Expenses)
Write-Down of Inventories
Recognised
as an Expense
Carrying Value 31 March 2013
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19. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Assets in Disposal Groups
19.1 Analysis of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Assets in Disposal Groups 2013/14

NBV of Non-Current Assets Held
for Sale and Assets in Disposal
Groups at 1 April 2013
Plus: Assets Classified as
'Available for Sale' in the Year
Less: Assets Sold During the Year
NBV of non-current assets held for
sale at 31 March 2014

PPE:
Buildings excl.
Dwellings
£000

Total
£000

PPE: Land
£000

0

0

0

1,340

1,340

0

(1,340)

(1,340)

0

0

0

0

On the 31 March 2014, the Trust sold the Saltergate Health Centre and Marsden Street site for £1.41m to the
Homes and Communities Agency. The site was actively marketed from August 2013, and was subsequently
classified as an 'Asset Held for Sale'. The net book value of Land was £1.34m (Buildings net book value £nil). A
gain of £39k, net of sale costs, has been recognised in the 2013/14 accounts.
There were no Liabilities in Disposal Groups relating to the above.
19.1 Analysis of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Assets in Disposal Groups 2012/13

Total
£000

PPE: Land
£000

PPE:
Buildings excl.
Dwellings
£000

NBV of Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Assets in Disposal Groups
at 1 April 2012
Less: Impairment of Assets Held
for Sale

130

45

85

(130)

(45)

(85)

NBV of Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale at 31 March 2013

0

0

0

During 2012/13, the Trust sold the Edmund Street premises for £190,000. These premises had been actively
marketed since 2009 and were therefore classified as an 'Asset Held for Sale' at a value of £130,000.
Consequently a gain of £57k, net of sale costs, was recognised in the 2012/13 accounts.
There were no Liabilities in Disposal Groups relating to the above.
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20. Trade and Other Receivables
20.1 Trade and Other Receivables are Made Up of:
31 March 2014
£000

31 March 2013
£000

NHS Receivables
Receivables due from NHS Charity
Provision for Impaired Receivables
Prepayments
Accrued Income
Interest Receivable
PDC Receivable
VAT Receivable
Other Receivables

3,180
22
(141)
1,039
3,294
2
0
287
1,783

1,215
12
(139)
1,010
1,704
12
68
189
1,133

Total

9,466

5,204

(108)
855

(146)
1,048

747

902

Current

Non-Current
Provision for Impaired Receivables
Other Receivables
Total

The majority of trade is with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), as Commissioners for NHS Patient Care
Services. As CCGs are funded by Government to buy NHS Patient Care Services, no credit scoring of them is
considered necessary.
There were no prepaid Pension Contributions as at 31 March 2014 or 31 March 2013.
The fair values of Trade and Other Receivables approximate to their carrying amounts.
20.2 Provision for Impairment of Receivables

At 1 April
Increase in Provision
Amounts Utilised
Unused Amounts Reversed
At 31 March

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

285
543
(330)
(249)

282
456
(302)
(151)

249

285

Receivables impaired include a 12.6% (2012/13: 13.9%) Provision for Doubtful Debts relating to the NHS Injury
Scheme to reflect the expected rates of collection. The 12.6% rate is based on guidance from the Department of
Health of 15.8% which has been decreased locally to reflect the actual rate.
It also includes an actual provision for all sundry income invoices that are considered unlikely to be paid by the
Debtor. This is based on the Trust's detailed knowledge of the debtor/debt.
These impairments are included in Operating Expenses within 'Increase in Bad Debt Provision' in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
20.3 Analysis of Impaired Receivables
31 March
2014
£000
Trade
Ageing of Impaired Receivables
Up to 30 days
30 to 60 days
60 to 90 days
90 to 180 days
Over 180 days

31 March
2013
£000
Trade

31 March
2013
£000
Other

0
0
6
5
6

14
12
21
33
152

0
0
2
9
2

15
20
16
41
180

17

232

13

272

348
298
145
145
104

13
54
30
122
228

883
6
42
5
34

14
36
25
52
307

1,040

447

970

434

Total
Ageing of Non-Impaired Receivables Past Their Due Date
Up to 30 days
30 to 60 days
60 to 90 days
90 to 180 days
Over 180 days
Total

31 March
2014
£000
Other

21. Trade and Other Payables
21.1 Trade and Other Payables are Made Up of:
Total
31 March
2014
£000

Current
NHS payables
Amounts Due to Other Related Parties
Trade payables - Capital
Other Trade Payables
Other Payables
Accruals
PDC Payable
Total

Total
31 March
2013
£000

145
0
2,790
2,739
4,653
5,589
41

216
7
1,421
1,864
4,692
5,691
0

15,957

13,891

There are no Non-Current Trade and Other Payables in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
The Trust complies with the Better Payment Practice Code and paid 97.9% of its invoices by their due date or within 30 days
of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later, during 2013/14. It expects to settle over 95% of the invoices making
up the debt shown above within this criterion. For further details see Better Payment Practice note 12.
There were Pensions Contributions of £1,770k, owed to the NHS Pension Scheme, at 31 March 2014 and these are included
in other payables (2012/13: £1,598k).
The above Pensions Contributions balance relates to the March 2014 pension liability which was settled in April 2014.
The fair values of Trade and Other Payables approximate to their carrying amounts.
21.2 Early Retirements Included in NHS Payables
There are no payments due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for Early Retirements over 5 years.
22. Other Liabilities
31 March
2014
£000

Current

31 March
2013
£000

Deferred Income - Goods and Services

1,209

131

Total

1,209

131

There are no Non-Current Other Liabilities in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
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23. Borrowings

Current

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2013
£000

Loans from Independent Trust
Financing Facility*
Obligations Under Finance Leases

1,001
191

1,001
168

Total

1,192

1,169

Loans from Independent Trust
Financing Facility*
Obligations Under Finance Leases

4,006
137

5,007
299

Total

4,143

5,306

Non-current

An analysis of Obligations Under Finance Leases are shown in Note 25.
* During 2009/10, the Trust signed a 10 year loan agreement facility for £11.5m from the
Independent Trust Financing Facility (ITFF) (formerly called Foundation Trust Financing Facility FTFF) to fund a capital scheme for the building of three new wards. The loan is unsecured. The
actual total loan drawn down was £8.51m. The first loan repayment was made in March 2011.
The amount shown in Current Borrowings represents the obligation to repay the loan based on the
liability at the balance sheet date.
£000
Total ITFF loan liability as at 1 April 2013
Less: Repayments

6,008
(1,001)

Total ITFF Loan Liability as at 31 March 2014

5,007

Due within 1 year
Due later than 1 year

1,001
4,006

Total ITFF Loan Liability as at 31 March 2014

5,007

Interest accrued from the date of this first drawdown and is paid every six months. See finance
costs Note 15. Interest arising on the loan from 15 March to 31 March 2014 has been accrued.
The interest rate of the loan is 2.84%.
There have been no defaults or breaches of the ITFF loan.
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24. Prudential Borrowing Limit
The Prudential Borrowing Code requirements in section 41 of the NHS Act 2006 have been repealed with effect from 1 April 2013 by the
Health and Social Care Act 2012. The Financial Statements disclosures that were provided previously are no longer required.
25. Finance Lease Obligations
The Trust pays rentals for Property, Plant and Equipment that are used but not owned by the Trust. The Trust has reviewed all contracts
where the Trust has the right to use an asset to determine whether in substance, an Operating or Finance Lease exists. Where the Trust has
determined that a lease arrangement is that of an Operating Lease, these are disclosed in Note 7.2. Finance Leases that have been
identified are included in this note. The future minimum lease payments due and the present value of the minimum lease payments are
shown below.
Present Value of Minimum
Lease Payments

Minimum Lease Payments
Total
31 March
2014
£000
Gross Lease Liabilities
of which Liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later
than five years;
- later than five years.
Finance Charges allocated to future
periods

Net Lease Liabilities
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later
than five years;
- later than five years.

Plant and
machinery
£000

Other
£000

31 March
2013
£000

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2013
£000

223

223

0

222

191

168

148
0
371

148
0
371

0
0
0

343
0
565

137
0
328

299
0
467

(43)
328

(43)
328

0
0

(98)
467

191

191

0

168

137
0
328

137
0
328

0
0
0

299
0
467

The Trust does not sublease to other third parties.
Contingent Rents recognised as an expense were £nil (2012/13: £nil).
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26. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
Non-Current
31 March
31 March
2013
2014
£000
£000

Current
31 March
31 March
2013
2014
£000
£000
Pensions Relating to Other Staff *
Other Legal Claims **
Other ***

80
186
49

79
115
42

913
0
747

911
0
663

315

236

1,660

1,574

Total
31 March
2014
£000

Pensions
Relating to
Former Staff *
£000

Legal Claims
**

Other ***

£000

£000

At 1 April 2013
Change in the Discount Rate
Arising During the Period
Utilised During the Period - Accruals
Utilised During the Period - Cash
Reversed Unused
Unwinding of Discount

1,810
79
315
0
(227)
(34)
32

990
38
27
0
(80)
0
18

115
0
177
0
(72)
(34)
0

705
41
111
0
(75)
0
14

At 31 March 2014

1,975

993

186

796

315
496
1,164

80
307
606

186
0
0

49
189
558

1,975

993

186

796

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

Events which may lead to the transfer of financial benefits from the Trust are quantified in these Accounts if such a transfer is
assessed by the Trust as probable. Otherwise such events are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities in Note 31.
* Pensions relating to former staff relate to Provisions for Early Retirements. The Provisions have been discounted at 1.8%
(2012/13: 2.35%) to reflect the time value of money. 'Arising during the period' for revised Pensions Provisions is charged to
Other Expenditure and relates to changes in the life expectancies of the retirees which are recalculated each financial year.
** Legal Claims relate to Employment Tribunal Claims totalling £116k (2012/13: £48k) plus Public and Employee Liability
(Personal Injury) Claims totalling £70k (2012/13: £67k) and a third party Legal Claim £0k (2012/13: £0k). The Provisions are
not discounted as they are expected to be settled within a reasonable period of time.
Personal Injury Claims are handled through the NHS Litigation Authority Risk Pooling Scheme up to the Trusts excess limits.
Amounts and probability of settlement are assessed in accordance with recommendations given by the NHS Litigation Authority
and external solicitors, where available.
*** Other Claims relate to Permanent Injury Benefits totalling £796k (2012/13: £705k). Provisions for Permanent Injury Benefits
are discounted at 1.8% (2012/13: 2.35%) to reflect the time value of money.
As at 31 March 2014 £39,448k (2012/13: £35,175k) is included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of
Clinical Negligence and Liabilities of the Trust.
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27. Analysis of Revaluation Reserve

Total
£000

Revaluation
Reserve PPE*
£000

Revaluation
Reserve Assets Held
for Sale
£000

Revaluation Reserve at 1 April 2013
Impairments
Revaluations
Asset Disposals
Other Reserve Movements

32,571
444
1,144
(1,430)
0

32,571
444
1,144
(52)
(1,378)

0
0
0
(1,378)
1,378

Revaluation Reserve at 31 March 2014

32,729

32,729

0

Revaluation Reserve at 1 April 2012
Impairments
Revaluations
Asset disposals

35,056
(2,863)
448
(70)

35,041
(2,863)
448
(55)

15
0
0
(15)

Revaluation Reserve at 31 March 2013

32,571

32,571

0

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2013
£000

44,232
(1,657)
42,575
117
42,458
0
42,575
0
0
42,575

41,357
2,875
44,232
99
44,133
0
44,232
0
0
44,232

* PPE relates to Property, Plant and Equipment

28. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At 1 April
Net Change in Year
At 31 March
Cash at Commercial Banks and in Hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Other Current Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents as in SoFP*
Bank Overdrafts
Drawdown in Committed Facility
Cash and Cash Equivalents as in SoCF**

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their carrying amounts.
*SOFP relates to Statement of Financial Position (Page 2)
** SOCF relates to Statement of Cash Flows (Page 5)
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29. Contractual Capital Commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at the balance sheet date were as follows:
31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2013
£000

891
1,636
2,527

708
126
834

Replacement Patient Administration System
Theatres refurbishment project
CT Scanner
Maternity System
E-Rostering system

1,371
845
0
204
54

0
0
567

Complete Buxton Health Centre refurbishment
Endoscopy redevelopment
Other Medical equipment and IT projects
Other Building work projects

0
17
18
18
2,527

83

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

The breakdown by project is:

112

14
58
834

30. Events After the Reporting Period
There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
31. Contingent Liabilities and Assets
There were no Contingent Liabilities in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
There were no Contingent Assets in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
32. Related Party Transactions
Transactions with Key Management Personnel
IAS 24 requires disclosure of transactions with key management personnel during the year. Key management personnel is defined
in IAS 24 as "those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether Executive or otherwise) of that entity". The Trust has deemed that its key
management personnel are the board members (Directors and Non-Executive Directors) of the Trust.
The transactions with Board Members are as follows:
2013/14
Income
Expenditure
£000
£000
0

Value of transactions with Board Members
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1,586

2012/13
Income
Expenditure
£000
£000
0

1,276
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32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
Transactions with Key Management Personnel (continued)
Included in Expenditure, is key management personnel compensation which is analysed as follows:

Short-Term Employee Benefits *
Post-Employment Benefits **

2013/14
£000

2012/13
£000

1,448
138

1,155
121

1,586

1,276

* Short-Term Employee Benefits include Salaries, Employer's Social Security Contributions and Benefits
in Kind.
** Post Employment Benefits include Employer's Contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme.
The remuneration of Board Members is also shown in Note 8 of these accounts by individual Board
Member.
There were no outstanding balances with Directors in either year.
Other than key management personnel compensation as shown above, none of the Board Members or
members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any material
transactions with Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
Other Interests Disclosures
The following declarations were made by Board Members in relation to positions held by them or their
partners in organisations which engage in business with the Trust:
Dr Ian Gell declared that he is a Governing Body Member of NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG.
Transactions are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis. Transactions with
this NHS body are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'. Dr Gell retired on 31
March 2014.
Richard Gregory declared that he is currently a Non-Executive Director of National Australia Group
Europe Limited who trade as Yorkshire Bank and Clydesdale Bank in the UK.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust undertook transactions with Yorkshire Bank,
however, these were immaterial, in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis.
Bank accounts with the Yorkshire Bank were closed on 6 March 2014.
Dr Barbara Stuttle declared that she is currently a director and owner of Barbara Stuttle Enterprises
Limited, for which part of the year the company invoiced the Trust for her services as Interim Chief
Nurse, which is included in her remuneration. She is also Chair of The Association for Nurse
Prescribing. She left the Trust on 19 February 2014.
Alison McKinna declared that her husband is an employee of Derbyshire Community Health Services
NHS Trust. Transactions are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis.
Transactions with this NHS body are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'.
Dr David Pickworth declared that he is a Mental Health Assessor (DOLS) for Derbyshire County Council,
with which the Trust undertakes financial transactions. Transactions
are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis. Transactions with this NHS body
are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'.
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32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
Transactions with Governors
Mark Dixey, public governor for Bolsover, declared that he is an employee of The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust.
Transactions are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis. Transactions with this NHS body
are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'.
David Allen, partner governor, declared that he is a councillor for Derbyshire County Council with which the Trust
undertook financial transactions. Transactions are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis.
Transactions with this NHS body are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'.
Ray Russell, partner governor, declared that he is a councillor for Chesterfield Borough Council with which the Trust
undertook financial transactions. Transactions are in the normal course of business and are on an arms length basis.
Transactions with this NHS body are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related Parties'.
Jayne Stringfellow, partner governor, declared that she is Chief Nurse and Quality Officer at NHS North Derbyshire
CCG with which the Trust undertook financial transactions. Transactions are in the normal course of business and are
on an arms length basis. Transactions with this NHS body are disclosed under 'Transactions with Other Related
Transactions with Other Related Parties
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a Public Benefit Corporation authorised by Monitor - the
Independent Regulator for NHS Foundation Trusts. All NHS Foundation Trusts are independent bodies which are not
controlled by the Secretary of State. The Trust has considered whether or not the working relationships it has with any
NHS bodies and Government departments and agencies meet the definition of a Related Party under IAS 24.
The value of transactions with Government bodies and Other Related Parties with which the Trust has had significant
dealings and which therefore require disclosure are:
2013/14
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Department of Health
Other NHS Bodies *
Charitable Funds **
Other ***

0
199,291
199
3,537

3,232
11,563
0
22,463

2012/13
Income
Expenditure
£000
£000
20
190,329
133
412

3,252
11,343
0
20,320

The value of balances as at 31 March with Government bodies and Other Related Parties with which the Trust has had
significant dealings and which therefore require disclosure are:
As at 31 March 2014
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
Department of Health
Other NHS Bodies *
Charitable Funds **
Other ***

0
6,153
21
997
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41
2,630
0
4,238

As at 31 March 2013
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
68
1,989
12
265

0
1,163
7
3,880
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32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
Transactions with Other Related Parties (continued)
*The other NHS bodies with which the Trust considers significant transactions have taken place are as follows:
2013/14
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
NHS North Derbyshire CCG
NHS Hardwick CCG
NHS England
Health Education England
NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG
NHS Sheffield CCG
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust
Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Derbyshire Community Health service NHS
Trust
Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
NHS Mansfield And Ashfield CCG
Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust
NHS Rotherham CCG
NHS Lincolnshire East CCG
NHS Bassetlaw CCG
Public Health England (PHE)
NHS Litigation Authority
Doncaster And Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust
The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust
Sheffield Children's NHS Foundation Trust
Department of Health (PDC)
Calderdale And Huddersfield NHS Foundation
Trust
Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Other NHS Non Material Transactions and
Balances

As at 31 March 2014
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000

124,707
39,310
12,950
6,937
3,265
2,772

0
0
69
1
0
0

2,568
970
295
197
19
97

854
270
121
0
52
0

2,485
1,614

3,535
70

724
402

492
6

1,460
591
585
565
203
149
148
140
110

607
271
0
120
0
0
0
34
5,422

106
131
14
84
15
97
21
31
0

471
24
6
103
7
0
5
3
0

33
6
5
0

381
115
239
3,232

8
0
1
0

95
4
60
41

0
0

140
106

0
0

8
9

1,256

453

373

40

199,291

14,795

6,153

2,671

** The Trust has received revenue and capital contributions from Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust Charitable Funds (Registered Charity number 1052913). Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Charity. Details of the transactions are shown below:
2013/14
£000
Contributions from Charitable Funds to Cover Expenditure
Capital Contributions from Charitable Funds

2012/13
£000

41
154

33
100

195

133

As at 31 March 2014, the Trust was owed £21k by the Charity (2012/13: £5k) for expenses incurred by the Trust.
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32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
Transactions with Other Related Parties (continued)
*** The Other Related Parties within the scope of the Whole of the Government Accounts (WGA) scope which
the Trust considers significant transactions have taken place are:
2013/14
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Derbyshire County Council
NHS Blood and Transplant
NHS Pensions Agency
National Insurance Fund
Chesterfield Borough Council
Department of Energy and Climate Change
HMRC
Other WGA non material transactions and
balances

As at 31 March 2014
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000

3,426
7
0
0
0
0
0

69
1,072
12,393
7,641
1,092
151
0

666
1
0
0
0
0
287

11
0
1,770
1,130
0
159
1,165

104

45

43

3

3,537

22,463

997

4,238

Provisions for Impaired Receivables Relating to Related Parties
No Provisions have been made for Impaired Receivables in respect of the amounts owed by Related Parties.
Impaired Receivables Written Off During the Year relating to Related Parties are as follows:Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

£200

33. Financial Risk Management
The Trust’s activities do not significantly expose it to financial risks (liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
foreign currency risk).
The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters
defined formally within the Trust’s Treasury Management Policy, Standing Financial Instructions and other
policies agreed by the Board of Directors.
The Trust's Audit Committee oversees management compliance with financial risk management policies and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the financial risks faced by the Trust. The
Trust's Audit Committee is assisted by Internal Audit (provided by Baker Tilly) who regularly review the Trust's
financial risk management controls and procedures e.g. the Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the
Trust’s internal auditors.
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments Disclosures) requires disclosure of
the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in
undertaking its activities. IFRS 7 applies to all financial instruments within the scope of IAS 32.
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33. Financial Risk Management (continued)
Due to the continuing service/provider relationship that the Trust has with local commissioners and the way
those commissioners are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
commercial business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or
changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to which IAS 32 and IAS 39 are mainly aimed
at. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held
to change the risk facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.
Liquidity Risk
The Trust's cash flows are mainly stable and predictable. The Trust regularly reviews the level of cash
required to fund its activities. This involves preparing a cash flow forecast for the next three years, planning
for repayments of debt at its maturity and identifying an appropriate amount of headroom to provide a
reserve against unexpected outflows.
The Trust largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made available through internally generated
resources but in 2009/10, the Trust borrowed from the Department of Health Independent Trust Financing
Facility (ITFF) (formerly called Foundation Trust Financing Facility - FTFF) to finance a new capital scheme
to build three new wards. Financing was drawn down to match the spend profile of the scheme concerned
and the Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks in this area. The loan has a life of ten
years (of which 5 years remain).
Market Risk
The Trust has a loan from the Department of Health Independent Trust Financing Facility (ITFF) (formerly
called Foundation Trust Financing Facility - FTFF) and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed at 2.84% for the life of the loan (ten years). The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
Credit Risk
The Trust’s exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of cash at bank and short term
deposits.
In the year, the Trust deposited surplus cash with the National Loans Fund and with the Government
Banking Service (GBS). All cash deposits were in line with the Treasury Management policy agreed by the
Board of Directors.
The majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, and consequently
the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2014 are in short term
receivables from customers. No further credit risk provision is required in excess of the normal provision for
bad and doubtful debts disclosed in the Trade and other receivables note.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities
being in the UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low
exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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34. Financial Instruments
34.1 Financial Assets by Category
Set out below are the accounting classifications of each class of Financial Assets:
Total
£000

Loans and
Receivables
£000

Trade and Other Receivables Excluding Non-Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Bank and in Hand

8,876
42,575

8,876
42,575

Total at 31 March 2014

51,451

51,451

Trade and Other Receivables Excluding Non-Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

4,898
44,232

4,898
44,232

Total at 31 March 2013

49,130

49,130

34.2 Financial Liabilities by Category
Set out below are the accounting classifications of each class of Financial Liabilities:
Total
£000

Other Financial
Liabilities
£000

Borrowings Excluding Finance Lease Obligations
Obligations Under Finance Leases
Trade and Other Payables Excluding Non-Financial Liabilities

5,007
328
11,856

5,007
328
11,856

Total at 31 March 2014

17,191

17,191

Borrowings Excluding Finance Lease Obligations
Obligations Under Finance Leases
Trade and Other Payables Excluding Non-Financial Liabilities

6,008
467
10,033

6,008
467
10,033

Total at 31 March 2013

16,508

16,508

34.3 Maturity of Financial Liabilities
31 March 2014
£000
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year but less than 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
After 5 years
Total

13,049
1,137
3,005
0
17,191

31 March 2013
£000
11,202
1,164
3,139
1,003
16,508

34.4 Fair Values
For current financial instruments (less than one year) the fair values are equal to their book values. The
carrying amounts of all non-current financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
Financial Statements approximate their fair values.
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35. Third Party Assets
The Trust held £8k in cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2014 (2012/13: £8k) which relates to monies held on behalf of
patients.
This has been excluded from the Cash and Cash Equivalents figure reported in the accounts.
36. Losses and Special Payments
2013/14
Number

Value
£000

2012/13
Number

Value
£000

Losses:Cash Losses
Fruitless Payments and Constructive Losses
Bad Debts and Claims Abandoned
Stores Losses

5
0
72
2

1
0
5
51

3
2
59
2

0
140
6
43

Total Losses

79

57

66

189

Special Payments:Extra Contractural Payments
Extra-Statutory and Extra Regulatory Payments
Compensation (Under Legal Obligation) Payments
Special Serverence Payment
Ex-Gratia Payments

0
0
8
0
38

0
0
48
0
36

0
0
6
0
30

0
0
55
0
34

Total Special Payments

46

84

36

89

125

141

102

278

Total Losses and Special Payments

Losses and Special Payments have been accounted for on an accruals basis but exclude provisions for future losses.
There were no clinical negligence, fraud, personal injury, compensation under legal obligation or fruitless payment cases where
the net payment exceeded £100k (2012/13: nil).
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